Public Document Pack

sir ddinbych Y2
-«

County Council

To: Chair and Members of the Planning  Date: 14 January 2016
Committee

Direct Dial: 01824 712568

e-mail: dcc_admin@denbighshire.gov.uk

Dear Councillor

You are invited to attend a meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE to be held at 9.30
am on WEDNESDAY, 20 JANUARY 2016 in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNTY
HALL, RUTHIN.

Yours sincerely
G Williams
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Pages 9 - 10)

Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in any business
identified to be considered at this meeting.

3 URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR

Notice of items which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the
meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local
Government Act, 1972.

4 MINUTES (Pages 11 - 20)

To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting
held on the 9 December 2015 (copy attached).

APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT (ITEMS 5 - 12) -

5  APPLICATION NO. 09/2015/1121/PF - OUTBUILDINGS AT EFAIL Y
WAEN, BODFARI, DENBIGH (Pages 21 - 36)



10

11

To consider an application for conversion of redundant agricultural building to
form 3 holiday let accommodation units, demolition of steel portal farm
building and installation of a package treatment plant at Outbuildings at Efail
y Waen, Bodfari, Denbigh (copy attached).

APPLICATION NO. 18/2015/0887/PF - PENTRE MAWR COUNTRY HOUSE
HOTEL, LLANDYRNOG, DENBIGH (Pages 37 - 66)

To consider an application for change of use of part of listed building and part
of courtyard for weddings and other functions in association with existing
hotel business, including erection of detached marquee and covered timber
walkway within courtyard and use of paddock as overspill parking area (partly
in retrospect) at Pentre Mawr Country House Hotel, Llandyrnog, Denbigh
(copy attached).

APPLICATION NO. 18/2015/0888/LB - PENTRE MAWR COUNTRY
HOUSE HOTEL, LLANDYRNOG, DENBIGH (Pages 67 - 88)

To consider a listed building application for conversion of part of listed
building and part of courtyard for weddings and other functions in association
with existing hotel business, including erection of detached marquee and
covered timber walkway within courtyard at Pentre Mawr Country House
Hotel, Llandyrnog, Denbigh (copy attached).

APPLICATION NO. 18/2015/0327/PS - PENTRE MAWR COUNTRY
HOUSE HOTEL, LLANDYRNOG, DENBIGH (Pages 89 - 102)

To consider an application for variation of condition no. 12 of planning
permission code no. 18/2014/0793 to permit use of part of courtyard for
wedding functions at Pentre Mawr Country House Hotel, Llandyrnog, Denbigh
(copy attached).

APPLICATION NO. 23/2015/0889/PF - LAND AT BRYN GLAS DEPOT,
SARON, DENBIGH (Pages 103 - 118)

To consider an application for highway improvement works on B4501 at land
at Bryn Glas Depot, Saron, Denbigh (copy attached).

APPLICATION NO. 45/2015/0468/PO - FORMER THORPE ENGINEERING
AND DESIGN SITE, FFORDD DERWEN, RHYL (Pages 119 - 138)

To consider an application for development of 0.29ha of land by the
demolition of redundant factory unit and construction of a church and
community centre (outline application including access) at Former Thorpe
Engineering and Design Site, Ffordd Derwen, Rhyl (copy attached).

APPLICATION NO. 45/2015/0780/PR - OCEAN BEACH SITE,
WELLINGTON ROAD, RHYL (Pages 139 - 164)



To consider an application for details of appearance, landscaping, layout and
scale of phase 1 of mixed-use redevelopment scheme incorporating the
development of 2 no. blocks containing retail uses (bulky goods, food and
non-food) and leisure uses; a detached 54 bed hotel, 2 no. substations, car
parking and other ancillary works submitted in accordance with condition
number 1 of outline planning permission 45/2013/1510 (Reserved Matters
Application) at Ocean Beach Site, Wellington Road, Rhyl (copy attached).

12 APPLICATION NO. 46/2015/0969/PF - FORMER PILKINGTON SPECIAL
GLASS SITE, GLASCOED ROAD, ST. ASAPH (Pages 165 - 176)

To consider an application for construction of a new access and alterations to
existing access at Former Pilkington Special Glass Site, Glascoed Road, St.
Asaph (copy attached).

MEMBERSHIP
Councillors

Raymond Bartley (Chair) Win Mullen-James (Vice-Chair)

lan Armstrong Bob Murray
Brian Blakeley Peter Owen
Joan Bultterfield Dewi Owens

Jeanette Chamberlain-Jones
Bill Cowie

Meirick Davies
Richard Davies
Stuart Davies

Peter Evans

Huw Hilditch-Roberts
Rhys Hughes

Alice Jones

Pat Jones

Barry Mellor

COPIES TO:

All Councillors for information
Press and Libraries

Town and Community Councils

Merfyn Parry
Pete Prendergast
Arwel Roberts
Anton Sampson
David Simmons
Bill Tasker

Julian Thompson-Hill
Joe Welch

Cefyn Williams
Cheryl Williams
Huw Williams



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1

WELCOME TO DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL'S
PLANNING COMMITTEE

HOW THE MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED

Unless the Chair of the Committee advises to the contrary, the order in which the main items will be taken will follow the
agenda set out at the front of this report.

General introduction
The Chair will open the meeting at 9.30am and welcome everyone to the Planning Committee.
The Chair will ask if there are any apologies for absence and declarations of interest.

The Chair will invite Officers to make a brief introduction to matters relevant to the meeting.

Officers will outline as appropriate items which will be subject to public speaking, requests for deferral, withdrawals,
special reports, and any Part 2 items where the press and public may be excluded. Reference will be made to additional
information circulated in the Council Chamber prior to the start of the meeting, including the late
representations/amendments summary sheets (‘Blue Sheets’) and any supplementary or revised plans relating to items
for consideration.

The Blue Sheets'contain important information, including a summary of material received in relation to items on the
agenda between the completion of the main reports and the day before the meeting. The sheets also set out the
proposed running order on planning applications, to take account of public speaking requests.

In relation to the running order of items, any Members seeking to bring forward consideration of an item will be expected
to make such a request immediately following the Officer's introduction. Any such request must be made as a formal
proposal and will be subject to a vote.

The Planning Committee consists of 30 elected Members. In accordance with protocol, 15 Members must be present at
the start of a debate on an item to constitute quorum and to allow a vote to be taken.

County Council Members who are not elected onto Planning Committee may attend the meeting and speak on an item,
but are not able to make a proposal to grant or refuse, or to vote.

CONSIDERING PLANNING APPLICATIONS

The sequence to be followed

The Chair will announce the item which is to be dealt with next. In relation to planning applications, reference will be
made to the application number, the location and basis of the proposal, the relevant local Members for the area, and the
Officer recommendation.

If any Member is minded to propose deferral of an item, including to allow for the site to be visited by a Site Inspection
Panel, the request should be made, with the planning reason for deferral, before any public speaking or debate on that
item.

If there are public speakers on an item, the Chair will invite them to address the Committee. Where there are speakers
against and for a proposal, the speaker against will be asked to go first. The Chair will remind speakers they have a
maximum of 3 minutes to address the Committee. Public speaking is subject to a separate protocol.

Where relevant, the Chair will offer the opportunity for Members to read any late information on an item on the 'Blue
Sheets' before proceeding.

Page 5



Prior to any debate, the Chair mayinvite Officers to provide a brief introduction to an item where this is considered to be
worthwhile in view of the nature of the application.

There are display screens in the Council Chamber which are used to show photographs, or plans submitted with
applications. The photographs are taken by Officers to give Members a general impression of a site and its surroundings,
and are not intended to present a case for or against a proposal.

The Chair will announce that the item is open for debate and offer Members opportunity to speak and to make
propositions on the item.

If any application has been subject to a Site Inspection Panel prior to the Committee, the Chair will normally invite those
Members who attended, including the Local Member, to speak first.

On all other applications, the Chair will permit the Local Member(s) to speak first, should he/she/theywish to do so.

Members are normallylimited to a maximum of five minutes speaking time, and the Chair will conduct the debate in
accordance with Standing Orders.

Once a Member has spoken, he/she should not speak again unless seeking clarification of points arising in debate, and
then only once all other Members have had the opportunity to speak, and wih the agreement of the Chair.

At the conclusion of Members debate, the Chair will ask Officers to respond as appropriate to questions and points
raised, including advice on any resolution in conflict with the recommendation.

Prior to proceeding to the vote, the Chair will invite or seek clarification of propositions and seconders for propositions for
or against the Officer recommendation, or any other resolutions including amendments to propositions . Where a
proposition is made contrary to the Officer recommendation, the Chair will seek clarification of the planning reason (s) for
that proposition, in order that this may be recorded in the Minutes of the meeting. The Chair may request comment from

the Legal and Planning Officer on the validity of the stated reason(s).

The Chair will announce when the debate is closed, and that voting is to follow.

The voting procedure

Before requesting Members to vote, the Chair willannounce what resolutions have been made, and how the vote is to
proceed. If necessary, further clarification may be sought of amendments, new or additional conditions and reasons for
refusal, so there is no ambiguity over what the Committee is voting for or against.

If any Member requests a Recorded Vote, this must be dealt with first in accordance with Standing Orders. The Chair
and Officers will clarify the procedure to be followed. The names of each voting Member will be called out and each
Member will announce whether their vote is to grant, to refuse, or to abstain. Officers will announce the outcome of the
vote on the item.

If a vote is to proceed in the normal manner via the electronic voting system, the Chair will ask Officers to set up the
voting screen(s) in the Chamber, and when requested, Members mustrecord their votes by pressing the appropriate
button (see following sheet).

Members have 10 seconds to record their votes once the voting screen is displayed, unless advised otherwise by
Officers.

On failure of the electronic voting system, the vote may be conducted by a show of hands. The Chair and Officers will
clarify the procedure to be followed.

On conclusion of the vote, the Chair will announce the decision on the item.
Where the formal resolution of the Committee is contrary to Officer recommendation, the Chair will requestMembers to
agree the process through which planning conditions or reasons for refusal are to be drafted, in order to release the

Decision Certificate (e.g. delegating authority to the Planning Officer, to the Planning Officer in liaison with Local
Members, or by referral back to Planning Committee for ratification).

Page 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE

VOTING PROCEDURE

Members are reminded of the procedure when casting their vote.
The Chair or Officers will clarify the procedure to be followed as
necessary.

Once the display screens in the Chamber have been cleared in

preparation for the vote and the voting screen appears, Councillors
have 10 seconds to record their vote as follows:

On the voting keyboard press the

+ To GRANT Planning Permission
- To REFUSE Planning Permission
0) to ABSTAIN from voting

Or in the case of Enforcement items:

+ To AUTHORISE Enforcement Action
- To REFUSE TO AUTHORISE Enforcement Action
0 to ABSTAIN from voting

Page 7




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2
sir ddinbych t%
B’

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 County Council

Code of Conduct for Members

DISCLOSURE AND REGISTRATION OF INTERESTS

I, (name)

a *member/co-opted member of Denbighshire County Council
(*please delete as appropriate)

CONFIRM that | have declared a *personal / personal and prejudicial
interest not previously declared in accordance with the provisions of Part
Il of the Council's Code of Conduct for Members, in respect of the

following:-
(*please delete as appropriate)

Date of Disclosure:

Committee (please specify):

Agenda Item No.

Subject Matter:

Nature of Interest:

(See the note below)*

Signed

Date

*Note: Please provide sufficient detail e.g. ‘l am the owner of land adjacent to the application for
planning permission made by Mr Jones', or ‘My husband / wife is an employee of the company which
has made an application for financial assistance’.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Minutes of a meeting of the Planning Committee held in Council Chamber, County Hall,
Ruthin on Wednesday, 9 December 2015 at 9.30 am.

PRESENT

Councillors Raymond Bartley (Chair), Brian Blakeley, Jeanette Chamberlain-Jones,
Bill Cowie, Meirick Davies, Richard Davies, Stuart Davies, Peter Evans, Huw Hilditch-
Roberts, Rhys Hughes, Alice Jones, Pat Jones, Barry Mellor, Win Mullen-James (Vice-
Chair), Bob Murray, Dewi Owens, Pete Prendergast, Arwel Roberts, Anton Sampson,
Bill Tasker, Julian Thompson-Hill, Joe Welch, Cefyn Williams, Cheryl Williams and
Huw Williams

ALSO PRESENT

Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services (GW), Conservation Architect (PE), Head of
Planning and Public Protection (GB), Development Manager (PM), Principal Planning
Officer (IW), Planning Officer (DAR), Senior Engineer, Highways (MP), Development
Planning & Policy Manager (AL), and Committee Administrator (SLW).

1 APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors lan Armstrong, Joan
Butterfield, Peter Owen and Merfyn Parry.

At this juncture, best wishes were sent to both Councillors lan Armstrong and Peter
Owen.

The Chair welcomed everyone to the Planning Committee meeting, and announced with
great pleasure that Denbighshire County Council had been recently commended by the
Royal Town Planning Institute (RTPI) at the 2015 Wales Planning Awards. The
commendation had been in recognition of the regeneration of Grade Il Listed Buildings,
Plas Penddeuglawdd at 37-39 Pendyffryn Road, Rhyl. The buildings, one of which was
believed to be the oldest building in Rhyl, dated from the first half of the 17™ Century.
Both were listed in a poor condition with no. 37 in a partially derelict state. Located in a
suburban residential street and an eyesore for many years, the buildings were on the
Council Corporate “Eyesore Sites” list, the Council’s “Listed Buildings at Risk” Register
and Empty Homes Register.

The Chair expressed thanks to all the officers involved with the excellent scheme and
congratulated everyone.

The Head of Planning and Public Protection accepted the Certificate and introduced Phil
Ebbrell, the Council’s Conservation Architect.

Phil Ebbrell informed Members that negotiations with the owner of 37-39 Pendyffryn

Road, Rhyl first took place in the late 1990’s as it was empty and the building had been
deteriorating. Eventually, the property was sold to a local developer. North Wales

Page 11



Housing were involved and identified a funding package to assist with the project. Six
two-bedroom properties on the site were created. Three are in the listed buildings, with
three new bungalows meeting lifetime homes standards, and wheelchair friendly dwellings
in the grounds. Rhyl has one of the highest areas of housing need in Denbighshire and
this crucial development provided much needed, high quality 2 bedroom affordable
housing for local people with a local connection.

The project had resulted in a productive use of a formerly derelict listed building which
meets local needs for affordable and specialist housing and had promoted a sense of civic
pride.

Councillors Pat Jones and Meirick Lloyd Davies congratulated all involved with the project
as it had made a great difference to the area.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Huw Williams — Personal Interest — Agenda Item 7
3 URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR

No urgent matters had been raised.
4 MINUTES

The minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 11 November 2015 were
submitted.

At this juncture, Councillor Huw Hilditch-Roberts stated he felt all Members should
be attributed to discussions within the meeting. This comment was noted.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 11 November, 2015, be
approved as a correct record.

APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT (ITEMS 5 - 12)

Applications received requiring determination by the Committee were submitted together
with associated documentation. Reference was also made to late supplementary
information (blue sheets) received since publication of the agenda which related to
particular applications. In order to accommodate public speaking requests, it was agreed
to vary the Agenda order of applications accordingly.

5 APPLICATION NO. 25/2015/0636/ PFWF - LAND EAST OF LLYN BRENIG,
NANTGLYN

To consider an application for the construction and operation of a wind farm
comprising of sixteen wind turbines along with transformers, access tracks, on-site
switchgear and metering building, two anemometry towers and associated
construction and operation infrastructure (revised scheme partially implemented
under planning permission reference 25/2007/0565) at land east of Llyn Brenig,
Nantglyn.

Page 12



Mr G Bibby — (Against) — spoke on behalf of local residents and referred to
previous planning history and objections based on landscape, visual impact and
wellbeing.

Mr J Woodruff — For) — confirmed the scheme had commenced under previous
consent and local contractors used. Argued the impact of the proposal to increase
the turbine tip height from 100 to 110 metres would be imperceptible.

General Debate — The Planning Officer (IW) summarised the report highlighting the
volume of information and representations received. He advised that the report
sought the resolution of the Planning Committee, on the above planning application
considered at the Committee on 11 November 2015, when Members resolved to
refuse permission contrary to Officer recommendation.

The application had been referred back to Committee by the Head of Planning and
Public Protection in accordance with the current Scheme of Delegation, as following
detailed assessment, it was considered the grounds of refusal put forward would
give rise to a significant risk of costs being awarded against the Council at any
subsequent appeal.

The Council had previously sought independent technical advice on landscape and
noise which Officers considered gave no grounds for refusal.

The report provided Members with the relevant background information and the
reason why Officers were requesting the reconsideration of the application.

Councillor Joe Welch (Local Member) spoke against the application and proposed
the application be refused on the increase on detrimental impact of visual amenity,
seconded by Councillor Stuart Davies.

Members discussed the application and planning consideration further and
expressed serious concerns over the additional impacts of the proposal over and
above those created by the existing permission. Many members felt unable to
support the application given the further detrimental impact on the community as a
result. Members were not reassured that the proposed development would result in
acceptable noise levels and further concerns were raised regarding the impact of
the proposed development on health and wellbeing.

In response to debate Officers asked Members, as at the previous Planning
meeting, to consider that the main difference to the existing planning consent would
be an increase in the turbine dimensions involving a tip height increase of 10
metres. It was likely that a refusal would need to be defended at a public enquiry.

Proposal — Councillor Joe Welch proposed that the application be refused, contrary

to Officer recommendation, on the grounds of increased detrimental impact on
visual amenity. Councillor Stuart Davies seconded the proposal.

Page 13



VOTE:

FOR -3
AGAINST - 20
ABSTAIN -1

RESOLVED that permission be REFUSED, contrary to Officer recommendation, on
the ground of increase on detrimental impact of visual amenity.

At this juncture, the Head of Planning and Public Protection requested two
Committee members who would be willing to represent the Committee if the matter
were to be brought to appeal - Councillor Joe Welch and Stuart Davies agreed.

At this juncture (10.35 a.m.) there was a break.

Meeting reconvened at 10.50 a.m.

The following item had been brought forward on the Agenda at the request of the Local
Member, Councillor Cefyn Williams, as he would need to leave prior to the conclusion of
the meeting.

6

REPORT TO SEEK A RESOLUTION ON CONDITIONS TO BE ATTACHED TO
PLANNING PERMISSION 07/2015/0414/PFT - TYFOS, LLANDRILLO, CORWEN

A report was submitted to seek Members resolution on conditions to be attached to
the Planning Permission for a single wind turbine at Tyfos, which had been granted
at the November 2015 meeting of the Planning Committee.

The matter had been brought before Members at the request of Committee in
November 2015, as the grant of permission was contrary to the Planning Officer
recommendation, and there were no conditions before Members to consider.

The merits of the decision were not for debate, solely the suitability or otherwise of
the conditions to be attached to the permission.

The Planning Officer confirmed the conditions were standard conditions similar to
those imposed on previously granted single turbine permissions.

Proposal — Councillor Cefyn Williams proposed that the conditions within the report
be accepted. Seconded by Councillor Rhys Hughes.

VOTE:

For - 25
Against —0
Abstain — 0

RESOLVED that Members agree to the imposition of conditions on planning
permission 07/2015/0414 as drafted, and that the Certificate of Decision be
released.

Page 14



APPLICATION NO. 12/2015/0656/PFT - LAND ADJACENT TO CLOCAENOG
FOREST, WEST OF TAN Y CREIGIAU, CLAWDDNEWYDD, RUTHIN

To consider an application for the installation of single wind turbine with associated
access track, foundation, crane hard standing and equipment housing cabinet at
land adjacent to Clocaenog Forest west of Tan y Creigiau, Clawddnewydd, Ruthin.

Mr P Fusco — (For) — explained he worked as a Planner for Constantine Wind
Energy. The wind turbine would be 15 metres shorter than originally approved
which meant significant decrease in noise omissions. Mr Fusco explained the
benefits of the single wind turbine on the site.

Proposal - Councillor Rhys Hughes proposed the application be granted.
Councillor Hugh Williams seconded the proposal.

VOTE:
For-24
Against — 1
Abstain — 0

RESOLVED that the permission be GRANTED in accordance with Officer
recommendation as detailed within the report.

APPLICATION NO. 40/2015/0199/PF - LAND AT BODELWYDDAN CASTLE,
ENGINE HILL, BODELWYDDAN, RHYL

[Councillor Huw Williams declared a personal interest as he was friends on
facebook with Mr Eyton Jones].

To consider an application for the construction of replica WW1 trenches at land at
Bodelwyddan Castle, Engine Hill, Bodelwyddan, Rhyl.

Mr P Eyton Jones (For) — explained the background of the application. The
proposal had been developed following receipt of a capital grant from the Ministry of
Defence Community Covenant Grant Fund. Mr Eyton Jones expressed his
disappointment at condition 3 relating to an archaeological watching brief to be
included as, in his opinion, this was unnecessary.

General Debate — The project would commemorate the 100 year anniversary of the
First World War. The trenches would also be open for the Armed Forces Day for
North Wales which would take place in June 2016.

Councillor Alice Jones (Local Member) spoke in favour of the application including
condition 3, seconded by Councillor Meirick LIoyd Davies.

Members discussed the application and conditions further. Councillor Stuart Davies
proposed that condition 3 be removed as a condition to the application and the
County Archivist to be involved with the trenches. Seconded by Councillor Rhys
Hughes.

Page 15



The Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services clarified that a vote would need to
take place regarding the proposed amendment which was to remove condition 3.

VOTE:

For - 10
Against — 15
Abstain — 0

The Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services confirmed that a majority of
Members had voted to include the original Condition 3 for the application.

Proposal — Councillor Alice Jones proposed that the application be accepted.
Seconded by Councillor Meirick Lloyd Davies.

VOTE:

For — 23
Against — 1
Abstain — 1

RESOLVED that the permission be GRANTED in accordance with Officer
recommendation as detailed within the report.

APPLICATION NO. 42/2015/0237/PF - FORMER ANGLIA BUILDER'S YARD &
ADJACENT CAR PARKS, NEWMARKET ROAD, DYSERTH, RHYL

To consider an application for the conversion of offices/workshops to provide (i) 19
self-contained apartments (ii) Erection of block of 6 self-contained apartments
(including 2 affordable units) (iii) Erection of 13 employment starter units and (iv)
Provision of Associated Car Parking, amenity and recreation space at the former
Anglia Builder’s Yard & Adjacent Car Parks, Newmarket Road, Dyserth, Rhyl.

Mr K Prydderch - (Against) — spoke on behalf of the “Don’t Destroy Dyserth Group”
and referred to flood defences. Concern was raised over climate change and the
amount of rainfall which could have the capability of causing floods. Flood
Assessment Infiltration tests were requested.

Mr G Kenyon — (For) — explained he worked for Kenyon Planning in Manchester
and had been acting for Walsh Investments in this matter. The site had been for
sale for the past five years with no interest and, therefore, the development would
have significant public benefits as was a Brown Field Site.

General Debate — The Planning Officer (IW) summarised the report highlighting the
information and representations received.

Councillor Hugh Irving confirmed he had attended the site meeting on behalf of
Councillor Peter Owen who supported the development. Members raised concerns
regarding the safety of the A5151 (Newmarket Road). The Senior Engineer,
Highways, confirmed that there had been one recorded accident and a speed
survey had been carried out and conditions had been suggested to improve
junction visibility.

Page 16



10

11

12

Proposal — Councillor Julian Thompson- Hill proposed that the application be
granted. Councillor Barry Mellor seconded the proposal.

VOTE:

For — 20
Against — 4
Abstain — 0

RESOLVED that permission be GRANTED in accordance with officer
recommendations as detailed within the report.

APPLICATION NO. 46/2015/0765/PF - LAND AT BOD ERW HOTEL, THE ROE,
ST. ASAPH

To consider an application for the change of use of land for the siting of secure
storage units at Land at Bod Erw Hotel, The Roe, St. Asaph.

Mr Anthony Davies — (For) — explained the application would be temporary for 3
years for secure storage units. The location of the siting of the storage units
together with the size and description were confirmed. Access times to the units
would be from 8 a.m. — 7 p.m. Mr Davies confirmed he would be happy to work
with Planning Officers if the application were successful.

General Debate - Councillor Bill Cowie (Local Member) requested if the application
were to be granted he be consulted on the conditions to be added.

Proposal — Councillor Huw Hilditch-Roberts proposed that the application be
granted, contrary to officer recommendation, as the location was in Policy RD1 and
only for a 3 year period. Councillor Peter Evans seconded the proposal.

VOTE:

For — 20
Against — 3
Abstain — 0

RESOLVED that the application be GRANTED contrary to Officer
Recommendation as the application would be temporary for a three year period.
Officers to draft conditions to be attached to the permission.

APPLICATION NO. 43/2014/1371/ PF - PLAS DEVA CARAVAN PARK, FFORDD
TALARGOCH, MELIDEN, PRESTATYN

Application withdrawn.
APPLICATION NO. 43/2015/0985/PF - 96 HIGH STREET, PRESTATYN
To consider an application for change of use of ground floor to use class A3

restaurant and conversion of upper floors to 2 self-contained flats at 96 High Street,
Prestatyn.

Page 17



13

General Debate — Councillor Hugh Irving (Local Member) supported the
application, especially as the property had been standing empty and the building
was deteriorating. Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill proposed granting the
application. Councillor Anton Sampson agreed but requested condition be included
that the property remained as class A3, this was supported by Councillor Bob
Murray.

The Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services clarified to Members that the
amendment would be voted on to restrict the application to restaurant use only.

VOTE:
For (to add restriction) — 11
Against (for blanket A3 only) — 13

Proposal — Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill proposed the grant the application.
Councillor Anton Sampson seconded the proposal.

VOTE:
For—-18
Against — 5
Abstain - 1

RESOLVED that permission be GRANTED with the blanket Class A3 use, in
accordance with officer recommendations as detailed within the report.

APPLICATION NO. 45/2015/0359/PF - LAND ADJOINING 53 BRIGHTON ROAD,
RHYL

To consider an application for the erection of 8 apartments, alterations to existing
access arrangements and removal of 7 trees subject to a Tree Preservation Order
at Land adjoining 53 Brighton Road, Rhyl.

General Debate: Councillor Barry Mellor (Local Member) informed Members that
he was in favour of the proposed development, but was not happy with the design
of the facade which faced the road. Councillor Win Mullen James expressed her
agreement with Councillor Mellor.

Proposal - Councillor Barry Mellor proposed that the application be refused,
contrary to Officer recommendation, on the grounds that the development proposed
did not respect the form, character and design of adjacent buildings and the local
historic environment. Councillor Jeanette Chamberlain Jones seconded the
proposal.

VOTE:
For-9
Against — 13
Abstain — 0

Page 18



14

RESOLVED that permission be REFUSED, contrary to officer recommendation, on
the grounds that the development proposed did not respect the form, character and
design of adjacent buildings and the local historic environment.

S106 LEGAL AGREEMENT TERMS AND UPDATE PLANNING CONDITIONS
FOR OUTLINE PLANNING APPLICATION 40/2013/1585/PO, LAND EAST OF
BODELWYDDAN

The Development Manager introduced the report and provided Members with
details of the Heads of Terms for the proposed S.106 Legal Agreement for the
Bodelwyddan Key Strategic Sites (KSS). He sought Members agreement to allow
Officers to finalise and complete the S.106 Legal Agreement on the basis of the
terms presented, enabling the relevant Outline Planning Permission and conditions
to be issued.

The Chair, Councillor Raymond Bartley, thanked the Development Manager for all
the information provided and the pre-Committee briefing which had taken place on
30 November 2015.

Councillor Alice Jones (Local Member) explained that she could not support the
recommendation in its current form and would request an amendment. The Local
Member confirmed she would put her case in full following debate by Members.

It was confirmed that conditions would be imposed on the outline planning
permission for the development. Community facilities were to be provided as stated
within the report, and confirmed that a contribution of £50,000 would be paid
towards improvements to the existing Community Centre.

Regarding serviced employment land, the development would provide 26 hectares
of employment land, categorised as B1, B2 and B8 uses which would include:
e micro office units for new start-up businesses to attract and retain
Companies in Denbighshire
¢ self-contained offices
hi-tech / workshop / warehouse units with a high ancillary office content and
specification, and
e warehousing / B8 uses.

The Development Planning & Policy Manager confirmed that Bodelwyddan Town
Council had been involved throughout the whole process and Members had
previously agreed the draft Brief following the consultation process.

A lengthy discussion took place as the Local Member scrutinised the report
provided. The Head of Planning and Public Protection confirmed to members that
12 months negotiation had taken place and officers had negotiated the best
development and the best deal.

Proposal - Councillor Alice Jones (Local Member) proposed that the

recommendation be agreed but an additional condition be included. Councillor
Brian Blakeley seconded the proposal.

Page 19



VOTE:
For—-18
Against — 0
Abstain — 0

RESOLVED that:

e Members agree to the proposed heads of terms for the S.106 Legal
Agreement as set out in the table which are in line with the previous
resolution of the Planning Committee (save for the substitution of the
Community Facility Contribution in place of the Abergele Greenway
Contribution). Members are further requested to delegate the finalisation
(with any minor changes) and thereafter the completion of the agreement to
the Head of Planning and Public Protection. In addition that Members allow
the release of the Outline Planning Consent (with the relevant updated
conditions) on the final completion of the S.106 Legal Agreement.

e That a “Community Planning in Progress Group” be set up to jointly work
with Denbighshire County Council to draw up a Bodelwyddan Policy akin to
an Area Action Plan which could guide development across the existing
settlement as well as the urban extension allocation of the KSS, to monitor
and evaluate and influence the spend of money already committee and seek
alternative funding to establish the aspirations of the local community and
enhance the benefit already negotiated and to work with the community to
deliver the expectations of residents for the benefit of the Health and Well
Being of all resident in the town.

Meeting concluded at 1.30 p.m.

Page 20



WARD :

WARD MEMBER:

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL:

LOCATION:

Agenda Iltem 5

Llandyrnog

Councillor Merfyn Parry

09/2015/1121/PF

Conversion of redundant agricultural building to form 3
holiday let accommodation units, demolition of steel
portal farm building and installation of a package

treatment plant

Outbuildings at Efail Y Waen Bodfari Denbigh

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



50 m
100 ft

&
i & Issues

q:,‘-.

)
£ CE RN
[ll_.f Sinks
Lodge
Efail y Waen 6 '“\<\H'afnd-‘_f-Wen
Flaying Field

il

=] i Denbighshire Boundary
© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Sune \3%23408. S
09/2015M1121 sir ddinbci;gcofh %
Scale: 1:2500 denbighshire @

Printed on: 4/1/2016 at 12:22 PM Page 23 © Denbighshire County Council



Page 24




LAYOUT PLAN

44

sy gy T

"SHHOM TTYNILXT
NIGHYD d3S0dO¥d

Wi

W __ SI0Z01 8l

t.l!oL Iy ey - pwas}

“H'N __

la...!u!or...

'HvY4a04
'NIVM A Tivd3

oy %

I o} ¢ Ul 00 en JRErneg
SARE() 5 REL L) o oty

.q_-.uf.ham._ IN]
sapysybiquag
y21quipg 15
YrINED

A eyt BRG] S ey,

Qo
..:__“Em.@..w«&

ONZAYHO JHG FIVOS L0N 0

] S3ION
e .

| oy ondsg

bunsix
&

"AIN3IS H00UdAD0LS

e . 22U/ 70 xoaddy

=/ "GINIVL JOCIH DN LSIXI

1up|d 1uswicaen :
peboyond osigolg _

Pt I

Page 25




Page 26




-a3bolodd
sv mzo_.EEH.

..FQM-EM_OZ ONIDVL NOILYAZTZ 2A1S

_ _
T | 4 -
| N
mll L m
eian FIRUDUBLIY| T [ 0N PO DI
| |
L]
|
]
"1GIM HLNON 9NIDVS NOILYATIZ
§§§§ "SThA ) v Trifad
= _-Mﬂmm- m-ﬂiﬂ- -ﬂ
%]&]ﬁ — s
.ﬂnwx.h&_a_ [11.||..1||I
ONIM T 1] 10ND0 ]
Y9310N A;
444 _ T



Page 28




D - L4

. == =
"SINLLSIXH

SV SNO ._.<\wm.._..m

0Lt S0z LY |

-ty o

HN B,

!
&
i

- |
Lol "1Gv3 HISON ONIDV4 NOILYATI 3015

.....
.....

'1HVA00 — = : g
.zm<3>h__<"_‘ = = = Uil

doreneg § ubrsen hauwdomg | | = 2 = | E 1]pses e . lin Hu—._
U 45 fte .s.rﬂn_ | = E ==
TRINNOI LINDDY _ ._nl. ...ﬁ
aapysybiqualy =l
yafquipq Jls ’ =
=§*u

T I
.....
.....

I

| —

. L=
“ T _ .......n#.,.n....h Lvr... ‘_/
— — M.V "CARDANGD X) O ThTWI] WO LLTOMOD OMy AR DU G HV CBATONR] 79 QU PATINK TY 04 ThS DMUSHG f—\
_ |
m = e T
| "1GIM HLNOS 9ONIDVYY NOILLYATT2 2dIS
_ e
== illl

| i

_ ..vZ.E:

_ _ /[ﬂnh{

| _ | /I.Iﬂﬁ... ...... L \

S Ay 0

Page 29




Page 30



Philip Garner

WARD : Llandyrnog

WARD MEMBER: Councillor Merfyn Parry

APPLICATION NO: 09/2015/1121/PF

PROPOSAL: Conversion of redundant agricultural building to form 3 holiday let

accommodation units, demolition of steel portal farm building and
installation of a package treatment plant

LOCATION: Outbuildings at Efail Y Waen Bodfari Denbigh
APPLICANT: Denbighshire County Council

CONSTRAINTS: None

PUBLICITY Site Notice — No

UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice — No

Neighbour letters — Yes

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
ABERWHEELER COMMUNITY COUNCIL —
“Members have no objection to this planning application as long as the development does not
expand further. It appears Aberwheeler has a large number of holiday lets that has very little
use e.g. the recent development at Grove Hall”.

WELSH WATER —
No objections - standard comments relating to water discharge and sewerage.

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES

Biodiversity Officer —

No objection subject to the development being carried out in strict compliance with the
recommendations in the Protected Species Survey and Visual Tree Inspection report in respect
of measures to mitigate potential impacts on European protected species and other sensitive
receptors.

Highway Officer —
No objection subject to the inclusion of a condition requiring the provision of parking and turning
facilities.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:
Neutral representation received from:
i) MrJ Arthur Jones, Hafoty-Wen, Bodfari

Summary of planning based representations:

i) No objection as long as the plans are followed in respect of materials and structure;
i) The visibility from the access is poor coming out of the site;

i) Dwellings for the local community would be more beneficial than holiday lets.

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 04/01/2016

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION:
e Awaiting determination by Committee

REASON APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE
e Scheme of Delegation 2.2.7

Page 31



PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
THE PROPOSAL.:
1.1 Summary of proposals

1.

1.1.1

The scheme proposes to demolish one of a series of three connected buildings at the
site and to convert the remaining two attached buildings into use as three units for
holiday let accommodation.

The conversion buildings are comprised of a barn to the front (north west) with two
attached built structures to the rear (south east), the rearmost one of which is to be
demolished. The barn is open fronted but otherwise the structures are of brick
construction with pitched roofs over.

The development proposes to block up the pen side of the barn using natural timber
cladding on a new block wall with a front door and three windows added per unit. The
boarding is then continued round the other three sides of the two remaining buildings
to form a uniform appearance, with the roofs being replaced with natural slate to
again produce a co-ordinated conversion.

Each unit will contain an open plan lounge/dining room/kitchen to the front with an en-
suite bedroom on the ground floor along with a wec and store, with stairs then leading
up to three further bedrooms with another bathroom.

Externally, access will be taken via the existing entrance off the road and the plans
show parking for three cars located adjacent to the south western side of the
buildings, with small garden areas formed at the rear. A new Biodisc treatment plant
is proposed to be located south west of the car parking area within an open field, to
serve the three units.

The application is accompanied by a Design and Access Statement which suggests
that the development will help the County Council Farm Estate remain productive and
therefore secure employment. A Protected Species Report and Visual Tree
Assessment is also provided which found no evidence of bats in the building and that
no trees are required to be removed for the development but suggesting that some
remedial works are undertaken to improve the health of the specimens.

The plans at the front of the report show the relevant details of the application.

The buildings and land form part of the Council’s Agricultural Estate. The Design and
Access Statement explains that to help ensure the future viability of the Estate and
provide future employment for the tenant and his family, it has been agreed to
dispose of the buildings.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings

1.2.1

1.2.2

The site lies on the eastern side of the road running out from the village at
Aberwheeler to Grove Hall, south of Bodfari.

The outbuildings are to the south of the farmhouse and agricultural buildings which
are arranged around the farm yard. Open fields lie to the rear and side of the
application site, with further fields across the road, which is bounded by hedgerows to
each side.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations

1.3.1

The site stands outside of the development boundary and in an area without any
specific designation in the Local Development Plan.

1.4 Relevant planning history

1.4.1

Records show a previous consent for an agricultural building on the site in 2001.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission

Page 32



2.

1.5.1 None.

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 None.

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 09/2001/0754 — Erection of agricultural building for the housing of livestock: Granted
31/10/2001.

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
The main planning policies and guidance are conS|dered to be:
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4™ June 2013)
Policy PSE 4 — Re-use and adaptation of rural buildings in open countryside
Policy PSE 5 — Rural Economy
Policy PSE 14 — Outdoor Activity Tourism

3.1 Supplementary Planning Guidance
SPG — Re-use and Adaptation of Rural Buildings

3.2 Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 8 January 2016
Circulars
TAN 6 — Planning for Sustainable Communities
TAN 12 — Design
TAN 13 — Tourism

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 8, January 2016 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning
applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan
for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

4. Principle

41 2 Visual amenity

4.1.3 Residential amenity

4.1.4 Highways (including access and parking)
415

Biodiversity

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle of the Conversion

The proposal is for the conversion of a building in the open countryside to holiday
use. Local Development Plan Policy PSE 4, Re-use and adaptation of rural
buildings in open countryside, allows for such conversions where the scheme of
conversion makes a positive contribution to the landscape, any architectural features
of merit are retained, and where the proposal is for conversion to residential use, it is
demonstrated that an employment use is not viable, and the resulting dwelling is

Page 33



affordable for local needs. In this instance the proposal is for holiday
accommodation rather than straight residential use.

Policy PSE 5 outlines the general intent of the Local Development Plan to help
sustain the rural economy, through the support of tourism and commercial
development, subject to detailed criteria relating to the character and distinctive
qualities of the local landscape.

Policy PSE 14 is also applicable as it encourages development proposals which
expand or reinforce the tourism offer of the County and such schemes will be
supported with the emphasis of the conversion of suitable buildings.

Overall, the scheme is considered to be acceptable in principle as the proposed
conversion is for a holiday use, rather than for a conversion for a permanent
residential use, which would need to comply with much stricter criteria.

4.2.2 Visual amenity
In referring to what may be regarded as material considerations, Planning Policy

Wales 3.1.4 refers to the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings,
the means of access, landscaping, service availability and the impact on the
neighbourhood and on the environment. The impact of a development on visual
amenity is therefore a relevant test on planning applications. This is emphasised in
Paragraph 3.1.7, which states that proposals should be considered in terms of their
effect on the amenity and existing use of land and buildings in the public interest.

Policy PSE 4 and the SPG require the re-use of rural buildings to be undertaken in a
sympathetic manner and recognise that proposals to convert such buildings in a
sensitive and well-designed manner can have a positive effect on the environment
and ensures that these historic/traditional buildings are restored and serve a
practical purpose into the future

The scheme involves a number of changes to the external appearance of the two
retained adjoining buildings, particularly the front of the barn which is presently open
in nature, and proposes to clad the buildings in a uniform wooden boarding as
described earlier. Other than the changes to the fagade, the development proposes
a slate roof over the buildings and the net result will be a series of three holiday lets
which are of a coherent design and make beneficial use of the currently vacant
structures.

On this basis, as the overall character of the buildings will be retained, it is
considered that the scheme is appropriate in respect of visual amenity impacts.

4.2.3 Residential amenity
Planning Policy Wales 3.1.4 refers to the number, size, layout, design and
appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping, service availability and
the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment as potentially material
considerations. The impact of a development on residential amenity is therefore a
relevant test on planning applications. This is emphasised in Paragraph 3.1.7, which
states that proposals should be considered in terms of their effect on the amenity
and existing use of land and buildings in the public interest. As the Courts have ruled
that the individual interest is an aspect of the public interest, it is therefore valid to
consider the effect of a proposal on the amenity of neighbouring properties.

The only nearby property is the existing farmhouse to the north which appeared to
be vacant at the time of the case officer site visit in November 2015. This lies to the
north of outbuildings which are not the subject of this application, and has its own
access further up the road.

Page 34



It is not considered that the proposals would give rise to adverse impacts on the
residential amenities of the occupiers of the farmhouse, and the scheme itself would
provide adequate levels of amenity for occupiers of the holiday units.

4.2.4 Highways (including access and parking)
Planning Policy Wales 3.1.4 refers to what may be regarded as material
considerations and that these can include the number, size, layout, design and
appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping, service availability and
the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment. The acceptability of
means of access is therefore a standard test on most planning applications. Policy
ASA 3 requires adequate parking spaces for cars and bicycles in connection with
development proposals, and outlines considerations to be given to factors relevant to
the application of standards. These policies reflect general principles set out in
Planning Policy Wales (Section 8) and TAN 18 — Transport, in support of sustainable
development.

The access arrangements into the site remain as existing and with respect to the
representation made, it is not considered that the level of use which will result from
the holiday units would lead to a harm to highway safety. The layout proposed for
the scheme only depicts parking for three disabled bays with seemingly no specific
parking annotated for the three 4-bedroom holiday lets. As there is ample space
around the development to provide further parking, it is suggested that a condition
can be imposed to ensure that adequate parking and turning facilities are provided
within the site.

4.2.5 Biodiversity
Policy VOE 5 requires due assessment of potential impacts on protected species or

designated sites of nature conservation, including mitigation proposals, and
suggests that permission should not be granted where proposals are likely to cause
significant harm to such interests. This reflects policy and guidance in Planning
Policy Wales (Section 5.2), current legislation and SPG 18 — Nature Conservation
and Species Protection, which stress the importance of the planning system in
meeting biodiversity objectives through promoting approaches to development which
create new opportunities to enhance biodiversity, prevent biodiversity losses, or
compensate for losses where damage is unavoidable.

The comments offered by the Biodiversity Officer are noted, and the scheme is
recommended to be conditioned to be undertaken in accordance with the submitted
report.

5 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
5.1 Whilst there are significant works proposed to the open fronted barn, the application is
considered to present more benefits than negatives and is recommended to be granted.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than the expiration
of five years beginning with the date of this permission.
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict accordance with details shown

on the following submitted plans and documents unless specified as otherwise within any
other condition pursuant to this permission:

(i) Elevations as existing (Drawing No. 4) received 10 November 2015 (ii) Elevations as
existing (Drawing No. 5) received 10 November 2015 (iii) Floor plan as existing (Drawing No.
3) received 10 November 2015 (iv) Elevations as proposed (Drawing No. 7) received 10
November 2015 (v) Proposed ground floor plan (Drawing No. 9) received 10 November 2015
(vi) Proposed first floor plan (Drawing No. 10) received 10 November 2015 (vii) Proposed
section (Drawing No. 6) received 10 November 2015 (viii) Existing block plan (Drawing No. 1)

Page 35



received 10 November 2015 (ix) Proposed block plan (Drawing No. 22) received 10
November 2015 (x) Location plan (Drawing No. 8) received 10 November 2015

3. No development shall be permitted to commence until the written approval of the Local
Planning Authority has been obtained to the proposed external materials to be used on the
buildings. The development shall be completed in accordance with the details approved
under this condition.

4. Notwithstanding the submitted details, the parking and turning arrangements shall not be as
shown, and none of the units shall be permitted to be brought into use until the written
approval of the Local Planning Authority has been obtained to alternative proposals, and
those details as approved have been completed. The facilities approved under this condition
shall be retained at all times for use in connection with the units.

5. All development shall take place in accordance with the recommendations of the submitted
Protected Species Survey and Visual Tree Assessment.

6. The development hereby permitted shall be occupied as holiday accommodation only and
shall not be occupied as a person's sole or main place of residence.

7. An up to date register shall be kept of all persons occupying the accommodation, including

the names of all the occupiers, their main home addresses, and the date of their arrival and
departure from the site. The register shall be made available for inspection on request by the
Local Planning Authority.

The reasons for the conditions are:-

1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of development.

3. In the interest of visual amenity.

4. In the interests of highway safety.

5. In the interests of nature conservation.

6. The planning permission has only been granted on the basis of policies relating to tourist
development and residential use would be contrary to local and national policy.

7. In order that the Local Planning Authority can monitor the use and ensure the terms of the
planning permission are met.

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

Your attention is drawn to the attached Highway Supplementary Notes Nos. 1, 3, 4, 5 & 10.

Your attention is drawn to the attached Part N form (New Road and Street Works Act 1991).

Page 36



WARD :

WARD MEMBERS:

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL:

LOCATION:

Agenda Iltem 6

Llandyrnog
Councillor Merfyn Parry
18/2015/0887/ PF

Change of use of part of listed building and part of
courtyard for weddings and other functions in
association with existing hotel business, including
erection of detached marquee and covered timber
walkway within courtyard and use of paddock as
overspill parking area (partly in retrospect)

Pentre Mawr Country House Hotel Llandyrnog
Denbigh

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



50 m
100 ft

Pentré-bach

o
xuk'é:"ﬁ
\h&-‘
«?"*":‘:\L~
Denbighshire Boundary
© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Suney 100023408. S

18/2015/0887 sir ddinbych <t
Scale: 1:2500 hshire Q&

Printed on: 4/1/2016 at 12:36 PM Page 39 © Denbighshire County Council



Page 40



PROPOSED LATOUT
PLAN

005t NYd 3LIS

\\.
-
\ \

P13y

WIS Sh Y VM af

U Sl

THAYGAR S 10 FMANS S G OIToU
GIIPINIS SIaULY S0l O it
SOMAE) PRI TN YEINAS PRIV Pl
JO TIN5 T} jO SHOLINE TREVKSI G
MGG IO JO SHARDNID THIMG

45707 pmos [00LL 3005

FIPVLLYD 130555 Q15T a .n

f0 5BV PTG 6MISiRD

oy JOTES O B0
YRINED 0T Ty

yaog anuad
CHEINR XM

AP D SY bl VY

IEE S ES o

| HIM NYd 3UIS Q3S0408d- € 90

[ 7 9ONHAONYTY WMVIW JHIN3d

(251 /51 PRSI * G BANING }

{ GG PRI CIILETEH ST GPda)
QRINPPISTNEN TR HIIST Y404 Gf TOXTGMA
] 12 PHIRS FO FLINRNXT SEPI0N awy Paiod

*U_.._

buipprg yDsnpnatko

23L0H ~ on

—Vauppy TIPS IPNIYGY 4O IR0 TS
7 TTHY SO )T WO of ) 3pe

ES9L S PR T
GUIPING 2 Pspunyzpi
TNENRY JO (LIPS PIFYAY

FHDIDL JRYTRIIRY [Hofs] LI £
r ORI JI JUEID STPIA Wi PRea

0PI LAy
JPII PIITENT [HPALAIGS

4L 8 WP pRIST]

Yoy Wwals
LML BTID Wil

FOpS D EHDUDE PITD J1SHM

VTG PINIRY veeld

BTG J 0] [IU]903 Gty
“FAeTueN [ DKL 1NOYS

TICHIZ] HNOL ~ HUT
POl 7 (Zophinnm B
VG KT O DafN

UUU

Feg wnos | 00kl Mv3d

S3RUG GHOID Magourny TR ANTRY BI%, 3
s Eﬂwh‘ Rl 3 m%mmmmg _sr.%\gﬁ.
i JR0Y 61
2 7o e o kA
o n ng
GHIPIP IS EISUD HEM .35\ 15
‘ Haﬂmﬁe e ”ﬁ‘s ‘ \ e 17 mey oo \
wﬁwa Sl g gy oy jof S A
Lisd 4] . 5
ﬂﬂéﬁ. _.Ew.x% L4 oA : PRy SSUI70 SO0 Eﬁ.ﬁ@ﬂwﬂﬁu
o umDj Roe_\uum Jonosug
. sy
\ t W3 YONTS SISTIE
5 SEITR JUT N 6D N\ GIMAYD) 3 Fin0) Ay
 SGLiIRI0 ON N\ SWOHUTY GIpPTM
¥ a aeds I oy

BPI racd 40 pusonmy
PREOE UNOS J1i)

ﬁ:h@_hhm@m GRS SRR U SXDAD
TIMERIAD ATRSTL O Y e
FHOGTD LY POE BYUIDY GIISIT X, 201
aof EEPHEOT PFRAN0D TIANGY &) TS
UMD} JIIPGLINGT GO PRAS 1040

= J2 BiR} OTPAL(G Ul BIRINTS SOy
FPYRNOG] B5TT JO0 TINVIS SRR OP I

IGNSTIIY WALSER)

N

Dano. A1

1 uy\, T ke




Page 42



Husses ouer Supbort Had thortal

oot Shuctune.
1820151080 7/PF
FLOON PLANS OF

LAISTUD Pabal wittdoeds

/
e

R e
A bitsed futhe/ studfaes as Sown wifle

H tedon, € biactd Tela boarlud. choni
woodstuu Bl

cerernony

sk Hooy' ol . D

T 12 73
# I
J | e | I'I_I i L
e =
\ eyshits hwturwmdaw.ﬂ
FIRST FLlIRl
e
A
Nolt, barand aucillan fidaes el ..
ol Rathaulins wAcendet s marquee dining
Agt atlncitad to lited buldind.
bofffes — XSHeA9 X rernal oloors 1o Soulhs
I\ _fridees. Wash [5ae I\ _
f i [
o =L b ‘
) St it g bl s
e i f0cF bad ovar
aver,
bar | musgic =

2

akishud m:!w Skafy
lounge % T R

mml boardid £ hizd daics Feor X

;‘?&% aid oves” EXISTIHD arSTIS Bass Verae.

dancing

hahway.

PROPOSED]

PENTRE _MAWR




Page 44



ELEVATION PLANS OF

DANCING A
CEREM :

—r —— ——— .

Y
g

T70IA (OWITIH L
HEENEE

BuiL PING

BUITYq PYp

ysiny ISP FOq0 J/#
TRPE JAIMY. WANSZ X 00 ==~

T g YLV T
SRS B ey \._ulf..t

IRIOG 7 TL HIBIX T
PR g Pt HEEER

0vl J3LINHS MOONIM TVNYILN 03S0d408d  #

7o
HODHS SO SIRINHS TEWIERN (T4
I Poyy P Q) PRI SYOVDP K

TEPmOpTD SOY -
4
ST GIYSIAD gnﬂuﬂ. msﬂw

Page 45

E %ié

001 PO GHSHD

PRy Girysix 4

ddrioeofsiozst




Page 46



7 AP SSTAD
——  —= [ 1S3M -HINDS . ST RSP 71 0D 1o MRl
DTS Iy T PIYID D507 SIS

PPN =
FOGHHIS PEOIY] 1 A 7 570 PHO 2610}
3 JPME DG GHYSIXT

. on
fy=Tlre ] QeSu%tmwwg\%:w Bzw "GOCHON DL SV | 9TI0E /
FUPVELSARY DIMPITIYS FOMYIAY “RION  GMORIHD Wity & JPHLOH PG HI PARGIVTY BUIpING ODISH) DYE 4O
. PG FUN SOAHD] J2HIDH0T PRy PIUYd GUIIPS D] WD 041 TOVISI (Y I N~
201w B [P SHOWVIREIS 0 _||.I._.m<m H1H0N GUYNEM p2paa0s DPIALY Of SBMYD HiDlq TSI @ HerOIfS LGL SN BHIPITY <t
gl JBQMY PARRS GRUID A0 wmag 2 af RUMHIDM PRITACT 30 00y PASI GUHSIXD O DUINT] DHONOUIS ®
—ﬂ.u 4 T _ g
_ Al S
ARUITHIDAR h AN FITRION f0 GMYS PARUYY a
Lol T T [ T T — A R I )
i) [3N9 | DOIVE EHYSYD

[ AvmMIvM Q343A0D G3S008d
[00rt 79G SONHMAONYT ¥MVW 3HLN3d |

4d1L08pi5L0Zpl




Page 48



lan Weaver
WARD : Llandyrnog

WARD MEMBERS: Councillor Merfyn Parry
APPLICATION NO: 18/2015/0887/ PF

PROPOSAL.: Change of use of part of listed building and part of
courtyard for weddings and other functions in association
with existing hotel business, including erection of detached
marquee and covered timber walkway within courtyard and
use of paddock as overspill parking area (partly in

retrospect)
LOCATION: Pentre Mawr Country House Hotel Llandyrnog Denbigh
APPLICANT: Mr Graham Carrington-Sykes
CONSTRAINTS: Listed Building
PUBLICITY Site Notice — No
UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice — No

Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Referral by Head of Planning / Development Control Manager

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
LLANDYRNOG COMMUNITY COUNCIL
“There were no observations or objections.... supported.”

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES —

Head of Highways and Infrastructure

- Highways Officer
Refers to previous concerns over the proposals in relation to the local highway
network to the site being narrow with limited passing places and the likely traffic
generated for a wedding function for 140-200 guests, and to requests for provision
to be made for passing places along the approach road leading from the south
towards Llandyrnog, and related measures along the B5429 in order to support the
application. States that none of these issues has been addressed, and that if
planning permission is to be considered then conditions should be attached to
address them (passing places along the lane, availability of overspill parking area
at all times, and scheme of signage to discourage use of minor road east to the
B5429).

Page 49



- Pollution Control Officer
Does not object, but has concerns over noise levels and suggests if permission is
granted then strong conditions be applied to ensure that nearby residential amenity
is protected. Lists a number of conditions for consideration.

- Conservation Architect
No objection to the proposals. In conclusion, considers these are not detrimental to
the historical character of the listed buildings and do not affect the essential setting
of the listed buildings. The proposals will allow the business to develop and grow,
which can only be beneficial to the long term maintenance and condition of all the
buildings within the group.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:
Representations received from:

In objection
Aaron and Partners, Solicitors, on behalf of Mr and Mrs Edwards, Pentre Bach, Llandyrnog

Mrs S. Edwards, Pentre Bach, Llandyrnog

Summary of planning based representations in objection:
Noise and disturbance

Occupiers of dwelling need peace and quiet to rest, including children during term time /
existing use of hotel has caused considerable noise nuisance to occupiers of Pentre Bach,
and has been under investigation by environmental health department / sources of noise
and disturbance are music from hotel functions, singing and chanting encouraged by DJ’s
running discos; shouting, singing and swearing from guests leaving in the early morning;
cars screeching along the lane late at night and taxi horns alerting guests they have arrived;
inappropriate activities in hot tubs / use has been allowed to continue for two summers /
submissions recognise noise is an issue but do not provide technical information to support
this assertion or inform the local planning authority of the effect that attenuation by the
masonry structure may provide, and there is no background noise level against which noise
from the development should be assessed, and no acoustic report submitted in support of
the application / it is suggested specific measures be considered to reduce noise at the point
of generation, to provide sound insulation or other containment measures, to design the
layout of the space between the noise source and noise sensitive building, and limiting the
operating time of the noise source and setting an acceptable noise limit.

Council should not determine application until a proper noise assessment report is produced
by the applicants to allow assessment of the impact of noise generated by the development.

Conflict with planning policies and guidance

Noise is a planning consideration contained in planning policies in the Local Development
Plan, Welsh Government’s Technical Advice Note 11

Page 50



Other matters
Land ownership issues

Notification of the planning application has not been served on the agricultural tenant / owner
occupier of Pentre Bach farms land at Pentre Mawr and Ty Bracia in partnership with his
father and brother and the father is the agricultural tenant of the yard and listed building
included in the application / owners of Pentre Mawr have unlawfully fenced off the yard and
building the subject of the application / there is a legal dispute regarding the farming tenancy

Objections to issue of separate licence for functions and concerns over process relating to
licence / seem to be getting minimal consideration from neighbours and the Council /
concerns over statements made in submissions over neighbours actions

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):

J protracted negotiations resulting in amended plans

J re-consultations / further publicity necessary on amended plans and / or
additional information

J awaiting consideration by Committee

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL.:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1 The application relates to developments in connection with the staging of
weddings and other functions, associated with the existing Country House
Hotel enterprise at Pentre Mawr, Llandyrnog. It follows the withdrawal of a
previous application of different detailing in September 2015.

1.1.2 The application should be read in conjunction with the listed building consent
application forming the subject of the following item on the agenda, code no.
18/2015/0888.

1.1.3 The proposed site layout is shown on the plan at the front of the report. The
main elements are:
- The siting of a marquee within the courtyard area to the south east of the
main Pentre Mawr Country Hotel building. The marquee is indicated on the
submitted plans as a white canvas cover on a steel frame.

- The use of two sections of existing outbuildings forming the courtyard in
connection with the functions use :
o The Gallery Building, for use by wedding guests as a quiet lounge
waiting area and WC'’s
o A 15m x 7m section of one of the range of outbuildings on the eastern
side of the courtyard, for music and dancing
- The erection of a timber structure running from the gallery building to the
marquee, to enclose a lawn area
- The erection of an acoustic fence on the south west side of the marquee

Page 51



- The provision of an overflow parking area in a paddock area immediately
to the west of the existing parking area to the west of the Pentre Mawr
Country Hotel.

- Suggested pedestrian circulation patterns for functions.

1.1.4 The application is in part retrospective, as the marquee has already been

sited on the land forming the garden area of Pentre Mawr, and the two
buildings shown on the plan for use as a lounge area and music and dancing
have been used for functions in 2015.

The plans at the front of the report also show the relationship of the buildings
and the complex to the nearest dwelling in separate ownership at Pentre Bach
to the south, and the location of outbuildings buildings granted permission for
conversion to accommodation units in connection with Pentre Mawr in
February 2015.

The application is accompanied by a Design and Access Statement
incorporating a Listed Building Justification Statement, a property Structural
Condition report, and was supplemented in November 2015 by an Acoustic
Report by Cheshire Environmental Services.

The Design and Access Statement refers to the 5 star hotel and tourism
business at Pentre Mawr, offering high quality accommodation and dining
facilities. It states the hotel has identified wedding functions as a suitable
additional facility that would enhance the business and provide maintenance
funding for the substantial range of listed buildings. The use of a marquee has
been suggested to provide the necessary space and it is suggested this would
be erected for the relevant periods when functions are booked, and that it
would be a temporary structure stored away for the remainder of the year.

1.1.8 It is stated in the Design and Access Statement that the hoteliers have

recognised that functions may lead to noise disturbance (from music and
dancing) to the nearby dwelling and have identified the existing barn as a
suitable location to accommodate the music and dancing, as siting it within a
dense masonry structure will limit noise emanating to an acceptable level,
assisted by the ‘L’ shape of the building which would provide a screening
effect. It is further stated that to ensure there is no damage to residential
amenity at the dwelling, noise monitoring is undertaken and a noise limiter will
be fitted to the sound system to ensure noise levels are strictly and
automatically controlled. The Statement also mentions the position of the
marquee has been chosen to ensure the masonry structures adjacent provide
a natural buffer and screen for noise to protect the residential amenity at
Pentre Bach.

1.1.9 In relation to the listed buildings, it is stated in the Design and Access

Statement that the setting of the marquee within the courtyard of largely
redundant buildings will not really have any adverse impact on the listed
buildings, being a temporary structure erected for a limited period within the
courtyard, then being returned to its open appearance when it is stored away
while not in use. It is suggested that the proposed use of part of the listed
barn building for music and dancing does not have any impact on the listed

Page 52



building, the only works being the provision of temporary shutters to the upper
windows to provide additional noise limitation, which it is stated does not
impact on the character of the listed structure.

1.1.10The Acoustic Report provides a site survey identifying site features, an
assessment to show the impact of amplified sound and people noise on the
nearest residential dwelling, and recommends noise mitigation measures to
ensure noise from the venue does not have an adverse effect on the dwelling.
The contents are referred to in more detail in section 4.2.3 of the report.

1.1.11The applicants have submitted supporting information explaining the
development of the Country House business and the commercial
considerations leading to the diversification into wedding functions in 2013
and 2014. They have forwarded a number of letters from local businesses and
suppliers in support of the application. They have also provided commentary
on the noise issues arising from the functions use and efforts made to
address them following complaints, and investigation by officers of the Public
Protection Section.

1.1.12Pentre Mawr and its main outbuildings are Grade |l Listed Buildings

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1  The Pentre Mawr complex of buildings is located approximately 2km north
of Llandyrnog village.

1.2.2 Itis accessed off minor roads from the B5429. The vehicular access
serving the Country House is a driveway off the minor road. The drive runs
past the front of the main house to the parking area to the west.

1.2.3 The building complex consists of an historic Manor House (as noted, a
Grade Il listed building) and a range of outbuildings, most of which are also
listed buildings. There are also more modern agricultural buildings
including a silo and a portal frame building in the south / south west part of
the complex.

1.2.4 The main building at Pentre Mawr is in use as a bed and breakfast
business with dining facilities and there are a number of ‘tented bedrooms’
on land immediately to the west of the main house. The parking area for
visitors is located 40 metres to the north west of the main house at Pentre
Mawr, and has a capacity of up to approximately 15 spaces. It is
understood that a grassed paddock area immediately to the west of this is
used as overspill parking when the need arises.

1.2.5 An area of the courtyard immediately to the south of the main house has
been in use in connection with the bed and breakfast business and owners
private accommodation. Its extent has been defined by a substantial stone
wall which until recently divided the area enclosed by the range of
outbuildings. Land and buildings to the south side of the wall has been in
use in connection with an agricultural business, which is referred to in
Section 1.6 of the report.

Page 53



1.2.6

There is a dwelling in separate ownership to the south west of the
outbuildings, at Pentre Bach. The relative location and proximity of Pentre
Bach to the application site can be seen from the plans at the front of the
report.

1.3Relevant planning constraints/considerations

1.3.1

1.3.2

The site is located in the open countryside.

Pentre Mawr and its outbuildings are Grade Il Listed Buildings.

1.4Relevant planning history

1.4.1

1.4.2

1.4.3

1.4.4

The bed and breakfast use at Pentre Mawr has developed gradually over
time from an incidental use to the dwelling. The owners obtained planning
consent to use the ‘Manor’ house as a bed and breakfast facility / Country
House Hotel in October 2013, involving use of 3 out of 5 bedrooms as
guest accommodation. Planning permission was granted for the retention
of 6 tented bedrooms’ used in connection with the facilities in the main
house, in June 2014. Permission was granted in February 2015 for the
conversion of two of the agricultural buildings into accommodation units for
use in connection with Pentre Mawr. The 2015 permission has not been
commenced at the time of drafting this report.

The Council was made aware during 2014 of the introduction of a marquee
in the garden area of the property, used in connection with the staging of
functions, including weddings. This was the subject of separate
enforcement investigation and led to the submission of planning and listed
building applications in March 2015 to retain the marquee, to use the
Gallery building and part of the courtyard in connection with the functions.
Following receipt of responses and in particular concerns over the noise
arising during functions, these applications were withdrawn in September
2015 on submission of the current planning and listed building applications.

The listed building application submitted is being handled under application
code no. 18/2015/0888/LB, and forms the subject of the following report on
the agenda.

There is a separate application dealing with a variation of one of the
conditions imposed on the February 2015 permission for the conversion of
the 2 outbuildings to self contained living accommodation. This application,
code no. 18/2015/0327 forms the subject of the report following the one on
the listed building consent application.

1.5Developments/changes since the original submission

1.5.1

1.5.2

As noted in 1.1.3, the application is submitted in retrospect as the marquee
has been erected and events have been held in it and the outbuildings
which are now the subject of the application.

In terms of planning matters the carrying out of uses and development in
anticipation of the grant of permission is not to be condoned, and this has
led to repeated concerns from the neighbours over noise and disturbance.
There has been investigation of complaints over noise nuisance, and
Officers in the Public Protection Section have offered ‘without prejudice’
advice on potential measures to mitigate impacts and on matters of
concern in relation to the playing of music and the noise break out from the
marquee, including that due to ‘people noise’. To this extent, the holding of

Page 54



events has allowed opportunity for the Public Protection Officers to
undertake noise monitoring which has provided useful information on the
impact of the use and has assisted with assessment of the acceptability of
the proposals.

1.5.3 The Public Protection Officer requested submission of an independent
Noise Assessment to assist consideration of the application. This was
forwarded in November 2015, and the objectors and their representatives
have been offered opportunity to comment on the contents.

1.60Other relevant background information
1.6.1  Members will note reference in the Response to Publicity Section of the
report to matters relating to land ownership. These also arose in the course
of progressing the applications relating to the conversion of outbuildings to
additional hotel accommodation, submitted in late 2014.

1.6.2 The applicant’s agent is aware of representations and has confirmed in
December 2015 that on the basis of information provided by his clients and
solicitors that the correct certificate of ownership has been submitted with
the applications.

1.6.3 Members may appreciate that the Local Planning Authority can not
become involved in any civil dispute over claims to ownership and it is
considered appropriate to move to determine the application. In the
circumstances, it would be normal to include a note to applicant on a
Certificate of Decision advising the applicants of the challenge to legal
statements on ownership.

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.118/2008/0289 - Construction of 6 no. chalets, landscaping and pedestrian access
routes. GRANTED 18/06/2014

2.218/2013/0981 - Mixed use of premises as dwelling and bed and breakfast facility
(retrospective application). Granted 16/10/2013

2.318/2014/0793/PF - Change of use of outbuildings to form 2 no. self-contained
suites of hotel letting accommodation, demolition of steel silo, steel framed
agricultural building and stone wall; installation of a package treatment plant and
associated works. GRANTED 18/02/2015

2.418/2014/0794/LB - Change of use of outbuildings to form 2 no. self-contained
suites of hotel letting accommodation, demolition of steel silo, steel framed
agricultural building and stone wall; installation of a package treatment plant and
associated works (Listed Building application). GRANTED 20/04/2015

2.518/2015/0325 — Change of use of existing gallery building and part of courtyard for
wedding and other functions associated with existing hotel business and including
erection of detached marquee within courtyard area. WITHDRAWN 08/09/2015.

2.618/2015/ 0326 - 18/2015/0325 — Change of use of existing gallery building and part
of courtyard for wedding and other functions associated with existing hotel business
and including erection of detached marquee within courtyard area. WITHDRAWN
08/09/2015

Page 55



3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4" June 2013)

Policy PSE5 — Rural economy
Policy VOET1 - Key areas of importance
Policy ASA3 — Parking standards

3.1Supplementary Planning Guidance
Re-use and adaptation of Rural Buildings

3.2Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 8 January 2016

Technical Advice Notes — TAN 6 Planning for sustainable rural communities July
2010

3.30ther material considerations
4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning
application, Planning Policy Wales Edition 8, January 2016 (PPW) confirms the
requirement that planning applications 'should be determined in accordance with the
approved or adopted development plan for the area, unless material considerations
indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that material considerations must be
relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in the public interest, and
fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these can include
the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the
environment (Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations
which are considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to
be:

4.1.1Principle

4.1.2Visual amenity

4.1.3Landscape

4.1.4Residential amenity (including noise) impacts
4.1.5Ecology

4.1.6Drainage
4 1.7 Highways (including access and parking)

4.1.8Inclusive design
4.1.9Impact on Listed Building

Other matters

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:

Page 56



4.2.1 Principle
The main policy in the Local Development Plan which is relevant to tourism /

business related development is PSES5, which offers general support for
proposals which make a contribution to sustainable development. The policy
contains four tests relating to employment proposals for conversions and new
build. These require that the proposal is appropriate in scale and nature to its
location; that any suitable buildings are converted or reused in preference to
new build; proposals for new build are supported by a business case; and full
account is taken of impacts where proposals are in the AONB, AOB or World
Heritage site.

PSEDS5 reflects the general support in the Local Development Plan to develop
the local economy and businesses. Section 11 of Planning Policy Wales 7
emphasises the importance of tourism to economic prosperity and job
creation, supporting the objectives to encourage community well-being, whilst
protecting and giving value to natural heritage and culture, all in the context of
minimising environmental impact.

Having regard to the elements of the proposals in relation to policy PSE 5:

- The scale and nature of the proposals are considered appropriate to the
location (subject to due regard to the specific impacts dealt with in subsequent
paragraphs)

- The development involves use of existing buildings (The Gallery and part of
the main Listed Building), a use of land (the marquee), and limited ‘new build’
in the form of a timber shelter to enclose a lawned area.

- Given the limited relevance of the timber shelter to the scheme, it is not
considered relevant that this extent of new build development should have to
be justified by a business case

- The site is not in any statutory designated landscape or World Heritage site
It is suggested therefore that the general principle of the proposals are
acceptable in relation to the policy. The key issues are considered to be the
localised impact of the proposals, which are reviewed in the following sections
of the report.

422 Visual amenity / design

In referring to what may be regarded as material considerations, Planning
Policy Wales 3.1.4 refers to the number, size, layout, design and appearance
of buildings, the means of access, landscaping, service availability and the
impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment. The impact of a
development on visual amenity is therefore a relevant test on planning
applications. This is emphasised in Paragraph 3.1.7, which states that
proposals should be considered in terms of their effect on the amenity and
existing use of land and buildings in the public interest. As the Courts have
ruled that the individual interest is an aspect of the public interest, it is
therefore valid to consider the visual amenity implications of a proposal as a
material consideration.

There are no adverse representations raised in relation to the visual impact of
the proposals. The Conservation Officer has no objections to the siting of the

Page 57



marquee and the detailing of the works on the Gallery or main range listed
building.

In Officers’ opinion, in terms purely of the design detailing, the plans in
relation to the Gallery and the listed building demonstrate a sensitive
approach to the task of adaptation to the intended use. The marquee is only
partially visible from the Pentre Bach direction, and the combination of this
and the proposed acoustic / boundary fencing would mean the development
would have not have an unreasonable effect in terms of visual impact to the
extent that it would be unacceptable.

423 Landscape impact

Policy VOE 1 relating to key areas of importance seeks to protect areas
designated of natural landscape value and Historic Landscapes from
development which may adversely affect them. Due consideration has
therefore to be given to the impact of proposals on the Vale of Clwyd Historic
Landscape, which the site lies within. The requirement to take account of
landscape impact is reflected in general advice in Planning Policy Wales 7
and Technical Advice Note 12: Design.

There are no representations raising issues relating to the landscape impact
of the proposals.

Officers’ view is that the development would not have unacceptable effect on
the Vale of Clwyd Historic Landscape Area. The marquee, Gallery building,
and the main range listed building are not visible from wider viewpoints and
the proposals do not involve significant changes which would have an impact
in wider landscape terms.

4.2.4 Residential amenity

Planning Policy Wales 3.1.4 refers to the number, size, layout, design and
appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping, service
availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment as
potentially material considerations. The impact of a development on
residential amenity is therefore a relevant test on planning applications. This
is emphasised in Paragraph 3.1.7, which states that proposals should be
considered in terms of their effect on the amenity and existing use of land and
buildings in the public interest. As the Courts have ruled that the individual
interest is an aspect of the public interest, it is therefore valid to consider the
residential amenity implications of a development as a material consideration.

Objections have been received from and on behalf of the owner / occupiers of
Pentre Bach expressing concerns at the impact of the proposals in terms of
noise and disturbance. The basis of the concerns are that events held already
have reduced the enjoyment of the property, creating unacceptable
disturbance to a silent environment. They acknowledge efforts being made to
mitigate noise experienced previously, but have concerns over the impact of
the thump from music played and the ‘people noise’ from voices and dining
during evenings, along with laughter and singing, including at unsocial hours.
It is suggested that sleep is being disturbed.

The submission includes a number of details geared at mitigating noise and
managing the circulation of people attending functions within the complex.

Page 58



Some of these are in response to points raised in objection, and ‘without
prejudice’ suggestions from the Public Protection Officers to tackle noise and
disturbance arising in relation to Pentre Bach from events staged. These
measures are referred to in an Acoustic Assessment submitted in November
2015 which states the owners are aware guests voices may give rise to noise
from the site and have taken a proactive approach to control noise by
incorporating the measures outlined:

locating the marquee as near as possible to the second barn building to take
advantage of the building to act as a noise barrier.

- using the 8 metre height of the second barn building as a noise barrier

- locating the marquee 20 metres from the end of the second barn building
line so that the building acts as a barrier to noise at the Farm House

- construction of a 2.61metre high acoustic timber fence to separate the
marquee from Pentre Bach Farm House

- construction of a second timber fence 1.84 metres high the whole width of
the courtyard from the marquee to the original library building, This fence will
contain the movement of guests to within the marquee courtyard area.

- constructing an arched door to separate the music barn building from the
courtyard. Guests will have to leave the site after events via the site entrance
along the country road.

The implications of the staging of functions in the marquee and the use of the
Gallery and part of the main listed building have been the subject of detailed
assessment by the Public Protection Officer, including monitoring of events at
Pentre Bach. The contents of the submitted Noise Assessment and the
representations from and on behalf of the occupiers of Pentre Bach have
been carefully scrutinised. The impacts of the activity in the building
accommodating music / dancing, the marquee and lawned area, the issue of
‘people noise’, and the practicality of managing the movement of guests
involved in functions have been taken into account. As with every application,
consideration has to be given to the possibility of attaching conditions which
may address matters of concern and make the development acceptable to a
point where it may be reasonable to recommend grant of permission.

In the context of the above, the response of the Public Protection Officer is
considered to be significant to the progression of the application. The Officer
does not object but has concerns over noise levels and suggests the inclusion
of strong conditions if permission is granted, to ensure that nearby residential
amenity is protected. A list of conditions is suggested covering the hours of
use and deliveries, and measures to mitigate noise (e.g. restricting playing of
amplified music to the one building, the fixing of a noise limiter to equipment,
setting a limit on noise levels, requirements for noise monitoring).

The Pollution Control Officer's comments reflect Officers unease over the
potential impact of the functions use on occupiers of nearby property, but fall
short of an objection as it is considered possible to mitigate impacts through
the imposition of a number of conditions to control the functions use and to
address the noise and disturbance arising from music and amplified sound
and from ‘people noise’, which appear to be the main areas of concern
relative to the occupiers of nearby property. Whilst the range of controls
considered necessary is extensive, suggesting the acceptability of the use is

Page 59



4.2.5

4.2.6

4.2.7

marginal through reliance on additional measures and strict management of
events, in the absence of formal objections from the Pollution Control Officer,
it is concluded that it may be reasonable to consider a permission subject to
attaching strict conditions.

Ecology

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (iii) requires development to protect
and where possible to enhance the local natural and historic environment.
Policy VOE 5 requires due assessment of potential impacts on protected
species or designated sites of nature conservation, including mitigation
proposals, and suggests that permission should not be granted where
proposals are likely to cause significant harm to such interests. This reflects
policy and guidance in Planning Policy Wales (Section 5.2), current legislation
and SPG 18 — Nature Conservation and Species Protection, which stress the
importance of the planning system in meeting biodiversity objectives through
promoting approaches to development which create new opportunities to
enhance biodiversity, prevent biodiversity losses, or compensate for losses
where damage is unavoidable.

There are no objections to the proposals in respect of ecological impacts.

Work has already been carried out within the listed buildings to accommodate
the proposed uses. Additional impacts on ecological interests are unlikely
from the proposed walkway structure and any other acoustic fencing
recommended in the Noise Consultant’s report.

Drainage

Drainage issues are a normal consideration on planning applications.
Planning Policy Wales Section 13.2 identifies flood risk as a material
consideration in planning and along with TAN 15 — Development and Flood
Risk, provides a detailed framework within which risks arising from different
sources of flooding should be assessed, where this is relevant to a
development.

There are no representations expressing concerns over potential impact on
land drainage or existing foul drainage systems at Pentre Mawr. The site is
not in a flood zone.

There are no drainage issues considered likely to arise from the proposals.

Highways (including access and parking)

Planning Policy Wales 3.1.4 refers to what may be regarded as material
considerations and that these can include the number, size, layout, design
and appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping, service
availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment.
The acceptability of means of access is therefore a standard test on most
planning applications. Policy ASA 3 requires adequate parking spaces in
connection with development proposals, and outlines considerations to be

Page 60



4.2.8

given to factors relevant to the application of standards. These policies reflect
general principles set out in Planning Policy Wales (Section 8) and TAN 18 —
Transport, in support of sustainable development.

The Highway Officer’s response draws attention to previous concerns over
the proposals in relation to the local highway network to the site being narrow
with limited passing places and the likely traffic generated for a wedding
function for 140-200 guests, and to requests to the applicants for provision to
be made for passing places along the approach road leading from the south
of Llandyrnog, and measures along the B5429 in order to support the
application. The concerns reflect previous comments from Llandyrnog
Community Council on proposals for additional developments at Pentre
Mawr. The Highway Officer recommendation is that if planning permission is
to be granted then consideration should be given to including conditions to
ensure the concerns are addressed.

Having regard to the above, Officers share the opinion of the Highway Officer
in that the approach roads to the site are narrow with few passing places, and
the potential scale of the functions use is such that measures are necessary
to accommodate the level of traffic which could be involved. As noted, this
reflects previously expressed views from the Community Council. It is
therefore suggested that if Members are to consider the grant of planning
permission, that this should only be on the basis that this includes provision in
conditions for the provision of passing places on the main approach road to
the B5429, along with suitable signage to discourage use of the narrow public
road running east to the B road, and to the proper surfacing of the overspill
car park within a specified period.

Impact on listed buildings and the historic environment

Local Development Plan Policy VOE 1 seeks to protect sites of built heritage
from development that would adversely affect them, which requires
assessment, where relevant, of impacts on archaeological, landscape and
listed building interests. The context for assessment of applications involving
alterations, extensions, and demolition of listed buildings which require
planning permission is set by Welsh Office Circular 61/ 96 and Planning
Policy Wales (Section 6), which also stress the importance of protecting the
historic environment. PPW 6.1 refers specifically to the need to ensure the
character of historic buildings is safeguarded from alterations, extensions, or
demolition that would compromise their special architectural and historic
interest.; and 6.5.9 indicates that where a development proposal affects a
listed building or its setting, the primary material consideration is the statutory
requirement to have special regard to the desirability of preserving the
building or its setting, and any features of special architectural or historic
interest which it possesses. These are matters dealt with in detail in the
following report on the agenda, in respect of the listed building consent
application.

There are no representations on the application which express specific
comment on the impact of the proposals on the listed buildings. The
Conservation Officer is a key consultee on this aspect of the application and
has no objections to the proposals.

Page 61



Officers would suggest the proposals do not raise any significant issues in
relation to the character or appearance of the listed buildings or their setting.

4.2.9 Inclusive design

The requirement to address issues of safe and convenient access for
disabled persons is set out in TAN 12 Design, TAN 18 Transport, and Policy
RD1 test (vii), which sets out the need for mandatory Access Statements with
planning applications.

The details with the submission indicate the Gallery, the part of the building
proposed for music and dancing, and the marquee would be fully accessible
for persons with disability.

5 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:

5.1 The application relates to the running of functions in connection with the Country
House Hotel at Pentre Mawr. It involves the siting of a marquee, the use of two
existing buildings, a timber structure to enclose a lawned area, and an additional
parking area. This is a development of the existing business at Pentre Mawr.

5.2 The case advanced in support of the application is that the proposals are an
essential development of an existing high quality business and are in accord with
local and national policy encouraging suitable business / tourist related schemes.
The submission argues the proposals are sympathetic to the character and
appearance or setting of the listed buildings at Pentre Mawr, and that measures
have been taken to limit noise and disturbance impacts in relation to Pentre Bach.

5.3 There are neighbour concerns over noise and disturbance from the functions,
which have been staged more frequently in 2015. The Community Council support
the application. The Pollution Control Officer has had regard to the noise study
submitted in November 2015, has undertaken noise monitoring, and has listed
detailed conditions which should be attached to mitigate impacts, if a permission
is granted. The Highway Officer considers it necessary to ensure additional
passing bays are created along the approach road, along with new signage to
direct vehicles, and surfacing of the proposed overspill parking area.

5.4 Officers’ conclusions are that the principle of developing an existing business is
encouraged in current planning policy and guidance. It is the detailed impacts
which are of particular relevance to the acceptability of the proposals.

5.5 As will be evident from the report, the issue of noise and disturbance affecting the
residential amenities of the occupiers of Pentre Bach has been given detailed
consideration. Pollution Control Officers have spent considerable time monitoring
the use, assessing the impacts, and deliberating on whether these can be
adequately mitigated through measures proposed by the applicants or through
additional requirements, and they have concluded by suggesting that there are a
range of conditions which may be able to secure adequate controls.

5.6 Ultimately it is considered this is a finely balanced case and is one where Officers
retain reservations over the amount of controls necessary to mitigate the impacts

Page 62



of the functions use and the reliance on the management of activities. However, in
balancing the considerations, due account has to be taken of the policy support
for business / tourist related development and the possibility of imposing suitable
conditions on the development to address noise and related concerns. Ultimately,
in the absence of formal objections from the ‘technical’ consultees, it is concluded
that it may be reasonable to consider a permission subject to attaching strict
conditions as outlined in the recommendation following.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:-

1. Unless specified by other conditions attached to this permission, the development hereby
permitted shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the following plans and documents:
(i) Existing elevations and proposed internal window shutter (Drawing No. 6) received 2
September 2015

(i) Existing floor plans (Drawing No. 5) received 2 September 2015

(iii) Proposed floor plans (Drawing No. 7) received 2 September 2015

(iv) Existing gallery (Drawing No. 1) received 2 September 2015

(v Proposed covered walkway (Drawing No. 4) received 2 September 2015

(vi) Existing site plan (Drawing No. 2 Rev. A) received 8 September 2015

(vii) Proposed site plan and marquee (Drawing No. 3 Rev. A) received 8 September 2015
(viii)  Location plan received 8 September 2015

2. Notwithstanding the details shown on the submitted plans, no functions shall be permitted to
take place until the written approval of the Local Planning Authority has been obtained to all of the
following, and the implementation of the approved details:

a) The treatment of the courtyard area around the marquee and associated covered walkway,
including the hard and soft landscaping of the area, the extent of removal of the stone wall and
treatment of the retained section of the wall

b) The signage and management arrangements to organise the circulation of persons attending
Pentre Mawr Country House, guests attending functions, users of the tented accommodation units,
users of the two additional units of hotel accommodation, and delivery vehicles for the hotel and
functions use.

c) The means of preventing guests attending functions from accessing the courtyard area of
Pentre Mawr which lies to the west of the gallery building, the proposed covered walkway, and the
marquee.

d) The means of preventing access for any vehicles associated with the functions use to or from
the private track running south past Pentre Bach.

e) The 2.61m high acoustic timber fence between barn building 2 and the retained section of the
stone wall as recommended in the Acoustic Assessment

f) The 1.84m high acoustic timber fence proposed between the marquee and the Gallery
building, as recommended in the Acoustic Assessment

Q) The provision of lobby entrances around all external doorways of the dancing / functions
building

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the approved details and the
arrangements shall be retained as approved at all times the functions use is in operation.

3. Vehicular access to the property in association with functions staged in the marquee and
outbuildings shall be obtained solely from the existing main access serving Pentre Mawr off the public
highway, and the private track which runs off the highway to the parking areas to the north west of the
main house, and there shall be no vehicular access from the track off the public highway running
alongside the eastern boundary with Pentre Bach at any time.

4, The parking of vehicles of guests attending, or vehicles dropping off or picking up guests
attending functions at the property shall be limited to the existing parking area and the overspill
parking area to the north west of the main house.

5. The overspill parking area as shown on the approved site plan drawing shall be kept available
for that purpose at all times, and shall be hard surfaced within 6 months of the date of this permission

Page 63



in accordance with such details as are approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

6. Passing places shall be provided along the approach road leading from Llandyrnog to the site
in accordance with a scheme to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and shall be
completed within 6 months of the date of this permission.

7. No functions shall be permitted to take place until the written approval of the Local Planning
Authority has been obtained to a scheme of highway signage to discourage the use of the public
highway running from the east of the site to the B5429 by the vehicles of guests attending functions.

The signs shall be retained at all times that the functions use at Pentre Mawr is in operation.

8. No functions shall be permitted to be held outside the hours of 1200 - 0000 (midnight) on any
day.
9. No live music, playing of recorded music, or use of sound amplification equipment shall be

permitted other than within the dancing / ceremonies building, and shall only be permitted between
the hours of 1200 and 0000 (midnight) on any day.

10. At all times when live or recorded music is being played, or sound amplification equipment is
being used within the dancing / ceremonies building, the timber shutters within the first floor level
window openings, as shown on plans DG6 and DG7, shall remain closed.

11. No functions shall be permitted to take place until the written approval of the Local Planning
Authority has been obtained to the detailing of a noise limiter to be fitted to ampilification equipment to
be used in the dancing / ceremonies building. No functions shall be permitted to run without the
agreed equipment being fitted.

12. Deliveries shall not be taken at or dispatched from the site, including the handling
and collection of waste and other activity associated with any function , outside the hours of 0800 -
2200 on any day.

13. All external lighting within the site shall conform with the recommendations in the Institute of
Lighting Professionals Guidance Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive Light GN01:2011, for
Environmental Zone E1.

14. Noise levels from functions held at the premises shall not exceed 37dBLAeq,5min when
measured freefield on the boundary adjacent to Pentre Bach Farm House.

15. If complaints of noise nuisance are received by the Local Planning Authority, the applicant
shall be notified in writing and the applicant shall employ a suitably qualified acoustic consultant to
undertake a noise assessment in accordance with arrangements to be agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority within 1 month of notification, to ensure that condition 14 is being complied with. A
copy of the report shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority within 14 days of its completion.
Where the Applicant fails to undertake a noise assessment within the time period agreed with the
Authority, the Local Planning Authority shall undertake an independent noise assessment and the
Applicant shall be required to cover the cost incurred by the Local Planning Authority.

16. If the function noise is found to exceed the noise limits specified in condition 14 above, then
no further functions shall be permitted to be held until the written approval of the Local Planning
Authority has been obtained to mitigation measures that will ensure compliance with condition 14.
The mitigation measures as approved shall be implemented prior to the recommencement of the
functions use, and shall be retained at all times thereafter.

17. A record of the functions held and numbers attending shall be logged in a format that can be
made available for inspection, when requested in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 64



The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):-

1. For the avoidance of doubt.

2. In order to mitigate noise and disturbance in the interests of the occupiers of the nearby
dwelling.

3. In the interests of highway safety and the users of the approach roads.

4. In the interests of highway safety, the users of the approach roads, and the amenities of

occupiers of nearby residential property.

5. To provide for the parking of vehicles clear of the highway.

6. In the interest of traffic safety.

7. In the interest of highway safety.

8. In the interests of the residential amenities of occupiers of nearby property.

9. In order to mitigate noise and disturbance in the interests of the occupiers of the nearby
dwelling.

10. In order to mitigate noise and disturbance in the interests of the occupiers of the nearby
dwelling.

11. In order to mitigate noise and disturbance in the interests of the occupiers of the nearby
dwelling.

12. In the interests of the residential amenities of occupiers of nearby property.

13. In the interests of the residential amenities of occupiers of nearby property.

14. In the interests the amenity of occupiers of residential property in the locality.

15. To ensure adequate measures are in place to monitor and assess noise from the venue in the
event of complaints and in the interests of the amenity of occupiers of residential property in
the locality

16. To ensure adequate measures are in place to monitor and assess noise from the turbines in
the event of complaints, and in the interests the amenity of occupiers of residential property in
the locality.

17. To aid noise complaint investigations.

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

You are hereby reminded that the works to which this permission relates also require Listed Building
Consent and that it does not necessarily follow that such Consent will be granted. It is a criminal
offence to carry out works affecting a listed building without listed building Consent, and you are
therefore strongly recommended to ensure that no such works are carried out until the appropriate
Consent has also been granted.

The Council's attention has been drawn to the use of land and buildings affected by the application,
by an agricultural tenant.

You should be aware that the grant of planning permission does not override any civil law restrictions
which may prevent the implementation of the planning consent.

You are advised that the holding of functions is subject to separate licencing regulations which fall
outside the remit of the planning function. You should ensure all relevant permists are obtained prior
to the staging of events.

You are advised to check with the Council's Built Environment section with regard to the need for
Building Regulation consent for works and the use of the buildings for public functions.

You are advised to contact the Development Management Section and Public Protection Section
Case Officer to discuss the requirements of the conditions of this permission in advance of the
submission of the relevant details.

In relation to the noise limitation conditions on this permission, you are advised that meeting the levels
stated does not preclude the possibility of a statutory nuisance arising from functions at the site and
you should be aware that strict management arrangements will need to be maintained over activities
to ensure impacts are mitigated given the proximity to nearby residential property.

Page 65



Your attention is drawn to the attached Highway Supplementary Notes Nos. 1, 3, 4, 5 & 10.
Your attention is drawn to the attached Part N form (New Road and Street Works Act 1991).

Your attention is drawn to the attached notes relating to applications for consent to construct a
vehicular crossing over a footway / verge under Section 184 of the Highways Act 1980.

Page 66



WARD :

WARD MEMBER:

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL:

LOCATION:

Agenda Item 7

Llandyrnog

Councillor Merfyn Parry

18/2015/0888/LB

Conversion of part of listed building and part of
courtyard for weddings and other functions in
association with existing hotel business, including
erection of detached marquee and covered timber
walkway within courtyard (Listed Building application)

Pentre Mawr Country House Hotel Llandyrnog
Denbigh

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



50 m
100 ft

Pentré-bach

o
xuk'é:"ﬁ
\h&-‘
«?"*":‘:\L~
Denbighshire Boundary
© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Suney 100023408. S

18/2015/0888 sir ddinbych <t
Scale: 1:2500 hshire Q&

Printed on: 4/1/2016 at 12:37 PM Page 69 © Denbighshire County Council



Page 70



PROPOSED LATOUT |

PLAN

WOty M

TH{YFAA S 140 MO SH *&m: g..qqﬁs
GUIPIRK SPPIREY 745014 JETD Y
SOMAD) PIRTT UM BIHLS RIPY DY
JO F{VIS W JO SONU4ING TYOLSHYL JOf
WS TGO JO SHOYDIT DU MO

#5701 w05 [Q0LL 301S

HPRHT T ROV
FIPVIELYD J900/G THY
{0 D FEAIE 6

.

1D

N § 4O JAATd

ST Q0T TINEIOW
21 [PMSH T

=2 2 pHapuarp

THEFRY O BT PP

: VTIPS held

TI0G 3 A0T0) PIOR] N3 G,
“BaeTvpeN [ 001 LNOMS

UUUL

7o s [ 00K, uvad

oG ) SUPPG PRSTT ‘
ooy _ﬁoﬁ.
ERATT D Tl
E__.h D Eﬁ Ficr _1".»:

BICHTY N0 T HUT
oY @) (Va3

: A1t 7 Sl esl, ¥y
{33NDEVYIW Q3S0J0Nd
[ HLIM NYd 3LIS a350d08d~ € 94

_ © SO0NYAONYTI dMWYW 3HIN3d

Y209 a.uad (25L 4% PPIS1) ' 9 BUFING )

CHIPIN QTN GT] PIITIYTS CYLIRITH §1 T4 )
TOIGHBPITIN\SW TP “HIOT Tpery OF TOITIMOME

P12y

Buipnng 1osmynar.bo

-8V

GUIPION JOIUPTNBY JO ID FPISHED
3 57 0 JSKB HLION af pisv)

RO AN proRaq ik

. ._ DY 0 JUTINT SOTPIPN: Rl FAHOT
i e AOROIATY IINIY
JOPUR POIHTSUDI PR aLMET

BIIPIAP JTG01 40 JEAPKITY
N M ]
- Pl AR BHISITD gy ey ko
— TN LTS O YRy Biespea
PGS ML JOqIHLE TUAIDH GHISI 5,201
af FPCIACT PRINGD FPIGY & TININNS
W PIPGLINGT RIDR] PR MR40
= 0% TUR] O9R0G [0 BHINTY SO

s, v
7 PHD Jo SP5oNG Ja el ‘.f.. 7 — = — o anﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
9§3Qm\ ..._.....r._v.-.. 1] v - - Pt e g ... . h E \Wﬁ.
’ & .. \R\ .. i - i N e & N
EWpEPM I ERYSIAP MU h ‘ ; : Lo, N L L
. 5%%@8 " i i @ . »Se g .wm.s.: a:_..wﬁ -
i) gﬁﬁ:ﬁ: / ‘ = N1 Jo) oy jof gL %
@%ﬁiﬂ:ﬁﬁ "SLYILIL b BN F3TI9 SOPHHDA wm,\._mmwu am.mw..mw:ﬁeﬂ
o 15401 UMD) e ooy
=
an
B i oy gy e
S ST JUTROA GTXD N GUIAVD] G FWOI IR
_ $GUID40 ON Msaynay —
L af WA SO oL
ERONSITIY VOISR N

Page 71




Page 72



PSS ouked Searfort Wadihortal
12ef Shusture.

LAISHUHA Tabal wittdous, 10201510887/ PF
_— ~ FLOON. PLANS OF
Ik | >~
\ it hised tutbe/ shuti2 s SHow wittt
o itdan, € bracd T2)G boarind. abous
woodstaun Filsh.
u]
cergrnony
- hest Haor' ;I‘da ] - B - B - o 1
Ti T2, T*
g
{ | | g I L.
axrsieta husber wictdons.”
FRST AOOR |
Provosed Sitm9 oF
wote, boraud aucilion Pidaes ake . e DI
all Restanavs mdthondaut Ll marquee dining
not atfaehad o listecd buifedines.
boltiLs axy ama{
I\ _ Fridogs, w:m‘ e I\ -
T Ny — = — "t T E
’ t t ' |
Inedons curtdity ouer boaried mbially et afdited
Wit sddefasdond TC & booreis, mﬂ %wﬂ
dvaed
il bar d 7| music =
N
1 axistusd howbar Skt dagcing
lounke \% 1 k
o U } L T 4- L L
£ hizct damee Hoor U<
Mml lonst, laid avar” Cxisiue sk prass varse,
Wdhuial,
PROPOSED
PENTRE MAWR
D67 1:5_0

A A
Sy e s




Page 74



ELEVATTION PLANS OF

o
Gew&.w FTOR OUIN VOIS TR
292, ) [TTITL] i
Anhu 3 : /LW/A//
Quvw . "HSIMY VIZLSPONT GO N
MY Of HLOYOTINY. Wi /.
GUPIIOG 7 TL DY X Sy >
‘UL Pip
” VoD SR “ISE X OO /|~ /—/r N
P T )
SPTYIS B 5o o
PR 1 Pt RN

o " TOW Y3LINHS MOONIM TYNG3INT G350408d  #

. - \
WS SO S ¢ O

Page 75

7 o HICt SYNDP % .
— _._mm§ HINOS
\usé GHYSIXD E@Mﬁﬂgﬂw
i-0-2id
.@. .@. .&v

__Z_:_:::____:___E__::____::::_::_::_:_:__.::__:_:_E::__:_::_:::_;::::E_Z

0 PHUGHUTD n:ﬁ% P 4

4diLBegrsLazey




Page 76



—— |-IS3M H1N0S

(.

~ T I
P 537 pne 6vng)

JOGUHIS PTOIUY] e
: ¥ : JP18 ) UDYIVG GHYSIXT

{ i
STy muﬁﬁ%tﬁwsg%:m FOCHYDN DY) TUHG [ OGP205 /
GIAPYZISTRY DIMPITILLS GOMYM “RjON  IMOIHD WY G JPOT U6 Wi Prnoney BUi g pRsl dt 4o
. 7 W SOANDT) JOHRO MRy PIDUYd @xuﬁww.:.w‘m_nw wﬁu‘%wﬂ:u ﬁ:ﬁ“ﬁ Ry
3 TP PD SHOIIVIS JO R0 PRPA3 TR Of SONE) HD[
i 15v3 HIHON | o 2/ o pne) 2 3 P25 GULISIYD JO TUILRVIT) THDAOUIS ﬂ
o))
| ; = @
_ /ﬁ_ _ AR ) FITYON 7 5MY1S FFIQld a
I 5307 1Y
oouna) J2irg | RYG GHUSIYD /_‘\ .

[y TvM Q3M3A0D (3S0d0Nd
[oort 790 9ONHAONVT] ¥MVW 3YIN3d

ddjLeapisi028l




Page 78



lan Weaver
WARD : Llandyrnog

WARD MEMBER: Councillor Merfyn Parry
APPLICATION NO: 18/2015/0888/LB

PROPOSAL.: Conversion of part of listed building and part of courtyard
for weddings and other functions in association with
existing hotel business, including erection of detached
marquee and covered timber walkway within courtyard
(Listed Building application)

LOCATION: Pentre Mawr Country House Hotel Llandyrnog Denbigh
APPLICANT: Mr Graham Carrington-Sykes

CONSTRAINTS: Listed Building

PUBLICITY Site Notice — Yes

UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice — Yes

Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Referral by Head of Planning / Development Control Manager

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
LLANDYRNOG COMMUNITY COUNCIL
No comments received

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES —

Conservation Architect
No objection to the proposals. In conclusion, considers these are not detrimental to
the historical character of the listed buildings and do not affect the essential setting of
the listed buildings. The proposals will allow the business to develop and grow, which
can only be beneficial to the long term maintenance and condition of all the buildings
within the group.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:

Representations received from:

In objection
Representations received from:

Aaron and partners, Solicitors, on behalf of Mr and Mrs Edwards, Pentre Bach, Llandyrnog
Mrs S. Edwards, Pentre Bach, Llandyrnog

Summary of planning based representations in objection:

Page 79



Noise and disturbance

Occupiers of dwelling need peace and quiet to rest, including children during term time /
existing use of hotel has caused considerable noise nuisance to occupiers of Pentre Bach,
and has been under investigation by environmental health department / sources of noise
and disturbance are music from hotel functions, singing and chanting encouraged by DJ’s
running discos; shouting, singing and swearing from guests leaving in the early morning;
cars screeching along the lane late at night and taxi horns alerting guests they have arrived;
inappropriate activities in hot tubs / use has been allowed to continue for two summers /
submissions recognise noise is an issue but do not provide technical information to support
this assertion or inform the local planning authority of the effect that attenuation by the
masonry structure may provide, and there is no background noise level against which noise
from the development should be assessed, and no acoustic report submitted in support of
the application / it is suggested specific measures be considered to reduce noise at the point
of generation, to provide sound insulation or other containment measures, to design the
layout of the space between the noise source and noise sensitive building, and limiting the
operating time of the noise source and setting an acceptable noise limit.

Council should not determine application until a proper noise assessment report is produced
by the applicants to allow assessment of the impact of noise generated by the development.

Conflict with planning policies and guidance

Noise is a planning consideration contained in planning policies in the Local Development
Plan, Welsh Government’s Technical Advice Note 11

Other matters
Land ownership issues

Notification of the planning application has not been served on the agricultural tenant / owner
occupier of Pentre Bach farms land at Pentre Mawr and Ty Bracia in partnership with his
father and brother and the father is the agricultural tenant of the yard and listed building
included in the application / owners of Pentre Mawr have unlawfully fenced off the yard and
building the subject of the application/ there is a legal dispute regarding the farming tenancy

Objections to issue of separate licence for functions and concerns over process relating to
licence / seem to be getting minimal consideration from neighbours and the Council /
concerns over statements made in submissions over neighbours actions

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 08/11/2015
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):

o information required from applicant
] protracted negotiations resulting in amended plans

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:

Page 80



1.

THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals

1.1.1 The application seeks listed building consent for developments in connection
with the staging of weddings and other functions, associated with the existing
Country House Hotel enterprise at Pentre Mawr, Llandyrnog. It follows the
withdrawal of a previous listed building application involving different detailing
in September 2015.

1.1.2 The application should be read in conjunction with the planning application
forming the subject of the previous item on the agenda, code no.
18/2015/0887.

1.1.3 The proposed site layout showing the different elements of the scheme is at
the front of the report. The parts relevant to the listed building consent
application are:

- The siting of a marquee within the courtyard area to the south east of the
main Pentre Mawr Country Hotel building. The marquee is indicated on
the submitted plans as a white canvas cover on a steel frame.

- The use of two sections of existing outbuildings forming the courtyard in
connection with the functions use :

o The Gallery Building, for use by wedding guests as a quiet lounge
waiting area and WC'’s

o A 15m x 7m section of one of the range of outbuildings on the eastern
side of the courtyard, for music and dancing

- The erection of a timber walkway structure running from the gallery
building to the marquee, to enclose a lawn area

- The erection of an acoustic fence on the south west side of the marquee

1.1.4 The application is in part retrospective, as the marquee has already been
sited on the land forming the garden area of Pentre Mawr, and the two
buildings shown on the plan for use as a lounge area and for music and
dancing have been used for functions in 2015.

1.1.5 The plans at the front of the report also show the relationship of the buildings
and the complex to the nearest dwelling in separate ownership at Pentre
Bach, to the south, and the location of outbuildings buildings granted
permission for conversion to accommodation units in connection with Pentre
Mawr in February 2015.

1.1.6 The application is accompanied by a Design and Access Statement
incorporating a Listed Building Justification Statement, and a property
Structural Condition report.

1.1.7 The Design and Access Statement refers to the 5 star hotel and tourism
business at Pentre Mawr, offering high quality accommodation and dining
facilities. It states the hotel has identified wedding functions as a suitable
additional facility that would enhance the business and provide maintenance
funding for the substantial range of listed buildings. The use of a marquee has
been suggested to provide the necessary space and it is suggested this would
be erected for the relevant periods when functions are booked, and that it
would be a temporary structure stored away for the remainder of the year.

Page 81



1.1.8 In relation to the listed buildings, it is stated in the Design and Access
Statement that the setting of the marquee within the courtyard of largely
redundant buildings will not really have any adverse impact on the listed
buildings, being a temporary structure erected for a limited period within the
courtyard, then being returned to its open appearance when it is stored away
while not in use. It is suggested that the proposed use of part of the listed
barn building for music and dancing does not have any impact on the listed
building, the only works being the provision of temporary shutters to the upper
windows to provide additional noise limitation, which it is stated does not
impact on the character of the listed structure.

1.1.9 Pentre Mawr and its main outbuildings are Grade Il Listed Buildings.
1.2Description of site and surroundings

1.2.1 The Pentre Mawr complex of buildings is located approximately 2km north of
Llandyrnog village.

1.2.2 It is accessed off minor roads from the B5429. The vehicular access serving
the Country House is a driveway off the minor road. The drive runs past the
front of the main house to the parking area to the west.

1.2.3 The building complex consists of an historic Manor House (as noted, a Grade
I listed building) and a range of outbuildings, most of which are also listed
buildings. There are also more modern agricultural buildings including a silo
and a portal frame building in the south / south west part of the complex.

1.2.4 The main building at Pentre Mawr is in use as a bed and breakfast business
with dining facilities and there are a number of ‘tented bedrooms’ on land
immediately to the west of the main house.

1.2.5 An area of the courtyard immediately to the south of the main house has been
in use in connection with the bed and breakfast business and owners private
accommodation. Its extent has been defined by a substantial stone wall which
until recently divided the area enclosed by the range of outbuildings. Land and
buildings to the south side of the wall has been in use in connection with an
agricultural business, which is referred to in Section 1.6 of the report.

1.2.6 There is a dwelling in separate ownership to the south west of the
outbuildings, at Pentre Bach. The relative location and proximity of Pentre
Bach to the application site can be seen from the plans at the front of the
report.

1.3Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site is located in the open countryside.

1.3.2 Pentre Mawr and its outbuildings are Grade Il Listed Buildings.

1.4Relevant planning history

Page 82



1.4.1 The bed and breakfast use at Pentre Mawr has developed gradually over time
from an incidental use to the dwelling. The owners obtained planning consent
to use the ‘Manor’ house as a bed and breakfast facility / Country House Hotel
in October 2013, involving use of 3 out of 5 bedrooms as guest
accommodation. Planning permission was granted for the retention of 6
‘tented bedrooms’ used in connection with the facilities in the main house, in
June 2014. Planning permission was granted in February 2015 for the
conversion of two of the agricultural buildings in the complex into
accommodation units for use in connection with Pentre Mawr, and listed
building consent for this development was granted in April 2015. The 2015
consents have not been commenced at the time of drafting this report.

1.4.2 The Council was made aware during 2014 of the introduction of a marquee in
the garden area of the property, used in connection with the staging of
functions, including weddings. This was the subject of separate enforcement
investigation and led to the submission of planning and listed building
applications in March 2015 to retain the marquee, to use the Gallery building
and part of the courtyard in connection with the functions. Following receipt of
responses and in particular concerns over the noise arising during functions,
these applications were withdrawn in September 2015 on submission of the
current planning and listed building applications.

1.4.3 The planning application submitted is being handled under application code
no. 18/2015/0887/LB, and forms the subject of the preceding report on the
agenda.

1.4.4 There is a separate application dealing with a variation of one of the
conditions imposed on the February 2015 permission for the conversion of the
2 outbuildings to self contained living accommodation. This application, code
no. 18/2015/0327 forms the subject of the report immediately following this
one on the listed building consent application.

1.5Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 None of specific relevance to this listed building consent application.

1.60ther relevant background information

1.6.1 Members will note reference in the Response to Publicity Section of the report
to matters relating to land ownership. These also arose in the course of
progressing the applications relating to the conversion of outbuildings to
additional hotel accommodation, submitted in late 2014.

1.6.2 The applicant’s agent is aware of representations and has confirmed in
December 2015 that on the basis of information provided by his clients and
solicitors that the correct certificate of ownership has been submitted with the
applications.

1.6.3 Members may appreciate that the Local Planning Authority can not become
involved in any civil dispute over claims to ownership and it is considered
appropriate to move to determine the application. In the circumstances, it
would be normal to include a note to applicant on a Certificate of Decision
advising the applicants of the challenge to legal statements on ownership.

Page 83



2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:

2.118/2008/0289 - Construction of 6 no. chalets, landscaping and pedestrian access
routes. GRANTED 18/06/2014

2.218/2013/0981 - Mixed use of premises as dwelling and bed and breakfast facility
(retrospective application). Granted 16/10/2013

2.318/2014/0793/PF - Change of use of outbuildings to form 2 no. self-contained
suites of hotel letting accommodation, demolition of steel silo, steel framed
agricultural building and stone wall; installation of a package treatment plant and
associated works. GRANTED 18/02/2015

2.418/2014/0794/LB - Change of use of outbuildings to form 2 no. self-contained
suites of hotel letting accommodation, demolition of steel silo, steel framed
agricultural building and stone wall; installation of a package treatment plant and
associated works (Listed Building application). GRANTED 20/04/2015

2.518/2015/0325 — Change of use of existing gallery building and part of courtyard for
wedding and other functions associated with existing hotel business and including
erection of detached marquee within courtyard area. WITHDRAWN 08/09/2015.

2.618/2015/ 0326 - 18/2015/0325 — Change of use of existing gallery building and part
of courtyard for wedding and other functions associated with existing hotel business
and including erection of detached marquee within courtyard area. WITHDRAWN
08/09/2015

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
Government Policy / Guidance
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

Planning Policy Wales 8, 2016.

Welsh Office Circular 61/96 - Planning and the Historic Environment: Historic
Buildings and Conservation Areas.

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

Section 7 of the 1990 Act sets out the requirement for listed building consent for
works for the demolition, alteration or extension of a listed building in any manner
which would affect its character as a building of special architectural or historic
interest; and it outlines the requirements for the making and processing of
applications for consent.

Planning Policy Wales 8, 2016 Section 6.5.7 — 6.5.15 refers to general principles to
be applied in considering applications for listed building consent. It confirms that
there is no statutory requirement to have regard to the provisions of the Development
Plan in making a decision on listed building consent applications. It reaffirms the
general presumption in favour of preservation, whilst recognising the need for

Page 84



flexibility where new uses have to be considered to secure a building’s survival. It
sets out the primary material consideration is the statutory requirement to have
special regard to the desirability of preserving the building, or its setting, or any
features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. Applicants are
expected to justify their proposals to show why alteration or demolition is desirable or
necessary.

Welsh Office Circular 61/96, Paragraphs 93-99 provide specific advice on the
considerations to be applied by Local Planning Authorities when dealing with
proposals to alter or extend listed buildings.

4.1The main issues to address in relation to the application are therefore considered to

be:

411

The acceptability of the proposals having regard to the tests of PPW 2014 and
Welsh Office Circular 61/96

The report outlines the case advanced in the application documents in
support of the grant of listed building consent, setting out arguments that the
proposals would assist in securing the future of the buildings, without
adversely affecting the character and appearance of the listed buildings or
materially harming their setting.

In terms of consultation responses, the Conservation Officer is supportive of
the proposals.

The works on the listed buildings themselves are minimal in this instance,
involving the installation of new internal timber shutters within the window
openings of the 2 storey brick built outbuildings, and mainly renovation /
internal decoration and repairs within that building. The Gallery building has
been in use for some time in connection with the Country House Hotel, The
new timber walkway and acoustic fences, and the marquee are freestanding
structures with no attachment to any of the listed buildings.

Having regard to what is actually involved here, the basis of PPW advice and
the tests of Welsh Office Circular 61/96, Officers’ consider due regard has
been given to the viability and impacts of the new use proposed for the
buildings in formulating the proposals, in terms of effects on the special
interest of the listed buildings, and it is not concluded that accommodating the
music and dance area in one building and the use of the Gallery as a quiet
room in connection with functions in the adjacent marquee in the courtyard
are in any respects potentially damaging uses;

Due regard has been taken of the physical impacts of the proposals on the
character and appearance of the listed buildings, and their setting; It is
suggested the buildings have a capacity for accommodating change without
loss of special interest;

The listing is recognised as a significant consideration but the proposals are
considered to show a sensitivity to the special interest of the buildings;

Page 85



The proposals are considered to show due respect for the character and
appearance of the listed buildings and strike a proper balance between the
need to respect the special interest of the listed buildings and the need to
adapt them to part of a viable 21° century use;

The internal detailing of both buildings is of limited interest and these have
been adapted to previous storage / incidental uses to Pentre Mawr. The main
interest is the external detailing which is not affected by the proposals.

In relation to the general requirements in Planning Policy Wales, Officers
would suggest that the proposals are compliant with the general presumption
in favour of preservation, and embrace the need for flexibility where new uses
have to be considered to secure the survival of buildings. The proposals are
considered to have full regard to the tests for preserving the buildings, their
setting, and features of special architectural or historic interest which they
possesses. It is suggested that the applicants have justified their proposals
and show why the proposals are desirable and necessary.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:

5.1The report provides details of the proposals to adapt two buildings in the complex for
use in connection with a marquee staging functions at the Pentre Mawr Country
House Hotel.

5.2The applicants argue the proposals are sympathetic to the character and appearance
of the buildings and the setting of the listed buildings at Pentre Mawr, and are seen
as a further step in the regeneration of the remainder of the historic buildings in the
complex.

5.3The Conservation Officer is supportive of the proposals.

5.4 Officers’ conclusions are that there is a justifiable case to support the proposals, as
they present an opportunity to secure the long term future of buildings within the
complex, and will have no adverse impact on the character and appearance of the
buildings involved, or on the setting of the Pentre Mawr complex.

5.5The recommendation following is subject to referral of the listed building consent
application to CADW for consideration, and authorisation from CADW that consent
can be issued by Local Planning Authority.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than the expiration
of five years beginning with the date of this permission.

2. Unless specified by other conditions attached to this consent, the development hereby
permitted shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the following plans and documents:
(i) Existing elevations and proposed internal window shutter (Drawing No. 6) received 2
September 2015
(i) Existing floor plans (Drawing No. 5) received 2 September 2015
(iii) Proposed floor plans (Drawing No. 7) received 2 September 2015
(iv) Existing gallery (Drawing No. 1) received 2 September 2015
(V) Proposed covered walkway (Drawing No. 4) received 2 September 2015

Page 86



(vi) Existing site plan (Drawing No. 2 Rev. A) received 8 September 2015
(vii) Proposed site plan and marquee (Drawing No. 3 Rev. A) received 8 September 2015
(viii)  Location plan received 8 September 2015

3. Development shall not begin until an appropriate photographic survey of the existing buildings
on the site has been carried out in accordance with details to be submitted to, and approved
by, the local planning authority. The resulting digital photographs should be forwarded on a
CD or DVD to the Local Planning Authority and the Development Control Archaeologist,
Clwyd-Powys Archaeological Trust, 41 Broad Street, Welshpool, Powys, SY21 7RR. tel:
01938 553670.

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):-

1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
2. For the avoidance of doubt.

3. To ensure a suitable photographic record is made of the buildings.

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

In connection with Condition 3 of the consent , you are referred to the attached CPAT Photographic
Guidance Note for Applicants

The Council's attention has been drawn to the use of land and buildings affected by the application,

by an agricultural tenant. You should be aware that the grant of listed building consent does not
override any civil law restrictions which may prevent the implementation of the consent.

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



WARD :

WARD MEMBER:

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL:

LOCATION:

Agenda Iltem 8

Llandyrnog

Councillor Merfyn Parry

18/2015/0327/ PS

Variation of condition no. 12 of planning permission
code no. 18/2014/0793 to permit use of part of

courtyard for wedding functions

Pentre Mawr Country House Hotel Llandyrnog
Denbigh

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



-

S H

=
[\

Pentre-bach

VAN

:SD
(} Pentre-mawr

Lodge

© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Suney 100023408.

18/2015/0327
Scale: 1:2500
Printed on: 4/1/2016 at 12:27 PM Page 91

50 m
100 ft

N\

Denbighshire Boundary
LAY

sir ddinbych

denbighshire

County Counc

&

© Denbighshire County Council



Page 92



182015/0327/pP8
RECE( ;-

30 MAR 2055 !

CALED = AREA TO WHICH
7 'VARIATION 0]

CONBRITION
T APPL esa;\” \

1

Ordﬁ-a;t:e
Survey

——

310221
110300
. sy

¥ :
wiorz — L " « 16022

N
~
.

i

! . J&T00D

Pentre-mawr

168500

166822 = . loeat?

v
= -
53 ’
3z -

o
- By

1oz

Produced 14 Feb 2014 hom the Ordnance Survey National Meues N
Geographic Database and incorporating surveyed revision avatlable at 0 10 20 30 40 50 PENTRE MAWR
tns date. Reproduction in whole or pan is prohibited withou the griar B et = i DENBIGH
permussion of Ordnance Survey. © Crown Copyright 2014

11250 LL16 4LA

Ordnance Survey and the OS Symbol are regisiered trademarks .
of Ordnance Survey. the national mapping agency of Greal Britain. Supplied by Blue Fox
Reference” Q1676322

The representation of a road. track ar path is no evidence of a right Centre coardinales: 310321 366022

of way. The representation of features as hines is no evidence of a
propeny boundary.

Page 93

Version 1 ) Unverssoned deeciory PDE



Page 94



OMNAL

APPROVED LAYTOUT
1'TS

PLAN From
18/ 2014./0793
~ PERMISSION FOR ADDITI

i 3
LI & -
L

9 IV SR Mepwn
SUHLY &9 psnuoy oy by

rg T Bnny
7 Bum %ﬁ.ﬁ
§ fmwianan;
ojom na.aahi o5y e
MU LR Yas 12| GRINEY SOginy vy E..hqma PTG
7 ga&s&ﬁteﬁuﬁa@ﬁa&aie

\ oy

" SRR HOM WS GRS, .
ree Py / . T §§§ Vet s
= ﬁ . aaumunn&v.%eﬁ ] / wuﬂmgaﬂ. aﬂu&;&!ﬂiﬁﬂ@
Fack N A Bogs e pasiay e - L ng Jousnynoufo
TRUI LY AL e L STy 4 STamp v apnay
a&..awﬁwemsmﬁ:a e 7 .,. 7 eﬁath.wxaﬁ?zﬂisgi.
22 = & xﬁm
LRI TS fouy AT B _u“_" Al §§H
8 LEnrs RS - -l HI
ggi%ﬂﬁﬂw AN / > ...a...vp.... o 0 W e 1\..-.\:\
*RRYGHYY) pOryTYN e VY e BN e
SCinin T T SN | wsgfa.wuuﬁuuah%mﬂ
asa__ AL i ] P 1 e
§=§._ gﬁ nf N e \ BN iy
E-énugg ‘ ko T O T e = RXyE oy E0]
" CHSIIY 5T omorny SEoys gres 25900 s
Ry b i i el
HBTYOY) PiDAID
e e i R
J ?suagnn;au .
RO TR i
Fony ._R_
.x J

SHEIY T PRPFT TRNGD IS Sjiepe- ¥ pvy
IYFD WyETIg: Yepppe WO Yay

| 0350408d 0051 990 Nvid IS

_ BI0H 3SN0H AYINNDD HMVIA SUIN3d

Page 95



Page 96



lan Weaver

WARD : Llandyrnog

WARD MEMBER: Councillor Merfyn Parry

APPLICATION NO: 18/2015/0327/ PS

PROPOSAL: Variation of condition no. 12 of planning permission code no.
18/2014/0793 to permit use of part of courtyard for wedding
functions

LOCATION: Pentre Mawr Country House Hotel Llandyrnog Denbigh

APPLICANT: Mrs Bre Carrington-Sykes

CONSTRAINTS: Listed Building

PUBLICITY Site Notice — No

UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice — No

Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

¢ Referral by Head of Planning / Development Control Manager

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
LLANDYRNOG COMMUNITY COUNCIL
“Community Council support the application with a condition strictly limiting the timing of the
events and conditions to control noise levels to protect amenity of adjoining property”

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:

Representations received from:

In objection
Representations received from:

Aaron and Partners, Solicitors, on behalf of Mr and Mrs Edwards, Pentre Bach, Llandyrnog
Mrs S. Edwards, Pentre Bach, Llandyrnog

Summary of planning based representations in objection:

Noise and disturbance

Occupiers of dwelling need peace and quiet to rest, including children during term time / existing use
of hotel has caused considerable noise nuisance to occupiers of Pentre Bach, and has been under
investigation by environmental health department / sources of noise and disturbance are music from
hotel functions, singing and chanting encouraged by DJ’s running discos; shouting, singing and
swearing from guests leaving in the early morning; cars screeching along the lane late at night and
taxi horns alerting guests they have arrived; inappropriate activities in hot tubs / use has been allowed
to continue for two summers / submissions recognise noise is an issue but do not provide technical
information to support this assertion or inform the local planning authority of the effect that attenuation
by the masonry structure may provide, and there is no background noise level against which noise
from the development should be assessed, and no acoustic report submitted in support of the
application / it is suggested specific measures be considered to reduce noise at the point of
generation, to provide sound insulation or other containment measures, to design the layout of the
space between the noise source and noise sensitive building, and limiting the operating time of the
noise source and setting an acceptable noise limit.

Page 97



Council should not determine application until a proper noise assessment report is produced by the
applicants to allow assessment of the impact of noise generated by the development.

Conflict with planning policies and guidance
Noise is a planning consideration contained in planning policies in the Local Development Plan,
Welsh Government’s Technical Advice Note 11

Other matters

Land ownership issues

Notification of the planning application has not been served on the agricultural tenant / owner occupier
of Pentre Bach farms land at Pentre Mawr and Ty Bracia in partnership with his father and brother
and the father is the agricultural tenant of the yard and listed building included in the application /
owners of Pentre Mawr have unlawfully fenced off the yard and building the subject of the application/
there is a legal dispute regarding the farming tenancy

Objections to issue of separate licence for functions and concerns over process relating to licence /
seem to be getting minimal consideration from neighbours and the Council / concerns over
statements made in submissions over neighbours actions

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 25/05/2015

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):

. additional information required from applicant

. protracted negotiations resulting in amended plans for associated developments
involving functions use in the courtyard and buildings at Penter Mawr

o awaiting consideration by Committee

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL.:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1 The application seeks the Council’'s agreement to the variation of a condition imposed

on a planning permission granted at Planning Committee in February 2015, involving
the change of use of two outbuildings in the Pentre Mawr complex to self contained
suites of hotel letting accommodation. The permission was granted under Code
No0.18/2014/0793/PF. Work on the implementation of the permission has not
commenced at the time of drafting this report.

1.1.2 The condition in question is No 12, which as worded on planning permission
18/2014/0793 is as follows:

“12. The use of the courtyard area between the accommodation units and Pentre
Mawr indicated on the approved site plan as a lawn, yard and slate chippings, shall
be limited to occupiers of the new accommodation units, guest accommodation at
Pentre Mawr Country House , and the owner/occupiers of Pentre Mawr, their family
and friends, and staff involved in the running of the business. “

The reason for the condition was :-

“In the interests of the residential amenities of occupiers of Pentre Bach.”
1.1.3 The variation seeks the addition of the following sentence at the end of the condition
as worded above:

“This condition is applicable to all areas of the courtyard areas etc. except the
area hatched green on the attached location plan”.

The plan submitted with the application is attached at the front of the report, and is
annotated to show the area the applicants are now asking the Council to remove from
the restrictions imposed by condition 12.

1.1.4 The application is submitted by an agent acting on behalf of the Pentre Mawr
business. It contains a short Design and Access Statement which explains the

background and the reasorljé‘@uévggtion sought:



- “Condition 12 stipulates restrictions for the use of the whole of the courtyard area
between outbuildings A, B, and Pentre Mawr as illustrated on the approved
application

- The application for variation of condition is to reduce the area protected by
condition 12 to allow use of part of the courtyard (at its eastern end away from
Pentre Bach) for wedding functions

- The area of courtyard proposed for that purpose is remote from Pentre Bach and
so will not be detrimental to the residential amenity of that property.”

The Statement goes on to explain that the variation is sought in conjunction with
proposals for the erection of a marquee within the courtyard for staging functions
at Pentre Mawr. This is now the subject of application 18/2015/0887/PF, which is
an earlier item on the agenda for this Committee. The Statement argues that the
removal of the area hatched green will not impact on the character of the listed
buildings or their setting, or the residential amenity of Pentre Bach.

Officers’ interpretation of the above is that the applicants are seeking to ensure there
is no conflict between the permission for the accommodation units as granted in
February 2015, and the permission sought for the functions use which is the subject
of application 18/2015/0887 and is one of the preceding items on the agenda. The
variation sought would allow the use of the courtyard area as defined on the plan by
persons attending / involved in functions at Pentre Mawr. If application 18/2015/0887
is refused permission or consideration is deferred at Committee, Officers will request
consideration of this application is deferred as there would effectively be no purpose
in proceeding with it as there would be no consented functions use in place to
necessitate the variation of the condition.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings

1.2.1

1.2.2

1.2.3

1.2.4

1.2.5

1.2.6

The Pentre Mawr complex of buildings, containing the two outbuildings which were
the subject of application 18/2014/0793 is located approximately 2km north of
Llandyrnog village.

It is accessed off minor roads from the B5429. The vehicular access serving the
Country House is a driveway off the minor road which runs past the front of the main
house to the parking area to the west.

The building complex consists of an historic Manor House (a Grade |l listed building)
and a range of outbuildings, most of which are also listed buildings. There are also
more modern agricultural buildings including a silo and a portal frame building in the
south / south west part of the complex.

The main building at Pentre Mawr is in use as a bed and breakfast business with
dining facilities and there are a number of ‘tented bedrooms’ on land immediately to
the west of the main house. The main parking area for visitors is located 40 metres to
the north west of the main house at Pentre Mawr.

An area of the courtyard immediately to the south of the main house has been in use
in connection with the bed and breakfast business and owners private
accommodation. Its extent has been defined by a substantial stone wall which until
recently divided the area enclosed by the range of outbuildings. Land and buildings to
the south side of the wall has been in use in connection with an agricultural business.

There is a dwelling in separate ownership to the south west of the outbuildings at
Pentre Bach.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations

1.3.1

1.3.2

The site is located in the open countryside.

Pentre Mawr and its outbuildings are Grade Il Listed Buildings.

Page 99



1.4 Relevant planning history

1.4.1

1.4.2

1.4.3

1.4.4

The bed and breakfast use at Pentre Mawr has developed gradually over time from
an incidental use to the dwelling. The owners obtained planning consent to use the
‘Manor’ house as a bed and breakfast facility / Country House Hotel in October 2013,
involving use of 3 out of 5 bedrooms as guest accommodation. Planning permission
was granted for the retention of 6 ‘tented bedrooms’ used in connection with the
facilities in the main house, in June 2014.

Of specific relevance to the current application is a permission granted in February
2015 for the conversion of two of the agricultural buildings into accommodation units
for use in connection with Pentre Mawr. It contained condition 12 quoted in 1.1.2
above, restricting the use of the courtyard area to occupiers of new accommodation
units and patrons of Pentre Mawr Country House and those involved in that business.
The condition was imposed in order to protect the interests of the occupiers of Pentre
Bach to the south west.

The Council was made aware during 2014 of the introduction of a marquee in the
garden area of the property, used in connection with the staging of functions,
including weddings. This was the subject of separate enforcement investigation and
led to the submission of separate applications seeking to establish the functions use
in a marquee, associated buildings and a courtyard. This process has spanned
several months and revisions to plans, ending with the submission of application
18/2015/0887, which is dealt with in an earlier report on the agenda.

For information, application 18/2015/0887/PF seeks permission for :

- The siting of a marquee within the courtyard area to the south east of the main
Pentre Mawr Country Hotel building. The marquee is indicated on the submitted plans
as a white canvas cover on a steel frame.

- The use of two sections of existing outbuildings forming the courtyard in connection
with the functions use :

- The Gallery Building, for use by wedding guests as a quiet lounge waiting area and
WC’s

- A 15m x 7m section of one of the range of outbuildings on the eastern side of the
courtyard, for music and dancing

- The erection of a timber structure running from the gallery building to the marquee,
to enclose a lawn area

-The provision of an overflow parking area in a paddock area immediately to the west
of the existing parking area to the west of the Pentre Mawr Country Hotel.

- Suggested pedestrian circulation patterns for functions.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission

1.5.1

1.5.2

Officers have assessed the merits of the variation application in parallel with the
planning applications for the marquee in the courtyard area, as issues of impact on
the residential amenities of occupiers of Pentre Bach are relevant to both. This has
involved noise monitoring from Pentre Bach in the course of functions to assess the
impact and to assist conclusions on the acceptability of the proposals.

As a result of the monitoring exercises, plans for the functions use have been revised to
include specific proposals to mitigate noise.

1.6 Other relevant background information

1.6.1

1.6.2

Members will note reference in the Response to Publicity Section of the report to
matters relating to land ownership. These also arose in the course of progressing the
applications relating to the conversion of outbuildings to additional hotel
accommodation, submitted in late 2014.

The applicant’s agent is aware of representations and has confirmed in December 2015
that on the basis of information provided by his clients and solicitors that the correct
certificate of ownership was submitted at the time of lodging the application.

Page 100



2.

3.

4,

1.6.3 Members may appreciate that the Local Planning Authority can not become involved in
any civil dispute over claims to ownership and it is considered appropriate to move to
determine the application. In the circumstances, it would be normal to include a note to
applicant on a Certificate of Decision advising the applicants of the challenge to legal
statements on ownership.

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:

2.1 18/2014/0793/PF - Change of use of outbuildings to form 2 no. self-contained suites of hotel
letting accommodation, demolition of steel silo, steel framed agricultural building and stone
wall; installation of a package treatment plant and associated works. GRANTED 18/02/2015
The permission contains a number of conditions including No.12 which is the subject of this

application.
RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
3.1 The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:

Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 8, 2016

3.2 Other material considerations:

The overarching advice for Local Planning Authorities on the use of conditions in planning
permissions is now contained in Welsh Government Circular 016/2014 — ‘The use of conditions
for development management’ . The Circular sets out the six main tests to be applied to the
imposition of planning conditions, which are that they are:

(i)  necessary;

(i)  relevant to planning:

(iii) relevant to the development;

(iv) enforcement;

(v) precise; and

(vi) reasonable

3.3 In relation to the variation of conditions, Circular 016/2014 states:

‘Section 73 of the Act provides for applications to be made for planning permission to
develop land without complying with conditions previously imposed on a planning
permission i.e. to vary or remove a condition. The local planning authority can grant
such permission unconditionally or subject to different conditions, or they can refuse
the application if they decide the original condition(s) should continue. The original
planning permission will continue to subsist whatever the outcome of the application
under section 73.

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:
In the context of the above, the following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore
refer to matters considered to be of relevance to the application.

4.1 As noted previously, Condition 12 as worded on the planning permission for the two additional
units of hotel accommodation states as follows:-

“12. The use of the courtyard area between the accommodation units and Pentre Mawr
indicated on the approved site plan as a lawn, yard and slate chippings, shall be limited to
occupiers of the new accommodation units, guest accommodation at Pentre Mawr Country
House, and the owner/occupiers of Pentre Mawr, their family and friends, and staff
involved in the running of the business. “

The variation sought in the application is to add the sentence :-

“This condition is applicable to all areas of the courtyard areas etc. except the area
hatched green on the attached location plan”.

Page 101



4.2 Condition 12 was imposed on the permission for the accommodation units to protect the
interests of occupiers of the dwelling Pentre Bach, in particular from noise and disturbance.

4.3 There are representations from and on behalf of the occupiers of the nearby dwelling, Pentre
Bach, which have been submitted as general objections to the applications relating to
developments at Pentre Mawr. These set out concerns primarily over the noise from the
functions use and matters relating to land ownership. The Community Council have not
objected but suggest restrictions on the timing of events.

4.4 In respecting the representations, the merits of the functions use are dealt with in detail in the
preceding reports on the agenda. The variation of condition application concerns solely the
wording of the condition imposed on the permission for the two hotel accommodation units
and the determination should be purely on the reasonableness of the request to limit the
restriction in Condition 12 to use of the courtyard area outside the land proposed for use for
the functions.

4.5 If the Committee resolve to grant the planning permission for the functions use — application
18/2015/0887 — then this will have been on the basis that noise and disturbance from that use
can be mitigated and controlled to limit the impacts on Pentre Bach to an acceptable level
(these being matters of concern to the neighbours and the Community Council). In the event
that Committee do grant the functions use, Officers suggest it would be reasonable to support
the variation to the condition relating to the additional accommodation units, as this would
simply respect the fact the functions use can take place as approved within part of the Pentre
Mawr courtyard.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
5.1 Having regard to the details, Officers recommend that it would be reasonable to support a
variation to Condition 12, with the suggestion that it be reworded as below to remove any
ambiguity from inclusion of the word ‘etc.’, which is considered imprecise and unenforceable.

RECOMMENDATION: APPROVE variation of Condition 12 .
The Condition shall be reworded as follows -

12. With the exception of the area hatched green on the plan submitted with the
application, the use of the remainder of the courtyard area between the accommodation
units and Pentre Mawr indicated on the approved site plan as a lawn, yard and slate
chippings, shall be limited to occupiers of the new accommodation units, guest
accommodation at Pentre Mawr Country House, and the owner/occupiers of Pentre Mawr,
their family and friends, and staff involved in the running of the business. “

NOTES TO APPLICANT:
The Council's attention has been drawn to the use of land and buildings affected by the application,

by an agricultural tenant. You should be aware that the grant of planning permission does not override
any civil law restrictions which may prevent the implementation of the planning consent.

Page 102



WARD:

WARD MEMBER:

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL:

LOCATION:

Agenda Item 9

Llanrhaeadr Yng Nghinmeirch
Councillor Joseph Welch
23/2015/0889/PF

Highway improvement works on B4501

Land at Bryn Glas Depot Saron Denbigh

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



50 m
100 ft

Well

GROESFFORDD MANT-Y-CI

// Denbighshire Boundary
© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Suney 100023408| | r S

23/2015/0889 sir ddinbych @
Scale: 1:2500 denbighshire Q&

Printed on: 4/1/2016 at 12:49 PM Page 105 © Denbighshire County Council



Page 106



v g _ 55 B il et ) ] £ L z | 1 .
" 2d £ JunoX ﬁ wdoey | revte ava | rizice avo R nﬂﬂn«ﬂ) e " HOINTY aaav | i| 2o [a) |
L) S A PuoeMvig ) TS o amy ™) va n-—“"ﬂﬂ.“ﬂ ‘ozol‘.h O AN TS Iﬂ..__ %] | ova —-n—n_ W _.
10430 SY19 NAME N0V CIMIAT | X030 DM i) BO5R £29 1P (olewe 1 .l-hh_.. CIADE FOKAMYA LS | o | T | ava | sieam |t
JSYHd AHIAINIT INIBUNL HOd 1NOAYT J350d0Hd unw puip 19004 Bouawsor) — —te 4§
SHYOM ONINIOIM 0350d0Yd e mm°u<-l R
..... ELTIAY ) o

_5.-";

32"
iN

IMPROVEMENT

YIHY NYSHIAND HLVd Ld3MSE

YIuY NNHEEAD KLV 1d3MS

AIAONIY 38 OL NI ONLLSINT

WVS-HIAD FIDIHIA 40 LNILAD

QITIVLISNI 38 0L IINII AYVHOINIAL —

Q3TIVISNI 38 OL LY AHVHOINAL [=

‘punodiwos Bugsixe
i |aagy preq [epslew
Jsepueifi Busn papnnsued
8q 0] eae Buniun) map—
[

O3NIVLSH 38 0L 3INZ ONILSNE ——

30VAUNS HYINNVEO MEN (IS

AT

9

aur) suoydals) pRaYarD

pasowal aq o]

eaua) Bunsixg.

PR i) "£1L02 Swbu seqeEp pue ybu/dod ueor) 3

Qg NOSNG TN 12907

B [prusboc) e wei) whaf) W WAL 1Ly LBOURESUR | NOHIVOOT

Page 107



Page 108



d¥IN NOILVION

Q3A0N3Y 39 0L 30N3d DNILSRE
Q3NIYL3Y 32 01 IONIJ ONILSIXD
SHHOM J0 INILX3T

AN

£y i S i ¥ € | z [ L
e T ~\ - ~
Zd Z3HNDIE | ivDoos |[ YETO ve | PITUC0 2va oL o voit Gry R Horsuy Qagv |angyjumn] o |asd
ﬁ A o DAY m.zum; 1} amy v e o:s__.unnn._-a-ﬂ..nn”.ﬂh .aoz-a:..h HESIANVNIING | @ | w0 | avo | naieo| 14
10430 SY19 NANE GINGERIIY @MIATY | 3030 DMMYHa L] o €0 19H{Chre L au:ah_-. TIAONTY EVIIY HSIBADONY NN | o | 31 | avo | stcoet] Za
1N0AYT LIS ONILSHA e U _sau.?hwahw
SHIOM ONINIOIM G3SOJOYd ———— SHOOVr
a ELP AN LLELY, - \, 7
-— nBESE..ESm\: 0 10 Sy ISEQRITD PUR miBidd03 W) 13
D 5
-
5 ; o
23 A
_— . ¥
3 T o b 2 .V
vy~
—
X M o
: .

QWY NOSHND YN MDD

Bang {pruuc) S wWig ¥ S W14 Lp1Bousmny | NOKYIOY

Page 109




Page 110



Philip Garner

WARD: Llanrhaeadr Yng Nghinmeirch

WARD MEMBER: Councillor Joseph Welch

APPLICATION NO: 23/2015/0889/PF

PROPOSAL: Highway improvement works on B4501
LOCATION: Land at Bryn Glas Depot Saron Denbigh
APPLICANT: Mr Martin Cole

CONSTRAINTS: None

PUBLICITY Site Notice — Yes

UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice — Yes

Neighbour letters — Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2
e Recommendation to grant — Community Council objection

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
LLANRHAEADR YNG NGHINMEIRCH COMMUNITY COUNCIL —
Object for the following reasons.

“Scottish Power intend to carry enormous vehicles on unclassified roads which are already
identified as being unsuitable for heavy goods vehicles. Although unclassified roads, the route
chosen by Scottish Power is extremely busy. The route chosen is also a route for the school
bus and school taxi service as well as being a busy route for tourists on their way to Saron and
Llyn Brenig. Commuters also use this road travelling to Denbigh or towards Cerrigydrudion as
do local residents.

Saron village has two caravan and camping sites and these roads are often used by walkers
who are drawn to the area because of its beauty and tranquillity. Local residents walking club
also pass this way. The cumulative impact of heavy traffic would significantly affect these other
road users.

Residential houses such as Bryn Glas, Bryn Golau and Bryn Golau Farm are extremely close
to the roadside. There are serious concerns about the damage to these properties as the heavy
goods vehicles are enormous and will undoubtedly be disruptive to local residents. We have
serious concerns about resident's well-being and the damage these vehicles could cause to the
buildings. The above named houses are also long established businesses where it is essential
that access to them is not disrupted. Bryn Glas Caravan Park is a registered Caravan Club site
and we have grave concerns over the negative impact upon this business.

The vast amount of heavy goods vehicles which could travel so near the village of Saron is
unacceptable. During the construction of Tir Mostyn and Foel Goch wind farms, a more direct
route was used and there was no inconvenience or concerns to local residents and businesses.
This should not be a concern during the construction of the North Wales Wind Farms
connection either.

As local residents and businesses already have the pylon route for the NWWF Connection
project, as well as the cumulative effects of the existing Tir Mostyn and Foel Goch wind farms
and the three wind farms associated with Clocaenog, we feel that having the transport route
through the ward of Llanrhaeadr yng Nhginmeirch is far too much. An alternative route should
be chosen.”

Page 111



NATURAL RESOURCES WALES —
No objection.

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES

HIGHWAY OFFICER —

No objection subject to conditions requiring approval of details of construction method
statement, and works to the depot access.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:
In objection
Representations received from:
i) Mervyn Wynne, Bryn Glas, Saron

Summary of planning based representations in objection:
i) Impact on water supply under the highway;
ii) Proximity of passing vehicles to the property.

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 08/12/2015

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION
e Awaiting consideration by Planning Committee

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1  The application seeks permission to undertake minor highway improvements at an

existing crossroads junction to the north west of Saron, as part of the works
necessary to allow passage of specific vehicles involved in the transport of turbine
parts required in connection with the construction of the consented Clocaenog Forest
Wind Farm.

1.1.2 The plans show a junction improvement at the Council’s Bryn Glas depot, involving
the realignment of the radius splay on the south side of what is an existing junction of
a minor road running south east off the B5401, using land forming part of the entrance
to the depot. The works include a widening of the tarmac surface and provision of an
additional 10 metres of surfaced area for vehicle ‘over-sail’ as the loads make their
turn.

1.1.3 The existing fence along the edge of the depot will be removed and replaced with a
new post and wire fence along the curved radii of the realigned junction along with a
new gate for access to the remaining area of the depot.

1.1.4 The development is proposed for a temporary period during the construction of the
wind farm only, with the land proposed to be reinstated to its current form once this
has been completed.

1.1.5 A separate application ref 25/2015/0890/PF involving changes to the width of the
highway near Ty'n y ffynnon, around 500 metres to the south west of the subject site,
has been approved under delegated powers, with no objections having been received
in response to consultation.

1.1.6 ltis relevant to the consideration of the application in the context of the Community
Council’'s comments, that the application does not seek consent for the routing of
construction traffic in association with the development of the Clocaenog Forest
Windfarm, which has already been considered and approved by the Planning
Inspectorate in the granting of the Development Consent Order for that scheme. The
applicants have provided a detailed outline of what is involved, and what has already

Page 112



been approved as part of the Development Consent Order, and this is attached in
section 1.6 of the report to help address points raised by the Community Council.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1 The site is at a crossroads / junction of the B4501 and a minor road running south
east towards Bryn Glas, a dwelling around 200 metres to the south east.

1.2.2  The primarily hardsurfaced depot is immediately to the south with fields/woodlands to
the other three sides of the junction.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site stands outside of any development boundary in an area without any specific
designation in the Local Development Plan.

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 Permission for the Clocaenog Forest wind farm itself was granted by the Secretary of
State in September 2014. The relevant contents of the Development Consent Order
are referred to in section 1.6 below.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1  None.

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1  The application is accompanied by a Design and Access Statement, a Planning
Report and a Scoping Opinion, with the latter concluding that the proposed works do
not trigger the requirement to undertake an EIA on the basis that the development
has the potential impacts typical of any minor highway works and as such the
development has no significant effects.

1.6.2 With respect to the comments of the Community Council and the private individual,
the applicants have provided detailed background information to clarify their
proposals in relation to construction traffic arrangements, which should give some
assurance over impacts on the local road network and private property:

“From the consultation responses, it is important to emphasise that the Bryn Glas
Depot application is not seeking to gain consent for the delivery of construction
materials to the wind farm, but to enable the movement of Abnormal Indivisible Loads
(AlLs) for turbine components. The access route has been assessed and approved as
part of the Clocaenog Forest Wind Farm (CFWF) Development Consent Order (DCO)
process, with consideration of all formal consultation responses at that time, including
those of Denbighshire County Council, local community councils and local residents
(see CFWF DCO Consultation Report, Annex U, AppDoc09).

It should be noted that the road improvements at Bryn Glas Depot will not, as has
been suggested in recent consultation responses, be used by vehicles transporting
cement, gravel and other construction materials. The road improvements subject to
this planning application are necessary for AlLs only. The proposed route for other
construction vehicles, such as HGVs, will be via the unclassified road from the cross
road junction of the B4501 and B5435.

CFWEF received a DCO from the Secretary of State, under the Planning Act 2008, in
September 2014. In Wales, associated developments, such as highway works and
grid connection while assessed, cannot be included in the DCO itself, so are subject
to separate planning applications: RWE has already obtained consent for the other
required road improvements along the access route, and now requires the same at
Bryn Glas Depot for Abnormal Indivisible Loads (AlLs).

During pre-application studies for the CFWF DCO, RWE identified four possible
routes for AlLs to access the CFWF, and conducted an access route options

Page 113



appraisal of these, which was included in the CFWF DCO application (ES Annex 2.2
Access Route Options Appraisal — see link below). The route options included a route
along Llyn Brenig’s eastern shore, a route across the consented Brenig wind farm, a
route across the operating Tir Mostyn wind farm and a route following the existing
public road network. The appraisal concluded that the preferred AIL delivery route
was by the existing public road network along the B4501, and then the unclassified
roads leading in to Clocaenog Forest.

The environmental effects of general construction HGVs and AlL deliveries were
assessed along the preferred route within the environmental impact assessment
accompanying the CFWF DCO application, and found to be within accepted limits set
by ‘Guidelines for the Environmental Assessment of Road Traffic’ (EART), published
by the Institute of Environmental Assessment (IEA) (ES 12.8.1.12). For the purposes
of the traffic assessment, a worst-case was assumed that all stone will be imported
from local quarries, however lt is likely that a significant proportion of stone aggregate
will be sourced from borrow pits located within the site boundary, which will result in a
significant reduction in anticipated HGV traffic on the local highway network, to that
assessed.

As part of the CFWF environmental assessment of possible impacts resulting from
construction traffic, several mitigation measures were proposed to reduce the residual
effect of the development on all road users, affected residents and local businesses.
Primarily these measures are to be included within a Construction Traffic
Management Plan (CTMP) which will include measures to ensure the highway is
maintained and remains safe during the construction period, to maintain dialogue with
the local community to minimise delays to other road users, to ensure local
businesses are updated with the construction activates to enable them to plan around
any potential disruptions and to ensure that construction vehicles conform to the
agreed routeing strategy and avoid key sensitive receptors such as schools during
arrival / departure times and busy towns during hours of peak background traffic
activity.

The effects of vibration from construction vehicles were assessed along the preferred
route in the environmental impact assessment accompanying the CFWF DCO
application (ES 11.3.3.1). which concluded that construction traffic would not cause
structural or cosmetic damage to buildings, as this occurs at much higher levels; they
would not be sufficient to constitute a risk of significant impacts based on guidance
set out in BS 5228 part 2.

The Examining Authority (ExA) recommended consent for the Clocaenog Forest Wind
Farm, including the preferred access route past Bryn Glas Depot, noting this in the
ExA’s Recommendation Report to the Secretary of State (Para 2.22) and that, where
necessary, offsite highways works would be subject to separate planning application
(Para 2.23 22 ) The ExA concluded that she was satisfied that there are no
outstanding issues relating to traffic and highways (8.36), public access, recreation or
tourism (8.37)

As requested by the resident at Bryn Glas property during pre-application consultation
for the CFWF DCO, RWE has already proposed to route HGVs separately from AlLs
past Bryn Glas property (ES 12.7.7.2.). Subsequent to CFWF receiving consent,
RWE has met with the resident at Bryn Glas property to discuss his remaining
concerns. In addition to the before and after highway condition surveys along the
access route, agreed with DCC & CCBC to be included in the CTMP (ES
12.7.10.12.), RWE has exceptionally agreed to a pre-delivery structural survey of
Bryn Glas property.”

Extracts from the Examining Authority’s Recommendation Report to the Secretary of

State are referenced below to confirm the conclusions on the construction traffic
issue:

Page 114



“2.22 The preferred access route to the site would be from just beyond the crossroads
with the B5435 at the Bryn Glas Depot on the B4501, entering the northern boundary
of the application site on an unclassified road which lies to the east of Llyn Brenig.

2.23 Some off site works would be required to provide a route for the delivery of the
turbines as Abnormal Indivisible Loads (AIL). The North Wales Trunk Road Agency
(NWTRA) and CCBC have requested that works to the strategic highway should be
permanent so that future wind farm development can make use of the same access
route. Where necessary, off site highway works would be subject to separate planning
applications.

8.28 There would be change to the quality of the experience of the forest for visitors
but little physical effect on access for walkers and cyclists. Horse riders may be
constrained if riding horses which are likely to be sensitive to the sight or sound of
wind turbines, but there would be alternative routes and other parts of the forest which
would be further from the turbines and available for horse riders to use. The impact on
public access and recreation would not be so significant as to weigh against the
project [paras 4.165 to 4.173].

8.36 Having regard to the requirements listed in the draft DCO which | deal with in
Section 7, | am satisfied that there are no outstanding issues relating to traffic and
highways which should weigh against the project [para 4.278—4.286].

8.37 There is no evidence to indicate that the project would have a harmful impact on
tourism. Measures would be put in place to encourage the use of local suppliers and
to recruit employees for the construction phase locally; and there would be no
significant impact on linguistic balance or human health [paras 4.287 to 4.303].”

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:

3.

2.1 23/2015/0360 — Request for screening opinion: Issued 15 June 2015.
2.2 25/2015/0890/PF — Highways improvement works land north east of Tyn Y Ffynnon:
GRANTED under delegated powers December 2015.

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4" June 2013)
Policy VOE9 — On-shore wind energy

Policy VOE10 — Renewable energy technologies

Policy ASA1 — New transport infrastructure

3.1 Supplementary Planning Guidance
None

3.2 Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 8 January 2016
Technical Advice Notes
Circulars

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 8, January 2016 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning
applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan
for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in

Page 115



the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

4.1.1 Principle
4.1.2 Visual amenity
4.1.3 Residential amenity

4.1.4 Highways

4.2In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle
Local Development Plan Policy VOE 9 is aimed primarily at new on-shore energy
projects, but includes the need for impacts, including cumulative impact on the
surrounding area and community e.g. landscape/visual, noise, biodiversity, transport,
health impacts, to be taken into account.

Policy VOE 10 of the LDP provides a general presumption in favour of renewable
energy technologies subject to no unacceptable impacts upon the interests of nature
conservation, wildlife, natural and cultural heritage, landscape, public health and
residential amenity.

Given that the junction works and running area is focused mainly on the existing
depot land rather than encroaching onto open fields, it is considered that the scheme
is acceptable in principle subject to consideration of visual/amenity impacts and
highways issues.

4.2.2 Visual amenity
In referring to what may be regarded as material considerations, Planning Policy

Wales 3.1.4 refers to the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings,
the means of access, landscaping, service availability and the impact on the
neighbourhood and on the environment. The impact of a development on visual
amenity is therefore a relevant test on planning applications. This is emphasised in
Paragraph 3.1.7, which states that proposals should be considered in terms of their
effect on the amenity and existing use of land and buildings in the public interest.

The widening of the highway as proposed in this location is not considered likely to
cause any significant harm to the visual amenity of the area as it relates to works
primarily within an existing highways depot and the proposal is to reinstate the land
once the wind farm development has been completed.

4.2.3 Residential amenity
Planning Policy Wales 3.1.4 refers to the number, size, layout, design and
appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping, service availability and
the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment as potentially material
considerations. The impact of a development on residential amenity is therefore a
relevant test on planning applications. This is emphasised in Paragraph 3.1.7, which
states that proposals should be considered in terms of their effect on the amenity
and existing use of land and buildings in the public interest. As the Courts have ruled
that the individual interest is an aspect of the public interest, it is therefore valid to
consider the effect of a proposal on the amenity of neighbouring properties.

The nearest property to the development is the dwelling at Bryn Glas which lies
around 200 metres away. Whilst the comments made by the occupier of this

Page 116



property are duly noted, the potential for damage to water pipes by vehicles using a
public highway is not a matter of relevance to determination of a planning
application. The developers would need to liaise with the owners of the property to
record road conditions and agree a mechanism for reinstatement if there were to be
damage to private supply pipes. Disturbance by construction vehicles is a relevant
matter but as will be evident from the information in section 1.6, the routing of
vehicles has already been considered as part of the Development Consent Order
process and this can not now be revisited or used as a ground for refusal of the
minor works actually proposed in the current application. The proposal to improve a
junction layout is not considered likely to give rise to harm to residential amenity.

4.2.4 Highways
Planning Policy Wales 3.1.4 refers to what may be regarded as material

considerations and that these can include the number, size, layout, design and
appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping, service availability and
the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment. The acceptability of
means of access is therefore a standard test on most planning applications. These
policies reflect general principles set out in Planning Policy Wales (Section 8) and
TAN 18 — Transport, in support of sustainable development.

Policy ASA 1 of the LDP allows for improvements to existing infrastructure facilities
and states these will be supported providing that the following criteria are met:

i) there is a need and justification for the proposal on economic and/ or social
grounds; and

ii) there are no unacceptable effects on the natural and built environment; and

iii) provision is made for safe access by all.

With respect to the Community Council’'s comments on the application, the routing of
construction traffic for the Clocaenog Forest windfarm has already been agreed as
part of the Development Consent Order for the Clocaenog Forest Windfarm, and
should not be a consideration on the merits of this application. The proposals to be
determined are solely to improve an existing road junction, and involve minor works
which will be in place for the length of time construction works on the wind farm
continue. The Highway Officer has considered the proposals in this context and
raises no objections on technical grounds to the works proposed, subject to
appropriate conditions.

The application is considered to be acceptable on technical highway grounds and is
in compliance with Policy ASA 1.

5 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
5.1 The application proposes minor highway improvements at a road junction for a temporary
period, in connection with the construction phase of the consented Clocaenog Forest wind
farm.

5.2Construction traffic routes in relation to the Clocaenog Forest wind farm have already been
considered and agreed as part of the Development Consent Order granted in 2014, and are
not for consideration in connection with this application. The junction improvements are
intended solely to allow access by vehicles involved in the transportation of turbine
components.

5.3The application should be determined on its own merits in terms of the land use planning
considerations covered in the report. Officers suggest there are no reasonable planning
grounds to oppose the grant of permission. For the reasons outlined previously, it is not
considered appropriate to frustrate the construction of a major development project through
refusing a simple road junction improvement, which is technically acceptable and is therefore
recommended to be granted.

Page 117



RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:-

The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than the expiration
of five years beginning with the date of this permission.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict accordance with details shown
on the following submitted plans and documents unless specified as otherwise within any
other condition pursuant to this permission:

(i) Existing site layout (Figure 2 rev P2) received 17 August 2015

(i) Proposed layout for turbine delivery phase (Figure 3 rev P2) received 17 August 2015

(ii) Proposed layout following reinstatement (Figure 4 rev P2) received 17 August 2015

(iv) Location plan (Figure 1 rev P1) received 17 August 2015

No development shall be permitted to take place until the written approval of the Local
Planning Authority has been obtained in relation to the site compound location, traffic
management scheme, hours and days of operation, the management and operation of
construction vehicles and the construction vehicles routes, and the works shall be carried out
strictly in accordance with the approved details.

Full details of the alterations and proposed reinstatement works required to the Bryn Glas
Depot access and the adjacent highway shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority before any works start on site. The details shall include detailed
design, drainage and construction and the works shall be completed in accordance with the
approved details before the development commences.

Within two months of the development of Clocaenog Forest wind farm being completed, the
land which is the subject of the highway improvements shall be reinstated in accordance with
the details on the submitted plans, or such additional details as may be approved in
connection with other conditions of this permission.

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):-

To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of development.

3. In the interest of the free and safe movement of traffic on the adjacent highway and to ensure
the formation of a safe and satisfactory access.

4. To ensure the formation of a safe and satisfactory access in the interest of traffic safety.

5. In the interests of visual amenity.

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

None

Page 118



WARD :

WARD MEMBERS:

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL:

LOCATION:

Agenda Item 10

Rhyl South West

ClIr Pat Jones (c)
ClIr Pete Prendergast (c)

45/2015/0468/PO

Development of 0.29ha of land by the demolition of
redundant factory unit and construction of a church
and community centre (outline application including
access)

Former Thorpe Engineering and Design Site Ffordd
Derwen Rhyl

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



Morfa Bach

A
1%

‘ord

2 .

© Crown copyright and database right&!P615@rfhance Surey 100023408, AL
45/2015/0468 sir ddinbych
Scale: 1:1250 denbighshire Q&

Printed on: 4/1/2016 at 13:50 PM Page 121 © Denbighshire County Council



Page 122



&

........

TT¥M 3ON2430 00014 40 dOL WGS'D ) ,Jn —

Y r 1 .u..u;..-L.

Page 123



Page 124



SKETCHES

coee bar sports hall

sanctuary




Page 126



JLLUSTAATIONS

-1h

cketch elevation

T

ey

23}551‘-“5...

1236014

Chaebars  Albior Wiarl. 19 Altilon Sereet,

CER N p i M ':%"' -
PR DR

a p ychite




Page 128



ILLUSTRATIVE
FLOOR PLAN

iy Lty

stuie

void - veld woer

e oy sanctusry

cofe — belew

amtronce tmmmpelling .

belew o Pt Lo

perts hall [d
f btlow rasm.
wifices
[— o [e— | S— o, — o faa—

[ comemmity Feem. Crnssing

o j reome, storage | anempe

N | e

{1 L]

o] ] e sscapd
rniing e
room

M L
L~T

woid

aver P .

oot | et (e e g

erttuie .

heig PP
=1

_ tollets sports hall
R . youth
J Toonting
room
o]l e T
A | N 1% el
foad changing B
gt fowiny ams vig
ol stair
A : kg —

T 7Y i S e \."—”‘

L — | o

b

e/ -

church pebis i I
oottes e i
b 87 parking tpacai (inc 4 .
— ™ +=

v) — cyclompacan H.
= +

. -

[::I] Lmrmﬁqf:m i

¥ &

utiitiey [

"“"||||||||||||||||||||||L:_|

#ak

b W | SEE el e

3 o rohitec “Mtion Cuumbens  Mbior Wharl 19 AlkonStrest Manchestae 1SN 1. o ¥ _
mhl,tecmre . TO1G12368014 F:0161 234 6511 E: cadibcadrehitucture.com J"-

Page 129



Page 130



WARD :

WARD MEMBERS:

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL.:

LOCATION:

APPLICANT:

CONSTRAINTS:

PUBLICITY
UNDERTAKEN:

Philip Garner
Rhyl South West

Clir Pat Jones (c)
Clir Pete Prendergast (c)

45/2015/0468/PO

Development of 0.29ha of land by the demolition of redundant
factory unit and construction of a church and community centre
(outline application including access)

Former Thorpe Engineering and Design Site Ffordd Derwen
Rhyl

Rev Mike Bettaney Wellspring Christian Centre

C1 Flood Zone (revision)
EA Floodmap Zone 3
EA Floodmap Zone 2

Site Notice — Yes
Press Notice — Yes
Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:

Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Recommendation to refuse — 201 name petition in favour received.

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
RHYL TOWN COUNCIL -

“No objection.”

WELSH WATER —

No objections .Standard comments relating to water discharge and sewerage.

NATURAL RESOURCES WALES —

Raised initial objections to the proposal as the submission was made without a Flood
Consequences Assessment (FCA). However, once an FCA was produced Natural Resources
Wales provided further comments :

“the developer proposes to locate car parking, a reception area, coffee bar and toilets at ground

floor level. All other (“highly vulnerable”) facilities will be located at first floor level and above.
The first and second floors would be used as an emergency “refuge” in the event of sudden
and extreme flooding in this community. Whilst your Authority should note that there are

numerous Planning Inspector Reports that clearly state that the provision of emergency refuges
within developments should not be used as a means of justifying new development in flood risk

areas, we accept that the provision of first and second floors would provide some flood risk

“betterment” when compared with the existing site/conditions. Having reviewed the contents of

the limited FCA, it is our view that the contents of the FCA are generally commensurate to the

scale and nature of development and we have no overall flood risk objections to the proposals.”

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES

HIGHWAY OFFICER —

No objection subject to a condition relating to parking and turning provision.

PLANNING POLICY OFFICER —

Page 131



Objects to the proposal which is considered contrary to Policy PSE3 of the Local Development
Plan as it fails to comply with the second criteria requiring the continuous marketing of the site
for not less than one year.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:

A petition containing 201 names has been lodged in support of the development. This refers to the
demolition of both the unsightly and steel buildings on the site, and the construction of a purpose built
church complex to serve the needs of Rhyl, which is supported by the Town Council and local
politicians.

A representation from the adjacent commercial occupier (Kwikweld) confirms that interest was
expressed in renting the application site to allow for expansion but that no contract was forthcoming,
and suggests that this provides evidence of the demand for the site to continue in traditional
employment use.

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 22/07/2015
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable): Extensive discussions with the agent.
PLANNING ASSESSMENT:

1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals

1.1.1  The scheme seeks consent to demolish the existing vacant buildings at the site and to
construct a new building to be utilised as a church and community centre, with
associated car parking. The existing access into the site would be used without any
alterations.

1.1.2 The application is submitted in outline form seeking approval only of the access, with
the matters of appearance, landscaping, layout and scale all reserved for future
approval.

1.1.3 The indicative layout and appearance plans submitted are produced at the front of the
report and show the main building to the front (west) of the site with the car parking to
the rear all provided on the ground floor, with the development then having two upper
floors over the top of the majority of the site area. The plans indicate a sports hall on
the first floor along with a sanctuary and toilets etc, with the second floor containing
two voids over the sports hall and sanctuary with community rooms, storage, etc.

1.1.4 The scale and appearance of the building to the road is indicated as having a flat roof
up to a height of 9.9 metres to be in line with the adjacent Howdens building to the
south and taller than the industrial building to the north, which is indicated as being
approximately 7 metres in height.

1.1.5 The layout shows parking for 87 cars which includes 4 disabled bays along with 3
motorbike spaces and cycle parking for 16 bikes.

1.1.6 The application form suggests that the existing buildings at the site have an area of
836 sgm, which will be replaced with the new building containing 3400 sgm. It is
further stated that employment for 11 full-time jobs and 13 part-time jobs will be
created, the equivalent of 18 full-time positions. The hours of use are not stated.

1.1.7 The scheme is accompanied by a Design and Access Statement which suggests that:
e The proposal is for a major new church and community facility development which will
be of significant benefit to Rhyl as a whole, but in particular to the western area of
Rhyl where some of the most serious social problems are experienced.
e Despite concerted attempts to look at all suitable alternative opportunities, there are
no alternative sites available now, or in the foreseeable future, where this
development might be located.

Page 132



2.

e Although the site is the subject of a policy protection in favour of employment uses,
the policy is, nevertheless, capable of being outweighed by other material
considerations; in this case the desirability of establishing the proposed church and
community facility is a factor which would outweigh any policy objection.

e However, notwithstanding the above, it is clear that the proposal will itself generate
significant paid employment and, therefore, far from offending the policy, the proposal
is entirely consistent with its objectives.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1 At present, the site is occupied by two Class B1 units which have housed the former
‘Thorpe Engineering & Design’ business. The building located to the front of the site
is an older building, of brick construction and is physically attached to the unit sited on
the corner of Ffordd Derwen with Cefndy Road.

1.2.2 The site fronts Ffordd Derwen and is abutted by existing employment units to the
north and south and across the road to the west, with a residential development under
construction on land to the rear (east). The perimeter of the site is formed by fencing
and mesh at a height of around 2 metres.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site is located within the development boundary of Rhyl in an area designated as
an Employment Area under Policy PSE 2 of the Local Development Plan.

1.3.2 The land is within a Flood Zone C1, as indicated on current Development Advice
Maps.

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 The site has an extensive history of extensions and alterations to the buildings in
employment use at the site.

1.4.2 Members may recall dealing with a similar application to that currently proposed,
under ref 45/2013/0566 in July 2013. Permission was refused as it was not
considered the submission demonstrated that there were no other suitable sites
available for the proposed use or that a continuous marketing process of 1 year had
been undertaken to demonstrate that the site or premises was no longer capable of
providing an acceptable standard of accommodation for employment purposes. In
relation to the planning policy tests, it was considered that the loss of the site or
premises would prejudice the ability of the area to meet a range of local employment
needs.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 Discussions with the agent have been ongoing since submission of the current
application, in particular in respect of the lack of marketing of the property. The agent
has sought to address this matter by suggesting that the scheme will create a total of
24 jobs comprised of 13 full-time positions and 11 part-time posts. In addition, a
Flood Consequences Assessment was submitted in August 2015.

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 None.

DETAILS OF RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY:

2.1 45/2013/0566/PO - Development of 0.29ha of land by the demolition of redundant factory unit
and construction of a church and community centre to include church coffee shop, sports hall,
day centre for the elderly and children's youth facility (outline application including access and
layout):

Refused at Planning Committee.
Refusal dated 24 July 2013 - Reason:

Page 133



“It is the opinion of the Local Planning Authority that the proposal is in direct conflict with
Policies PSE 2 and PSE 3 of the Denbighshire Local Development Plan. It is not considered
the submission demonstrates that there are no other suitable sites available for the proposed
use or that a continuous marketing process of 1 year has been undertaken to demonstrate
that the site or premises is no longer capable of providing an acceptable standard of
accommodation for employment purposes. Having regard to the policy, therefore, it is
considered that the loss of the site or premises would prejudice the ability of the area to meet
a range of local employment needs.”

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4™ June 2013)
Policy RD1 — Sustainable development and good standard design
Policy PSE 2 — Land for Employment Uses
Policy PSE 3 — Protection of Employment Land and buildings
Policy ASA3 — Parking standards

3.1 Supplementary Planning Guidance
SPG 21 — Parking

3.2 Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 8, January 2016
Technical Advice Note 15 — Development and Flood Risk (2004)
Technical Advice Note 23 - Economic Development ( 2014)

4 MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 8, January 2016 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning
applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan
for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

Principle

Visual amenity
Residential amenity

3
.4 Highways (including access and parking)
.5 Flood risk

4.
4.
4.1
4.1
4.1

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle

At Welsh Government level, there is general advice in TAN 23 paragraph 1.1.6 that
the traditional land use classes B1 to B8 must continue to be planned for in a
sustainable way as these form the basis for development plan policies. Paragraph
4.6.8 of TAN 23 stresses the need for local planning authorities to avoid releasing
land for other uses where there is strong evidence of likely future demand for B1 to
B8 uses, and that in some areas older lower-cost employment areas may be
required especially for small and new firms who cannot afford newer and more
prestigious accommodation. The same paragraph of TAN 23 concludes that the loss
of such areas may cause harm to local economies and should be avoided.

Page 134



Policy PSE 2 of the Local Development Plan supports development of existing
employment sites on the proposals maps, by way of uses within Class B1 (Business
Use). B2 (General Industrial and Waste Management facilities) and B8
(Warehousing and Distribution). This is a more detailed policy complimenting the ‘in
principle’ support for retention and promotion of a mix of employment generating
uses in Policy PSE 1 relating to the North Wales Coast Strategic Regeneration Area.

The proposal is for a Class D use as described in the Use Classes Order, and,
therefore is not supported by Policy PSE 2. Whilst it is noted the development may
provide for a number of jobs in the locality due to the running and maintenance of
the Church and Community Centre, the proposed use of land cannot be considered
as a defined employment land use.

Policy PSE 3 of the Local Development Plan looks to protect employment land or
buildings from development which would result in their loss, which will only be
supported provided that:

i) there are no other suitable sites available for this development; and

i) a continuous marketing process of 1 year, alongside all practical attempts possible
to retain the employment use, has demonstrated that the site or premises is no
longer capable of providing an acceptable standard of accommodation for
employment purposes; and

iii) the loss of the site or premises would not prejudice the ability of an area to meet a
range of local employment needs or the proposal involves the satisfactory relocation
of a non-conforming use from an unsuitable site.

An assessment of the three criteria of Policy PSE 3 follows:
i) There are no other suitable sites available for this development

The Design and Access Statement contains an appendix that provides information
on the search for alternative sites and provides information on land agents/surveyors
involved in the search. It lists eight possible locations in the vicinity of the application
sites, and outlines reasons why these are unsuitable. The information provided
indicates there are no other suitable sites available for this development, although
Officers assessment is that the submitted report is not particularly comprehensive.

ii) a continuous marketing process of 1 year, alongside all practical attempts
possible to retain the employment use, has demonstrated that the site or
premises is no longer capable of providing an acceptable standard of
accommodation for employment purposes

There is no information contained in the application regarding any marketing
exercise carried out to demonstrate whether the site is no longer capable of use for
employment purposes. This seems an essential requirement to comply with the
policy and is relevant to policy criteria iii) below to show that the loss of the site
would not prejudice the ability of the area to meet a range of local employment
needs. The Development Plan Officer objects to the application on the basis of
conflict with this policy.

i) the loss of the site or premises would not prejudice the ability of an area to
meet a range of local employment needs or the proposal involves the
satisfactory relocation of a non-conforming use from an unsuitable site.

It is explained in the Design and Access Statement that the Wellspring Church
requires a new location because they would like to considerably expand the service
they provide for the community at the moment. It is argued that the current site is
not suitable because the Wellspring Church wishes to expand its community offer.

In respecting the motives, Officers suggest this is a different matter from relocating a
non-conforming use.

Page 135



As referred to earlier in this report, a response from an adjacent land owner has also
been submitted indicating an interest was expressed in leasing the site to allow for
their expansion. This adds further credence to the demand for the continued use of
the land for traditional B1 to B8 use classes.

It is therefore concluded that the proposal fails to comply with LDP Policy PSE 3 as a
robust marketing exercise has not been undertaken for at least one year to show
that the site is not capable of remaining in employment use, and insufficient
information has been provided to demonstrate that the loss of employment land and
buildings is justified in line with LDP Policy PSE 2. The development is also contrary
to the advice of TAN 23 in regard to the release of land in established employment
areas for non-B class uses.

4.2.2 Visual amenity
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,

layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use
of land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the
visual impact of development; test (iv) requires that development does not
unacceptably affect prominent public views into, out of, or across any settlement or
area of open countryside; test (v) requires the incorporation of existing landscape or
other features, takes account of site contours, and changes in levels and prominent
skylines; and test (xiii) requires the incorporation of suitable landscaping measures
to protect and enhance development in its local context.

The final appearance of the proposed development would be subject to
consideration at reserved matters stage. Given that the area is primarily in
employment use, other than the new residential development to the rear, it is not
considered that there is any basis for opposing the application based on visual
amenity at outline stage.

4.2.3 Residential amenity
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use
of land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which touch on the potential for
impact on residential amenity; test (vi) sets the requirement to assess the impact of
development on the amenities of local residents, other land and property users, or
characteristics of the locality, in terms of increased activity, disturbance, noise, dust,
fumes, litter, drainage, light pollution, etc.

The site abuts employment uses to the north and south, and has further such uses
across the road to the west. However the land is adjacent to a residential
development to the east and due consideration needs to be given to potential
impacts on residents.

It is relevant in this context that the designation for the land on which the site stands
is for employment use and therefore new commercial development would be
appropriate in principle, which could involve large-scale buildings and employment
generating uses. It is not considered that the use proposed would be likely to give
rise to a level of noise and disturbance over and above that which could arise from
such an employment use. A refusal based on impact on residential amenity could
not therefore be justified.

4.2.4 Highways (including access and parking)
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 tests (vii) and (viii) oblige provision of safe and
convenient access for a range of users, together with adequate parking, services
and manoeuvring space; and consideration of the impact of development on the
local highway network. Policy ASA 3 requires adequate parking spaces for cars and
bicycles in connection with development proposals, and outlines considerations to
be given to factors relevant to the application of standards. These policies reflect

Page 136



general principles set out in Planning Policy Wales (Section 8) and TAN 18 —
Transport, in support of sustainable development.

The Highway Officers raise no objection to the application subject to imposition of
conditions. It is not considered that the scheme as proposed would be harmful to
highway safety as the development would be served by the existing access point,
and the development appears to provide a satisfactory number of parking spaces.
Full details would be subject to closer scrutiny at a reserved matters stage where the
exact site layout and floor space information would need to be provided.

4.2.5 Flood risk
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (xi) requires that development satisfies
physical or natural environmental considerations relating to drainage and liability to
flooding. Planning Policy Wales Section 13.2 identifies flood risk as a material
consideration in planning and along with TAN 15 — Development and Flood Risk,
provides a detailed framework within which risks arising from different sources of
flooding should be assessed.

The site is located within a C1 flood zone, with the existing industrial use being in the
low vulnerability category and the proposed use being considered a ‘highly
vulnerable’ use. Natural Resources Wales have revised their comments following the
submission of the Flood Consequences Assessment, advising that the contents of
the FCA are generally commensurate to the scale and nature of development and
they have no overall flood risk objections to the proposals, although it is relevant to
note they consider the provision of emergency refuges within developments should
not be used as a means of justifying new development in flood risk areas, albeit that
they accept that the provision of first and second floors would provide some flood
risk “betterment” when compared with the existing site/conditions.

Technical Advice Note 15 provides detailed advice to Local Planning Authorities on
the assessment of flood risk in relation to new development. It sets out specific
planning considerations to be given to proposals in C1 flood zones, and in relation to
applications involving ‘highly vulnerable’ development (e.g. a public building) states
that new development should only be permitted if it is determined by the Local
Planning Authority to be justified in the location. The relevant section (6.2) states that
development can only be justified if it can be demonstrated that :

i. Its location in zone C is necessary to assist, or be part of, a local authority
regeneration initiative or a local authority strategy required to sustain an existing
settlement; or,

ii Its location in zone C is necessary to contribute to key employment objectives
supported by the local authority, and other key partners, to sustain an existing
settlement or region;

and,

iii It concurs with the aims of PPW and meets the definition of previously developed
land (PPW fig 2.1); and,

iv The potential consequences of a flooding event for the particular type of
development have been considered, and in terms of the criteria contained in
sections 5 and 7 and appendix 1 found to be acceptable.

Having regard to the tests in paragraph 6.2 of TAN15, Officers would question
whether the development proposed is ‘justified’ in relation to the wording of (i) or (ii),
and whilst it involves previously developed land (test (iii)), and the consequences of
flooding have been considered (test (iv)), NRW express doubts over the provision of
emergency refuges within developments as a means of justifying new development
in flood risk areas. Overall it is concluded that the proposals do not demonstrate that
the justification tests of TAN 15 are met.

Page 137



5 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:

5.1 Whilst respecting the desire of the applicants to improve and expand the service to the
local community, Officers conclusion remains as in July 2013 when the previous
application was refused by the Committee, that the proposals are clearly contrary to
current planning policy as they fail to address the issue of the loss of employment land.
Additionally, having regard to the comments of Natural resources Wales and the advice in
TAN15, it is considered that the proposals do not meet the justification tests for
development in a C1 flood zone.

RECOMMENDATION: REFUSE- for the following reasons:-

The reasons are:-

1. It is the opinion of the Local Planning Authority that the proposal is in conflict with Policies
PSE 2 and PSE 3 of the Denbighshire Local Development Plan and the advice in Technical
Advice Note 23 'Economic Development'. It is not considered the submission shows that a
continuous marketing process of one year has been undertaken to demonstrate that the site
or premises is no longer capable of providing an acceptable standard of accommodation for
employment purposes, and having regard to the policy, it is considered that the loss of the
site or premises to the proposed use would prejudice the ability of the area to meet a range of
local employment needs.

2. It is the opinion of the Local Planning Authority that the proposal does not meet the
justification tests set out in Section 6.2 of Technical Advice Note 15 - Development and Flood
Risk (2004) in relation to highly vulnerable development in a C1 flood zone, and that it would
be inappropriate to permit development which could give rise to unacceptable risks in a flood
event.

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

None

Page 138



Agenda Item 11

WARD : Rhyl West

WARD MEMBER(S): Clir lan Armstrong (c)
ClIr Joan Butterfield (c)

APPLICATION NO:  45/2015/0780/ PR

PROPOSAL: Details of appearance, landscaping, layout and scale
of phase 1 of mixed-use redevelopment scheme
incorporating the development of 2 no. blocks
containing retail uses (bulky goods, food and non-
food) and leisure uses; a detached 54 bed hotel, 2 no.
substations, car parking and other ancillary works
submitted in accordance with condition number 1 of
outline planning permission 45/2013/1510 (Reserved
Matters Application)

LOCATION: Ocean Beach Site Wellington Road Rhyl

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank



Filot Beacon

{

Slipway
Sluice

Marine Lake

N

C) Cr%_xcopyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Suney 100023408.
“ .

45/2015/0780
Scale: 1:2500

Printed on: 4/1/2016 at 13:55 PM Page 141

P\:ns;s.
Ppg Sta - (coversd)

Reservair

Posts | cisure Park

Sea Cadets Boathouse

Marine Lake

Denbighshire Boundary
LAY

sir ddinbych %
de”bigl‘ghi&?v

© Denbighshire County Council



Page 142



mitplogs

AR 02 S)IB}IYDIB-MU MMM
b T T T TR Y

EN SN WY

LAYOUT -

SL2ILIHIEY-MN

ERTEea

LoLY

R
111

[A——



Page 144



9 EOM9EOSH
Q b

o w05t

wrea l"“ v
o == =
v ok - =

K TITTTZZ =

wn feng vy I 7L \\\‘\\HM.‘
A k) ao B S <)
H M1 04yl oas
Q. =

YN 00" 5)3aIY2E-MU MM
LU CLLE ) MTERCIH Pl P ki Sty
LI FEY- e} iring by ]

ey

b spoaumouv-mn (1]

- -y
AT9 MALTAUNE et
ey —

it




Page 146



b P e — = CE e — - - g

w s s b g mban )

LensiA | el SR : : YN°00'S}08JIUIIE-MU MMM
. Fioeeno | : > L IR LIRS 9150 OV £410 0] - TR0 TN i fuisbn
' - - K3 151 o) e ADp 1T

it Aenp euien ¥ _ S193LHOYY-MN

/)
s

1%,

%
Sl o)y

o
Tn

s

o




Page 148



- Non&.wm.m.mlm

Ll
gy g

whe
——

1y @oors

1
SUOGEA0L] PaInCtoD)
¥ bupng

T eyt

Wy
A2y ey

fells

ING A

P () 005

x:.oo.muom:zo.—mcic.ii_—s
AH N HH B R W (4 B - ¥ Sl drmiany
FLI e Y

S123LIHIHY-MN _H_n_

iy
wre i a0 e IL..I

BUlLD

__ * NOILYATTE LS3M HLHON

B Fioc o o A ¢ i | B ;
ol [} i | ..._.m U = # i -
i £y v, [ v, |
Sl d i © : i =
m “...h e = = " .mnn... -
L : ¥® % =
= = ———— e — R
T |
R s . e
A
I
|
; iy
= Tt S R
Es Ak L & s ; £
: ey L Eee iR s ‘
+ oy o e A el e b
il e T W e
2 EipL el = . .m¢.v.,m‘w.%.,.fﬁ.«w. "y
.. : S TR ThaE 1 e s :
3 i 1. A fiager - P =T ,..m.._.r e ik ia.
e i ¥ A T W S e
ot e .._” oy - e A e
j fg e e R

ey sk ) — 1y —

- m——r  Mema s o
—_— sy 3 -— ——
ATe BALLAY IIT ST

vy 0y




Page 150



_,N-&.wme.ml_.

@ o0

et

MR IWDE
NOILYATTA LSV3 HLNCS
S Jm!.l..l-. ) R ——————
1 ﬂ u
AERSSH ="

@

ik A Py g
o e Dy

Iifly
Iy __ ! |
.MV; e |__ I | wm..._

11m se me i e g ___
Pl Aot
B ek e o | —

.. NOLLYAZT3 1SV HLYON

bbb

NOILYATT3 153M I._.DOm_

Page 151

A ok e 1_1!.0'_._._..|
L 1 cy

T ]

b IS;mW; U\\ .m_..u ﬁ.__,.u

OILVYATTI LSIM HLMON

| |




Page 152



S
flle

161-9E051

A

Al

fal
®
g

BUILDING T

S1031IHOHY-MN _ﬂ_

.uju_....m !.J.h

ﬂl.J-H.-l. T TR _.._.-q TITA " p——1 G
==~ = = ¢ B 4

NOWLYAZTI HLUON

“mmmﬁd Py, e = EWHl 3

e qﬂa_wﬁ._:#:_mq.:ﬂbqﬂ “Hl.n.nl.n..J..m.ﬂ\.||.||..||“"| H . -
=00 P F R Bl

T ———— Tt I 1 1 ——— P a— e — g [
il riEls 4] [ e | e
e i IS et AR
o - - — y
] D = — [ — — e -
SnEn=n=nliesnsics=cscllo=cs

A T em— B

Page 153




Page 154



PJM

WARD : Rhyl West
WARD MEMBER(S): CliIr lan Armstrong (c)
Clir Joan Butterfield (c)
APPLICATION NO: 45/2015/0780/ PR
PROPOSAL: Details of appearance, landscaping, layout and scale of phase 1

of mixed-use redevelopment scheme incorporating the
development of 2 no. blocks containing retail uses (bulky goods,
food and non-food) and leisure uses; a detached 54 bed hotel, 2
no. substations, car parking and other ancillary works submitted
in accordance with condition number 1 of outline planning
permission 45/2013/1510 (Reserved Matters Application)

LOCATION: Ocean Beach Site Wellington Road Rhyl
APPLICANT: Scarborough Development Group (Rhyl) Ltd.
CONSTRAINTS: C1 Flood Zone

PUBLICITY Site Notice — Yes

UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice — Yes

Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Referral by Head of Planning / Development Manager

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
RHYL TOWN COUNCIL

“The Town Council Planning Committee is concerned that the development site is key for the long

term future well-being of the Town of Rhyl and its community.

It is the Planning Committee’s view that in the past the applicant has demonstrated a lack of

commitment/ability to undertake their responsibilities specified in conditions attached to previously
granted planning consents in respect of this site (as evidenced by the current appearance of the

site).

In light of this past experience the Town Council does not have confidence that any safeguards

applied to any new planning approval by way of condition will be subsequently implemented by the

applicant to the detriment of the well-being of the wider town community.

As such the Rhyl Town Council Planning Committee is declining to make any response to the
current application.”

CONWY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
No objection

NATURAL RESOURCES WALES

Page 155



No flood risk objections

DWR CYMRU / WELSH WATER
Reminds the applicant of the need to comply with drainage conditions from the Outline consent.

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES
County Ecologist

Recommends an amended landscape proposal which would support local biodiversity. Conditions
suggested to deal with this.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:

Betty Smith, 95 Ffordd Derwen, Rhyl

- Raises some issues over the proposed landscaping and impacts on bats and birds.
EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):

o re-consultations / further publicity necessary on amended plans and / or additional
information
. awaiting consideration by Committee

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1 Details of appearance, landscaping, layout and scale of new buildings (Reserved Matters)

have been submitted for phase 1 of the “Marina Quay” development on the site of the
former Fun Fair in Rhyl. The details show 2no. detached blocks to the north-east of the
site containing a mix of food, non-food retail and leisure uses. In addition, details of a 54
bed detached hotel building to the north of the site. Details of 2no. small sub-station
buildings are also shown, one to the north-east side and one to the west of the site.

1.1.2 Outline Consent for the redevelopment of the whole site was granted in February 2015.
The redevelopment proposal incorporated 5.3ha of land for the following elements:
- Foodstore
- Petrol Filing Station
- Non-Food retail units
- Hotel
- Public House
- Café/Restaurants

1.1.3 The Outline Consent included details of the means of access to the site but all other
matters were reserved for further approval. The Consent was the subject of a number of
planning conditions some of which sought to control minimum and maximum floor spaces
for certain uses (Leisure/retail).

1.1.4 Plans of the proposed food/non-food retail/leisure blocks and detached hotel are shown
at the front of this report.

1.1.5 Building A shows a detached retail/leisure block of some 3,455 sq.m incorporating an
external garden centre area. The building is shown with a maximum height of some 8.7m

Page 156



constructed from buff facing bring and coloured composite panels/glazing. The building is
to be located to the north-east of the site backing onto the Sydenham Avenue boundary.
Building B shows a detached food, non-food retail and leisure block of some 3,805 sqg.m.
The building matches Building A in terms of height and materials and again backs onto
Sydenham Avenue.

Building J is the detached hotel unit shown set back from the West Parade frontage to the
north of the site. The flat roofed structure is 1,605 sq.m and shown at a maximum height
of 10.5m in buff facing brick, timber cladding and white render. Some 54 car parking
spaces are shown to the rear of the hotel building.

The sub-station buildings are 27 sq.m and 50 sq.m respectively with the smaller of the
two located to the north-east of the site close to the Sydenham Avenue junction. The
buildings have a maximum height of 3m.

A hard and soft landscaping scheme has also been submitted with the application. Areas
outside of the Phase 1 development are shown to be grassed in anticipation of future
phases. Tree, shrub and other planted areas are shown around the main new buildings
and parking areas with some public art and seating areas also shown along the West
Parade area.

1.1.10 The application has been submitted with an updated Flood Consequences Assessment

1.2 Description of site and surroundings

1.2.1

1.2.2

1.2.3

The site sits on two levels. The higher part of the site fronts onto West Parade to the
north. The lower end has Wellington Road to the south with the Marine Lake beyond. To
the east of the site is Sydenham Avenue which contains a mix of dwellings and
businesses. To the west is Quay Street which still contains a Council run car park.

To the promenade side of the site much regeneration work has taken place within the
harbour area including a new cycle bridge, coastal defence works and a café.

More recently on the Marina Quay site, and in compliance with previously imposed
planning conditions, a frontage landscaping scheme was implemented which took down
old hoardings and grassed an area along West Parade.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations

1.3.1

The site lies within the development boundary of Rhyl. The site is within the North Wales
Coast Strategic Regeneration Area and is identified as a Brownfield Regeneration Priority
site. It is also sited partly within a C1 flood zone.

1.4 Relevant planning history

1.4.1

1.4.2

Planning permission was granted in November 2007 for a major mixed use scheme
incorporating 217 residential apartments, hotel, assembly and leisure, business, retalil,
cafes, restaurants and public houses, car parking, new public realm and ancillary uses
together with associated highways and other works, including 10 no. 6kw wind turbines
and 3 no. potential PV solar installations. This scheme was subject to a s.106 legall
agreement.

Planning permission was granted in December 2013 for a variation of condition on the
above scheme which gave a further 2 years for the scheme to be commenced. This was

Page 157



effectively an extension to the original scheme. This too was subject to a s.106 legal
agreement.

1.4.3 In February 2015 Outline Planning permission was granted for a further mixed use
scheme, similar to the original, but removing the residential element. The Consent was
again subject to a legal agreement which secured a financial contribution towards
improvement to town centre links. A condition was imposed on this scheme which
required interim landscaping works to be undertake to the West parade frontage.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 The application was amended to provide a landscape proposal. At this time additional
plans were submitted which amended the appearance of the Building A elevations in
order to enhance the West Parade frontage.

1.5.2  Further information on flood risk was also submitted during the application assessment in
order to clarify possible impacts on off-site areas.

1.6 Other relevant background information

1.6.1  Members will recall that an interim landscaping scheme has been implemented to the
West Parade frontage following the removal of a works compound associated with the
completion of the Rhyl Sea Defences. A presentation was given to the Rhyl Member Area
Group in November 2015 at which the applicants explained their Phase 1 proposals.
They explained that they are also seeking to discharge other relevant conditions imposed
on the Outline Consent before making a lawful commencement of the February 2015
consent.

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
45/2006/1200/PF - Demolition and redevelopment of 7.625 hectares of land to provide a mixed
use development comprising 217 residential apartments, hotel, assembly and leisure, business,
retail, cafes, restaurants and public houses, car parking, new public realm and ancillary uses
together with associated highways and other works, including 10 no. 6kw wind turbines and 3 no.
potential PV solar installations — GRANTED by Committee 27" November 2007. This
permission included planning conditions and a s.106 legal agreement. The main elements
of the s.106 legal agreement are as below:-

e financial contribution by the developer into a “regeneration pot” in lieu of affordable housing
and open space provision on site. Secured through a bond.

e  CCTV links provided by the developer

e  Provision of public open space by the developer

e  For the developer to address the relocation of the Asda store in Kinmel Bay to the
development site by putting in a planning proposal to Conwy CBC.

e  For the developer to carry out flood mitigation works.

e  For the developer to carry out landscaping works

e  For the developer to ensure BREEAM very good ratings.

45/2012/1236/PS - Variation of Condition No. 1 of planning permission Code No.
45/2006/1200/PF (for demolition and redevelopment of 7.625 hectares of land for mixed-use
development) to allow the grant of planning permission for a further 2 years — GRANTED by
Committee 9" December 2013. This permission included the s.106 obligations as set out
above and relevant planning conditions, including one to address the apperance of the
site.

45/2013/1510/PO — Development of 5.3ha of land for mixed-use redevelopment to include
provision of a foodstore (Class A1), large format non-food retail units (Class A1), café/restaurant

Page 158



units (Class A3), hotel (Class C1), Public House (Class A3), petrol filling station (sui generis) with
associated access, car parking, infrastructure (including sub-station) and landscaping (Outline
application including access — all other matters reserved) — GRANTED by Committee on 12"
November 2014. Certificate issued 24" February 2015 on signing of s.106 legal agreement.

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4" June 2013)
Policy BSC 2: Brownfield Development Priority Allocation

Policy PSE 1: North Wales Coast Strategic Regeneration Area.
Policy PSE 6: Retail Economy

Policy PSE 9: Out of Centre Retail Development

Policy VOE 6: Water Management

Policy ASA 3: Parking Standards

3.1 Supplementary Planning Guidance
SPG - Landscaping
SPG - Access for All

SPG - Parking Standards

3.2 Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 8, January 2016
Technical Advice Notes

TAN 4 — Retailing and Town Centres
TAN 5 — Nature Conservation

TAN 11 — Noise

TAN 12 — Design

TAN 13 — Tourism

TAN 14 — Coastal Planning

TAN 15 — Development and Flood Risk
TAN 18 — Transport

TAN 22 — Sustainable Buildings

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 8, January 2016 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning
applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan for
the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that

Page 159



material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in the
public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these can
include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the Denbighshire
Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are considered to be of
relevance to the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

ARARAD

1.1 Principle and General Planning Considerations
1.2 Compliance with Outline Consent

1.3 Impact on visual amenity

1.4 Impact on residential amenity

1.5 Impact on Ecology

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:

General Planning Policy Context
4.2.1 The main policies in the Local Development Plan (LDP) which are relevant to the
principle of the development are:

Policy BSC 2 — The Marina Quay site is allocated as a Brownfield Development Priority in the
adopted Local Development Plan. Policy BSC 2 seeks to ensure that development proposals
in lower growth towns such as Rhyl are directed towards previously developed land. The site is
identified as having the potential to contribute towards sustainable town regeneration and
economic growth. In this sense, the planning proposal would benefit from support with the site
being allocated as a Brownfield Development Priority.

Policy PSE 1 - Policy PSE 1 of the LDP seeks to ensure that the Council will support
proposals which may address existing problems of deprivation in a manner consistent with
sustainable development. The site occupies a key gateway location into Rhyl, and in this
respect, the proposed development would help to address problems of deprivation in the
identified Strategic Regeneration Area. The regeneration of this site in the manner proposed
will bring jobs and opportunities for the local area. This is compliant with the intentions of the
Policy.

Policy PSE 6 — This Policy reinforces Welsh Government Policy aiming to direct new retail
development towards town centres in the first instance. The application site is located outside
the defined town centre of Rhyl. However, one must have careful regard to the extant
permission for food and non-food retailing on the site. In addition the applicant had submitted a
detailed retail impact assessment with the Outline scheme to support the current proposal.
This assessment identifies a need for additional retail and stresses that there are no available
sequentially preferable sites in or closer to the town centre.

Policy PSE 9 — This Policy helps to support Policy PSE 6 above by restricting any out of town
centre retail development. The proposed retail offer on the application site is well over the 500
sg.m which the Policy may allow for out of centres. However, the retail assessment undertaken
at the Outline stage highlights the regeneration benefits offered by this food store led
development. It stresses that the proposal would not give rise to any significant adverse
impacts upon the trade or turnover of any surrounding centre.

Page 160



Policy VOE 6 — Water Management — This Policy seeks to ensure major developments
reduce surface water run-off rates and require the developer to make reference to water
management in their submission. The applicant has submitted a drainage plan which indicates
the intension to produce a sustainable, integrated drainage system for the site. Welsh Water
and NRW have no objection to the proposals.

Policy ASA 3 — Parking Standards — This Policy seeks to ensure, in line with standards set
within supplementary guidance, adequate on-site parking is provided for cars, motorcycles and
cycles. In addition requisite disabled facilities are also required. Highway engineers are
satisfied that the amount of car parking/disabled parking proposed to be provided on the site
meets the relevant standards for a development of this type.

Compliance with Outline Consent

422

4.2.3

The governing Outline planning permission imposed a number of controls on the
development of the site through the imposition of planning conditions. Firstly, the land
uses were specified within the description of the proposal. Some of these land uses were
then further controlled by conditions which sought to control the maximum and minimum
floor space therein.

In particular, the permission specified that there should be a minimum amount of leisure
based use in the scheme and a maximum amount of non-food retail use in the scheme.
This element was imposed to try to minimise any potential impacts on the Town Centre of
Rhyl.

The phase 1 scheme, as shown, contains a proposed 54 bed hotel use and two blocks of
mixed food and non-food retailing along with leisure space. The floor spaces shown
generally comply with the governing conditions mentioned above with only a small part of
the external garden centre area exceeding the non-food retailing space restriction.

In conjunction with the phase 1 details shown in this application there will be a number of
separate Outline planning condition details which will be assessed. These will need to be
discharged prior to the scheme progressing but are not being assessed as part of this
Reserved Matters proposal.

Impact on Visual Amenity

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the visual
impact of development; test (vi) requires that development does not unacceptably affect
prominent public views into, out of, or across any settlement or area of open countryside;
test (vi) requires the incorporation of existing landscape or other features, takes account
of site contours, and changes in levels and prominent skylines; and test (xiii) requires the
incorporation of suitable landscaping measures to protect and enhance development in
its local context.

The current application, which gives full design details of the proposed hotel and two
retail/leisure blocks, must also be considered having regard to previous detailed consents
on this site and historic uses. Firstly, when the site operated as a fun fair there were
some large structures which would have set a visual context for the surrounding area. In
2007 a major mixed use scheme was approved at the site which incorporated new built
development of the same scale, layout and height of that now proposed. The site has

Page 161



424

4.2.5

remained in a derelict state for some years now and the visual impact of any new
structures has to be assessed in the context of the historic position.

It is considered that the scale, height, design and materials of the new buildings are
acceptable from a visual perspective. The proposed landscaping will serve to soften the
impact of the new buildings and further assimilate the structures into the surrounding
area.

Impact on Residential Amenity

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which touch on the potential for impact on
residential amenity; test (vi) sets the requirement to assess the impact of development on
the amenities of local residents, other land and property users, or characteristics of the
locality, in terms of increased activity, disturbance, noise, dust, fumes, litter, drainage,
light pollution, etc.

Unfortunately, for many local residents and land users in the vicinity of the site they have
had to live with dereliction and inactivity for some years. To this end, any redevelopment
proposals could be seen to improve the residential amenity of those living nearby.

That said, it remains important to ensure that the closest dwellings to the development
site, on Sydenham Avenue, are reasonably protected in terms of the proximity of new
buildings and activity.

The rear elevation of Buildings A and B to the north-east of the site will be over 30m from
the nearest dwellings on Sydenham Avenue with only the open external garden centre
area on Building A within 22m of the closest dwelling.

Given the previous fun fair use and the levels of noise and activity associated with that, it
is not considered that the new buildings and activities to the north-east of the
development site will result in any significant loss of amenity to nearby residents.

Impact on Ecology

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (iii) requires development to protect and where
possible to enhance the local natural and historic environment. Policy VOE 5 requires due
assessment of potential impacts on protected species or designated sites of nature
conservation, including mitigation proposals, and suggests that permission should not be
granted where proposals are likely to cause significant harm to such interests. This
reflects policy and guidance in Planning Policy Wales (Section 5.2), current legislation
and SPG 18 — Nature Conservation and Species Protection, which stress the importance
of the planning system in meeting biodiversity objectives through promoting approaches
to development which create new opportunities to enhance biodiversity, prevent
biodiversity losses, or compensate for losses where damage is unavoidable.

The site has previously been cleared of structures and buildings and this was done
having regard to the impacts on birds and bats. It was always envisaged that any
redevelopment scheme will also need to consider these species and, where possible,
enhance biodiversity.

The applicant has acknowledged the comments received from the Council’s Ecologist
and accepts that conditions need to be imposed which will seek further details on planting
types and numbers in order to create a better and more connected environment for bats
and birds.

Page 162



5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:

5.1.1  The proposed new buildings on the site, having regard to the previous land use and state
of the site in recent years, are acceptable in terms of scale, layout, appearance and
landscaping. The external finishes of the two retail/leisure blocks, as well as the detached
hotel, are acceptable in this location. The redevelopment of the site has been awaited for
some years and it is considered that the regeneration benefits of the scheme outweigh
any concerns.

RECOMMENDATION: Approve Reserved Matters subject to the following conditions:-

1.

Notwithstanding the submitted details the landscaping for the site (including the matrix planting
and the amenity grassland) shall not be as shown on the submitted plans but shall be as further
agreed within a scheme to be submitted within 1 month of the date of this approval. Those details
should contain the location, number and species of trees and plants to be planted which
themselves should be endemic to the UK and of local provenance along with details of a long
term management plan for the landscaping.

The reason(s) for the condition is:-

1.

In the interests of the visual appearance of the site and surroundings and in the interests of
biodiversity.

Page 163



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

WARD : St Asaph
WARD MEMBER(S): Councillor Bill Cowie (c)

APPLICATION NO:  46/2015/0969/ PF

PROPOSAL: Construction of a new access and alterations to
existing access

LOCATION: Former Pilkington Special Glass Site Glascoed Road
St Asaph

Page 165



This page is intentionally left blank



50m
: 100 ft
Popd : =

Pond

-
=1

GasValve
Compound =

')
29

Gasialve House

'_-l
El Sub Sta Demwendeg /
GG
= &
w}f 4
_ 4
Pond
/
A
i
// O
-lr.
/& )

7

| o EF"Iast:I

\ = resgo
iy R ? :

= %
' [ o=
&
Tyn-y-caeau
% 4 Denbighshire Boundary
© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Gftnance Su.rﬁey 400023408. S

46/2015/0969 sir ddlnbYCh %
Scale: 1:2500 denblghf'h[)[sv

Printed on: 4/1/2016 at 14:00 PM Page 167 © Denbighshire County Council



Page 168



b

AlF3doud
u.uo._.um_do

AHYONNOG AYMHOIH GELLJIOOY
EY ¥4 BY G3GNADE HLYd HOVORAAY GNNOELEIM

35N GSUVHS "DNINITSLUHM ONY el Py
SMCYH M3N HIM O3ON3WY 36 0L ENODVELL HLIW VIV

o GYOY TI00SVIO HLIM HLNOWTI=Y 3Lg O
Avids st bz xayz L e D ALt CREUVH 40 SUINSD O MIH HUM GINDITYE o L=0rD

F-L DUAVHL HOS DONHILYH NI VD
e A N e e i .
Nu\..l Eoie W S ic s —
R T bl i T § :
—— ‘ 3 i =

P a9V G¥-—a-I30o Swirs

T =

I
#
Y E= = r
O =% ! FRFIEE

D3ANIMYZ] | AVRIS ALTIQISIA WESL X urvE
| HOJ.IDOOM. NUNLIHOM JNOHS ¢ |

—_——

DETAILS OF

ACCESS
%
3
:

=7 e o u....uu ......
——- ] 4

Page 169



Page 170



Emer O'Connor

WARD : St Asaph

WARD MEMBER(S): Councillor Bill Cowie (c)

APPLICATION NO: 46/2015/0969/ PF

PROPOSAL: Construction of a new access and alterations to existing access
LOCATION: Former Pilkington Special Glass Site Glascoed Road St Asaph
APPLICANT: Mr Tom Anwyl Glascoed Business Park Ltd.

CONSTRAINTS: None.

PUBLICITY Site Notice — Yes

UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice — No

Neighbour letters - Yes

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
ST ASAPH CITY COUNCIL: “No objection”.

CEFN MEIRIADOG COMMUNITY COUNCIL (neighbouring CC):
Original response “Cefn Meiriadog community council are concerned about the effect of this
new entrance on the residents of Derwen Deg”.

Second response “At their council meeting last night the Councillors revisited the application
and would like it to be refused for the following reasons;

1. The effect of noise of vehicles entering and exiting the site on Glascoed Road on the
Glascoed Road by a domestic dwelling.

2. The vehicle lights would be shining on a domestic property.

3. There would be more dust.

4. There are already 5 entrances on the north side of Glascoed Road and 4 entrances on

the south side entering this road.

The proposed entrance is on the brow of a hill.

The existing entrance to the site has been used for 50 years so why change it.

7. The disturbance of the domestic enjoyment of the property.

oo

CLWYD POWYS ARCHAEOLOGICAL TRUST: No objections. Recommend conditions
including a watching brief.

WALES AND WEST UTILITIES: No objections. Draw applicant’s attention to utilities apparatus
in the area.

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES
Biodiversity Officer
No objection subject to conditions relating to the need Great Crested Newts.

Highways Officer
No objection subject to conditions relating to the detailing of the access.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:
Representation received (in objection) from:
Eryl Davies, Derwen Deg, Glascoed Road, St Asaph.

Summary of representation:
Need- there is an existing access to the site.

Page 171



Highway safety- alterations to access will create access issues for Derwen Deg. Access would be
close to brow of hill and unsafe. Access would be too close to existing access points.

Levels- there is a difference of ground levels between site and the road.

Residential amenity- access would be opposite the dwelling, Derwen Deg.

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 19/11/2015
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION: Request to consult neighbouring Community Council.

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1  Planning permission is sought for the construction of an access off the B5381
Glascoed Road and onto the former Pilkington’s Glass factory site.

1.1.2 The access would serve the former factory site, which it is proposed to redevelop in
line with the employment allocation on the business park.

1.1.3 The proposed access would be approximately 85m to the west of the existing access
at Cwitir Lane.

1.1.4 The proposals incorporate a ‘ghost island’ right turn lane junction with Glascoed
Road, with a bellmouth arrangement.

1.1.5 The existing footpath and cycleway at the frontage of the site will be retained, and the
layout includes a pedestrian refuge island.

1.1.6 The existing access will be stopped up.
1.1.7 The plan at the front of the report shows details of the proposals.
1.2 Description of site and surroundings

1.2.1 The site is located on the northern side of Glascoed Road on the eastern approach to
the Business Park.

1.2.2 The site is currently vacant, having formally been occupied by the Pilkington’s Glass
Factory. The factory closed in 2008 and was demolished in 2009.

1.2.3 The existing vehicular access to the land is at the south east corner of the site and
enters Glascoed Road at an acute angle onto a splay area which forms the junction
with Cwitir Lane.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1  The site is located within the PSE 2 St Asaph Business Park allocation within the
Local Development Plan.

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 There is no recent relevant planning history on the site, or applications relating to
access arrangements.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 None.

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1  The application submission includes the plans attached to this report, a DAS and a
Technical Note prepared by Highways Consultants in support of the application.

1.6.2 The DAS sets out why the access is proposed. It states that the Applicants wish is to
promote the site for suitable employment uses, however the existing access is
unsuitable to safely and efficiently cater for the level and nature of vehicular traffic

Page 172



associated with such a use. For this reason a purpose built access is being sought.

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 None.

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4™ June 2013)
RD1 Sustainable Development and good standard design
PSE 2 Land for Employment Uses
VOE 5 Conservation of natural resources

SPG Nature Conservation and Species Protection
Government Policy / Guidance

Planning Policy Wales Edition 8, January 2016
TAN 18 Transport

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:
In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 8, January 2016 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning
applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan
for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

4.1.1 Principle

4.1.2 Residential amenity
4.1.3 Highway Safety
4.1.4 Biodiversity

41.5 Archaeology

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle

The site is located within the allocated St Asaph Business Park, a PSE 2 allocation
within the Local Development Plan. To facilitate access to the employment land would
not raise any in principle policy issues.
Related to this are the concerns raised in representations over the ‘need’ for the
proposed access. The number of accesses on Glascoed Road and the existence of
the original access to this site off Cwitir Lane have been referred to in
correspondence. In relation to this issue Officers suggest that planning policy does
not require a need be demonstrated for this type of development, i.e. an access to
serve employment land. However, the applicants have explained in the submission
that a suitable access is necessary to serve the large area of employment land
involved and to address inadequacies of the existing access.
The principle of the proposal is considered acceptable, and the detailed impacts are
considered below:

4.2.2 Residential Amenity

Page 173



423

424

Planning Policy Wales 3.1.4 refers to the impact on the neighbourhood and on the
environment as potentially material considerations. The impact of a development on
residential amenity is therefore a relevant test on planning applications. This is
emphasised in Paragraph 3.1.7 of PPW, which states that proposals should be
considered in terms of their effect on the amenity and existing use of land and
buildings in the public interest. Also the Courts have ruled that the individual interest
is an aspect of the public interest. It is therefore valid to consider the effect of a
proposal on the amenity of neighbouring properties.

The application proposes to create an improved access onto existing employment
land. The site lies opposite the dwelling Derwen Deg. Concerns have been raised by
the neighbouring occupiers and Cefn Meiriadog CC over the amenity impacts of the
access.

With respect to the comments of the objector and Community Council, it is suggested
relevant to take into account the fact that this is an existing employment site located
off a B road serving an established Business Park, where there is already an access
some 90m to the east of the dwelling as existing. The proposed access is unlikely to
change the level of activity and noise and disturbance on the former factory site itself.
Also it is noted that the proposed access is not directly opposite Derwen Deg, it is
sited slightly to the east of the dwelling. Whilst there may be some impacts on the
occupiers of the dwelling, considering the location of Derwen Deg in close proximity to
an existing employment allocation Officers consider it would be difficult to argue that
the impacts of the creation of the access on an individual neighbour would be so
adverse to warrant refusal of planning permission. As such the amenity impacts of the
proposal are not considered unacceptable.

Highway Safety
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 tests (vii) and (viii) oblige provision of safe and

convenient access for a range of users; and consideration of the impact of
development on the local highway network. These policies reflect general principles
set out in Planning Policy Wales (Section 8) and TAN 18 — Transport, in support of
sustainable development.

The application involves the creation of an access onto a B Road serving the
business park. The proposal includes a right turn waiting lane and a ghost island
within the road and alterations to the footpath and cycleway. Highways Officers have
considered the proposal and raise no objection to the access. Concerns have been
raised by the neighbouring occupier over the highways safety issues relating to the
scheme.

Whilst noting the comments of the objector, in considering a technical application of
this nature Officers are bound to take into account the advice of key consultees. The
Highways Officers have undertaken relevant safety assessment of the details. They
have accepted that the details and risks associated with the development can be
sufficiently managed and controlled by condition and deem the development
acceptable. Officers consider that the relevant policy and guidance in relation to
highways policies is met.

Archaeology
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (iii) requires development to protect and

where possible to enhance the local natural and historic environment. Planning Policy
Wales (Section 6.5) sets out a range of considerations to be given to the assessment
of archaeological issues, including approaches to recording and investigating
potential remains in conjunction with new development.

Clwyd Powys Archaeological Trust have advised that the application site is located off
a historic route, a roman road. Hence they have suggested if the Council are minded
to grant permission a condition is attached to ensure any items of archaeological
significance on the site are preserved and/or recorded.

Page 174



Subject to the imposition of a watching brief condition it is considered that the
proposal is acceptable in terms of the relevant archaeological policies.

4.2.5 Biodiversity
Policy VOE 5 requires due assessment of potential impacts on protected species or

designated sites of nature conservation, including mitigation proposals, and suggests
that permission should not be granted where proposals are likely to cause significant
harm to such interests. This reflects policy and guidance in Planning Policy Wales
(Section 5.2), current legislation and SPG Nature Conservation and Species
Protection, which stress the importance of the planning system in meeting biodiversity
objectives through promoting approaches to development which create new
opportunities to enhance biodiversity, prevent biodiversity losses, or compensate for
losses where damage is unavoidable.

Although the application only proposes the creation of an access off a B road where
there is an established level of activity, as there are records of Great Crested Newts
close to the application site the Biodiversity Officer has suggested precautionary
conditions are attached.

Subject to the imposition of the biodiversity conditions it is considered that the
proposal is acceptable in terms of the relevant policies.

4  SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
5.11n respecting the comments received on the application, the proposed access is considered
acceptable under the relevant policies and is recommended for grant.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than the expiration
of five years beginning with the date of this permission.
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict accordance with details shown

on the following submitted plans and documents unless specified as otherwise within any
other condition pursuant to this permission:

(i) General arrangement (Drawing No. 1572-01-02) received 25 September 2015(ii) Site
location plan (Figure 1) received 25 September 2015(iii) Statutory plan (Drawing No. 1572-01-
01) received 25 September 2015

3. Full details of the vehicular access and associated highway works including the detailed
design, layout, construction, visibility splays, traffic calming, drainage, street lighting and
highway retaining works shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority prior the commencement of any site works and the access shall be completed in
accordance with the approved plans.

4., In relation to the carrying out of the works, no development shall be permitted to take place
until the written approval of the Local Planning Authority has been obtained in relation to the
site compound location, traffic management scheme, vehicle wheel washing facilities, hours
and days of operation, the management and operation of construction vehicles and the
construction vehicle routes, the works shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the
approved details.

5. All groundworks shall be undertaken in the presence of a qualified archaeological contractor
so that an archaeological watching brief can be conducted. The archaeological watching brief
shall be undertaken to the standards laid down by the Institute for Archaeologists. A copy of
the watching brief report shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and the
Development Control Archaeologist, Clwyd-Powys Archaeological Trust, 41 Broad Street,
Welshpool, Powys, SY21 7RR tel: 01938 553670 within two months of the fieldwork being
completed.

6. No works shall commence on the site until such time as the site has have been surveyed by a
suitable qualified Ecologist for the presence of Great Crested Newts, and the results of the
survey together with reasonable avoidance measures to deal with the presence of GCN's

Page 175



including details of a derogation license from Natural Resources Wales has been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):-

1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of development.

3. In the interest of the free and safe movement and traffic on the adjacent highway and to
ensure the formation of a safe and satisfactory access.

4, In the interest of the free and safe movement of traffic on the adjacent highway and in the

interests of highway safety.

In the interests of archaeological investigation and recording.
To protect ecological interests.

oo

Page 176



	Agenda
	1 APOLOGIES
	VOTING SHEET

	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	4 MINUTES
	5 APPLICATION NO. 09/2015/1121/PF - OUTBUILDINGS AT EFAIL Y WAEN, BODFARI, DENBIGH
	ITEM 5 - EFAIL Y WAEN, BODFARI - APPENDIX
	09/2015/1121
	2015-1121 plans.pdf


	6 APPLICATION NO. 18/2015/0887/PF - PENTRE MAWR COUNTRY HOUSE HOTEL, LLANDYRNOG, DENBIGH
	ITEM 6 - PENTRE MAWR HOTEL, LLANDYRNOG - APPENDIX
	18/2015/0887
	2015-0887 plans.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



	7 APPLICATION NO. 18/2015/0888/LB - PENTRE MAWR COUNTRY HOUSE HOTEL, LLANDYRNOG, DENBIGH
	ITEM 7 - PENTRE MAWR HOTEL, LLANDYRNOG (LB) - APPENDIX
	18/2015/0888
	2015-0888 plans.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



	8 APPLICATION NO. 18/2015/0327/PS - PENTRE MAWR COUNTRY HOUSE HOTEL, LLANDYRNOG, DENBIGH
	ITEM 8 - PENTRE MAWR HOTEL, LLANDYRNOG (V) - APPENDIX
	18/2015/0327
	2015-0327 plans.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



	9 APPLICATION NO. 23/2015/0889/PF - LAND AT BRYN GLAS DEPOT, SARON, DENBIGH
	ITEM 9 - BRYN GLAS DEPOT, SARON - APPENDIX
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	23_2015_0889.pdf
	23/2015/0889



	10 APPLICATION NO. 45/2015/0468/PO - FORMER THORPE ENGINEERING AND DESIGN SITE, FFORDD DERWEN, RHYL
	ITEM 10 - SITE, FFORDD DERWEN, RHYL - APPENDIX
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	45_2015_0468.pdf
	45/2015/0468



	11 APPLICATION NO. 45/2015/0780/PR - OCEAN BEACH SITE, WELLINGTON ROAD, RHYL
	ITEM 11 - OCEAN BEACH SITE, RHYL - APPENDIX
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	45_2015_0780.pdf
	45/2015/0780



	12 APPLICATION NO. 46/2015/0969/PF - FORMER PILKINGTON SPECIAL GLASS SITE, GLASCOED ROAD, ST. ASAPH
	ITEM 12 - FORMER PILKINGTONS, ST. ASAPH - APPENDIX
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	46_2015_0969.pdf
	46/2015/0969






